




Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 1 of 13 

  

To complete this application, you will need information about your community's total year-
round housing units from the 2010 Census and the cumulative net increase in year-round 
housing units from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2019 (referred to below as 
"additional" units). BUILDING PERMIT data from the US Census Building Permit Survey is the 
primary source of information about additional units. You will need to have the application 
signed and certified by your local Building Official as to the accuracy of this information. The 
Executive Officer (Mayor or Chair of Board of Selectmen) must also sign the application.  

You may save your work and return to the form. IF you use the "Save and Resume" feature, 
please note that uploaded files will not be saved. Therefore, gather and keep files needed for 
uploading, and only upload them when you are planning to hit the "SUBMIT" button at the 
END of the form. Please do not submit your form without the uploaded signatures. 

If you are qualifying based on an increase of 300 units/3% increase in year round housing 
stock, you will also need information about Best Practices related to housing that your 
community has established. Please be sure to upload all documentation needed to 
demonstrate these best practices.  

Applications are DUE no later than 3:00 p.m. on March 23, 2020.  

If you have questions, contact Housing Choice Program Director Chris Kluchman 
at chris.kluchman@mass.gov or 617-573-1167. 

  

mailto:chris.kluchman@mass.gov
sraposa
Text Box
Draft for BoS 3/3/20



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 2 of 13 

Housing Choice Designation Application 2020 

1. Submitting Municipality*  
Choose your City or Town from the drop down list 
2. Contact Name* 

First Name* 

Last Name* 
2.a. Contact Mailing Address* 

Address Line 1 

Address Line 2 

City 

 State 

ZIP Code 
2.b. Contact Email* 
2.c. Phone* 
3. Was your City/Town designated a Housing Choice Community in 2018?* 

Yes No 
4. Does your community have any ACTIVE housing restrictions such as a moratorium or 
limitations on the number of new housing units? * 

Yes No 
Zoning moratorium makes your community INELIGIBLE for Housing Choice designation 
 

If the answer to Question 4. Is Yes:  

 4.a. If your community has an ordinance or bylaw that restrict or limit the number 
of new housing units, please provide a copy here. 

5. Has your community conducted a Self Evaluation or Transition Plan related to Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA)? * 

Yes No 
More information on ADA requirements for local governments can be found at the Housing 
Choice Web pages  
 

IF the answer to Question 5 is No:  
5.a. If your answer to #5 was NO, is your community willing to enter into a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Massachusetts Office of 
Disability and DHCD to conduct such study within the next five (5) years? 

Yes No  

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Sarah 	

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Raposa

sraposa
Typewritten Text
459 Main Street

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield

sraposa
Typewritten Text
MA

sraposa
Typewritten Text
02052

sraposa
Typewritten Text
sraposa@medfield.net

sraposa
Typewritten Text
5089063027

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 3 of 13 

Information about your Community's Housing Production 

The Housing Choice designation is based on PRODUCTION of new year-round housing units over 
the last 5 years. The threshold for qualifications is a 5% increase (or 500 units) or a 3% increase 
(or 300 units) and best practices. This section describes how to calculate and demonstrate the 
increase in new year-round housing units. 

(1) Look up your community's 2010 year-round housing units (this is also the denominator 
used in the Subsidized Housing Inventory or SHI). The Housing Choice web site has a list of 2010 
year-round units for all communities here  

(2) Calculate the number of additional year-round housing units over the last 5 years using the 
number of BUILDING PERMITS issued to create the ratio of additional units added over the last 
5 years, excluding housing units that replace demolished units at a 1 to 1 ratio. Demolition of 
one single family unit and replacement with one single family unit is an increase of 0 units. If a 
demolished single family home is replaced with 3 units, the net increase is +2 units. If building 
permits for new units replacing a demolished home cannot be easily excluded from your data, 
please provide data about the number of demolition permits and total units demolished. 

 (3) Data Sources: BUILDING PERMITS are the measurement of additional year-round housing 
units for this calculation. Your building official should have a record of new residential building 
permits for year-round housing issued between January 1, 2015 and December 31, 2019. If your 
building official does not have ready access for this information, another source for this building 
permit data is information submitted by your community to the U.S. Census in the Building 
Permit Survey. A copy of the Building Permit Survey for all cities and towns in Massachusetts for 
2015 through 2018 can be found on the Housing Choice web site here.  2010 Building Permit 
Survey data is not yet available, and therefore 2019 building permit data must be provided 
from your building official. If your community has reason to believe the current Census Building 
Permit Survey data does not fully reflect the number of building permits in your community, 
there is a place in the application to add comments and explanation. 

6. Provide your community's 2010 year-round housing units* 

2010 year-round housing units are available for download: https://www.mass.gov/how-
to/apply-for-the-housing-choice-designation 

7. Number of net new units that were issued building permits between January 1, 2015 and 
December 31, 2019* 

Note: please see the above description of qualifying net new units 

8. Here is the percent increase in year-round housing units (net new units/2010 units*100)* 

Note: this field calculates the % increase automatically. Use this or the number of units over the 
last 5 years in Question 7 to complete Question 9 below. 

https://www.mass.gov/how-to/apply-for-the-housing-choice-designation
https://www.mass.gov/how-to/apply-for-the-housing-choice-designation


Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 4 of 13 

9. Housing Choice Designation.  

Based on the increase in housing units in Question 8 OR the number of units produced over 
the last 5 years in Question 7, select the appropriate designation in Question 9.a. If you do not 
meet the numeric standard to qualify to be a Housing Choice Community, visit the Housing 
Choice Web pages and review the many Technical Assistance opportunities available from 
many public, quasi-public and advocacy organizations. You might also talk to your Regional 
Planning Agency about what steps your community might take to increase housing production 
so that you may qualify for the designation in the future. 

9.a. Choose the Housing Choice Designation for your community based on Questions 6, 7 and 
8* 

5% increase OR 500+ units over the last five years 3% increase OR 300+ units over the 
last five years 

10. UPLOAD documentation of the building permits issued over the last 5 years. Please upload 
.pdfs of printouts from your building permit software, excel spreadsheets, or other information 
about building permits in your community.  Remember, even if you use Building Permit Survey 
data for 2015 through 2018, you must provide your community's building permit information 
for 2019.   

10.a. Upload building permit data* 

You must provide detailed back up for all net new units 

10.b. Use the space below to provide information about additional housing units in your 
community that you believe are not captured by the Building Permit 

Survey  

Here you can let us know about the reasons why the Building Permit Survey does not accurately 
reflect housing production in your community 

11. Housing Choice Best Practices  

If your community has over 5% increase in housing production or 500 or more net new 
housing units, please go through all 14 of the best practices below and indicate by checking 
the box for each of your community's BEST PRACTICES to indicate which ones your City/Town 
has implemented..  You do not have to submit or upload any 
documentation.   While communities with 5%/500 growth in housing units do not need to 
demonstrate a certain number of best practices to qualify for Housing Choice designation, the 
best practices are a part of evaluating grant proposals.  

 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
4220



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 5 of 13 

For Production and Planning (3%/300) which Housing Best Practices do you have?  

x You MUST select at least 7 of the 14 best practices below to qualify for the 3%/300 
unit category.  

x TWO Best Practices MUST be in the affordable category. 
x You MUST upload documentation to demonstrate achievement of at least 7 of the 14 

Best Practices that you select below.  

NOTE: when uploading required documentation, only one file per upload box is allowed, 
please scan documents into a SINGLE FILE for uploading to each best practice.  

11.a. Allow for Multifamily development in local zoning 

Have at least one zoning district that allows multifamily by right (in addition to 40R 
districts) where there is capacity to add units and that allows for family housing that is not age 
restricted and does not restrict units with more than 2 bedrooms (or demonstrate a pattern of 
approving such developments over the last 5 years) 

11.a. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.a. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.a. 

11.b Have Inclusionary Zoning [Affordable Category] 

Have inclusionary zoning that provides for reasonable density increases so that housing is 
not unreasonably precluded 

11.b. Instructions. Provide a copy of the section in your current zoning ordinance or by-law that 
addresses inclusionary zoning with density increases for provision of affordable units 

11.b. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.b. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.b. 

11.c. Have an approved 40R Smart Growth or Starter Home zoning district [Affordable 
Category] 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Upper Spring Street Overlay District allows multi-family by-right with site plan approval by the planning board (5.5 units per acre)

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Inclusionary Zoning adopted in 2017



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 6 of 13 

Have adopted a 40R Smart Growth or Starter Homes zoning district 

11.c. Instructions. Provide a copy of the section in your current zoning ordinance or by-law that 
implements MGL chapter 40R Smart Growth or Starter Homes provisions 

11.c. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.c. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.c. 

11.d. Have Zoning that allows mixed use or cluster developments 

Have zoning that allows for mixed use, or cluster developments by right (or can 
demonstrate a consistent pattern over the last 5 years of approving such developments) 

11.d. Instructions. Provide a copy of the section in your current zoning ordinance or by-law that 
allows mixed use or cluster development by right. If you believe your community has 
demonstrated a consistent pattern over the last 5 years of approving such developments, 
please provide a table with the following information: project address/name, number of units, 
action taken (approve, deny, withdrawn, appealed) and date of final board decision. If there are 
questions about these projects program staff may follow up for additional information. 

11.d. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.d. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.d. 

11.e. Allow Accessory Dwelling Units  

Have zoning that allows for Accessory Dwelling units (ADUs) by right (or can demonstrate a 
consistent pattern over the last 5 years of approving ADUs) 

11.e. Instructions. Provide a copy of the section in your current zoning ordinance or by-law that 
allows ADUs by right. If you believe your community has demonstrated a consistent pattern 
over the last 5 years of approving ADUs, please provide a table with the following information: 
project address/name, number of units, action taken (approve, deny, withdrawn, appealed) and 
date of final board decision. If there are questions about these projects program staff may 
follow up for additional information. 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
MSHD (adopted 2019) allows some by-right mixed use redevelopment

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 7 of 13 

11.e. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.e. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.e 

11.f. Designated local resouces for housing [Affordable Category] 

Designated local resources for housing such as establishe an Affordable housing Trust, 
donated land, or spent substantial Community Preservation Act (CPA) funds for community 
housing over the last 5 years. 

11.f. Instructions: Provide a narrative description of designated local resources and upload 
documentation including but not limited to (1) meeting minutes from meetings of Board of 
Selectmen, Town Meeting or Affordable Housing Trust board awarding funding, designating 
CPA funds for Community Housing projects and a list of funds spent for community housing 
projects including number of units produced if applicable,  (2) copy of deed conveying property 
for nominal value, or for reduced value if accompanied by evidence of value or approving 
conveyance of land for nominal or reduced value; (3) award letter or other documentation of 
funding award, or (4) copy of Affordable Housing Trust charter. 

11.f. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.f. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.f 

11.g. Reduction in Parking requirements for Multi-Family units 

Have reduced parking requirement(s) for Multi-Family units within the last 5 years, or 
require no more than 1 parking space per unit for multifamily units. 

11.g. Instructions.  Provide a copy of the section of your current zoning ordinance or by-law 
that demonstrates no more than one (1) parking space per unit for multi-family developments 
and/or describe the reduction in parking requirements that occurred within the last 5 years. 

11.g. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
ZBA routinely approves family apartment special permits

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield AHT established in 2017 and funded with $1m bond authorization

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 8 of 13 

11.g. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.g 

11.h. Training for Land Use Board Members 

Board members received training in the last 5 years 

Requires evidence that a MAJORITY of a Board received training 

11.h. Instructions.  Provide evidence of education and training for a majority of members on 
a land use board (Planning Board, Zoning Board of Appeals, Select Board and/or City Council) 
from Citizens Planner Training Collaborative (CPTC), Massachusetts Housing Partnership's 
(MHP's) Housing Institute or Urban Land Institute's (ULI's) Urban Plan Public Leadership 
Institute over the last 5 years.  Comparable training will be evaluated on a case by case basis.   

11.h. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.h. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.h 

11.i. Achieved 10% or greater in your Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) [Affordable Category].  

Have units currently eligible for inclusion in the Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) that 
equal or exceed 10% of total year-round housing stock, according to the DHCD subsidized 
housing inventory 

NEW FOR 2020 DESIGNATION: SHI units that are added after Housing Appeals Court (HAC) 
overturned a local denial or overturned local conditions will NOT COUNT towards your 
community's SHI totals. 

11.i. Instructions. Provide a copy of most recently published SHI for your community. If you 
believe there are additional units eligible for inclusion on the SHI, but not reflected on the SHI, 
documentation of those units must meet the standards applied by DHCD under its regulations 
and guidelines in determining whether units are SHI-eligible.  NEW FOR 2020 
DESIGNATION:  SHI units that are added after Housing Appeals Court (HAC) overturned a local 
denial or overturned local conditions will NOT COUNT towards your community's SHI totals.   

11.i. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
PB & ZBA members attend CPTC and 40B trainings

sraposa
Typewritten Text
MSHD (2019) reduces multi-family parking to 1 space per unit (for senior housing/cottages) and 1.23 spaces per unit (for low- mid-rise MF housing). Medfield does not have public transportation so the MSHD also encourages shared parking for mix-uses.   

sraposa
Typewritten Text




Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 9 of 13 

11.i. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.i. 

11.j. Have increased your community's SHI by at least 2.5% points in the last 5 years [Affordable 
Category] 

Have increased units currently eligible for inclusion in the Subsidized Housing Inventory 
(SHI) by at least 2.5%, according to the DHCD subsidized housing inventory 

NEW FOR 2020 DESIGNATION: SHI units that are added after Housing Appeals Court (HAC) 
overturned a local denial or overturned local conditions will NOT COUNT towards your 
community's SHI totals. 

11.j. Instructions. Provide a copy of most recently published SHI for your community showing 
at least a 2.5% increase over the last 5 years. If you believe there are additional units eligible for 
inclusion on the SHI, but not reflected on the SHI, documentation of those units must meet the 
standards applied by DHCD under its regulations and guidelines in determining whether units 
are SHI-eligible.  NEW FOR 2020 DESIGNATION:  SHI units that are added after Housing Appeals 
Court (HAC) overturned a local denial or overturned local conditions will NOT COUNT towards 
this best practice.   

11.j. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.j. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.j. 

11.k. Community Compact with Housing Best Practice 

Have applied for (or received) a Community Compact with a housing best practice 

11.k. Instructions. Provide a copy of Community Compact application/award showing the 
Housing Best Practice. Here is the web page for the Community Compact 
Cabinet: https://www.mass.gov/orgs/community-compact-cabinet 

11.k. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.k. Narrative  

https://www.mass.gov/orgs/community-compact-cabinet...
sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
2014 (4.22%) --> 2019 (8.29%)

sraposa
Typewritten Text




Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 10 of 13 

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.k. 

11.l. Participate in Housing related incentive programs [Affordable Category] 

Participate in the Housing Development Incentive Program, have adopted an Urban Center 
Housing Tax Increment Financing district, approved District Improvement Financing (DIF) 
related to housing, have adopted an Urban Renewal Plan that includes a significant Housing 
element 

11.l. Instructions. If you are participating in the HDIP program, provide a copy of a DHCD-
approved Housing Development Tax Increment Exemption Agreement, together with copies of 
any award letters for state Housing Development Tax Credits for specific projects. If you have 
adopted an UCH-TIF district, provide a copy of your DHCD-approved urban center housing tax 
increment financing plan, together with copies of any approved UCH-TIF agreements. For Urban 
Renewal Plans, submit evidence of substantial housing element(s) in the plan. 

11.l. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.l. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.l 

11.m. Have adopted local option property tax mechanisms that promote housing [Affordable 
Category] 

Have adopted local option property tax relief programs either as provided for by statute 
(MGL c. 59 section 5) or through a home rule petition 

11.m. Instructions. Provide a copy of local bylaw or ordinance establishing the tax relief 
program. 

11.m. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.m. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.m 



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 11 of 13 

11.n. Certified Housing Production Plan 

Have a CERTIFIED Housing Production Plan which means that you have an DHCD approved 
Housing Production Plan and have subsequently seen an increase of 0.5% or 1% in year round 
housing units 

11.n. Instructions.  There is a difference between a CERTIFIED Housing Production Plan (HPP) 
and one that has been APPROVED by DHCD. A certified HPP which means that you have an 
DHCD approved Housing Production Plan and have subsequently seen an increase of 0.5% or 
1% in your year round housing units (see https://www.mass.gov/service-details/chapter-40-b-
housing-production-plan for more information). Provide a copy of your current Housing 
Production Plan and the DHCD certification letter. 

11.n. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.n. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.n 

12. Use the space below to provide additional details about your community's Best 

Practices  

Provide additional narrative here if needed 

  

https://www.mass.gov/service-details/chapter-40-b-housing-production-plan
https://www.mass.gov/service-details/chapter-40-b-housing-production-plan
sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
2016 HPP was certified in 2017, 2018, 2019 and is on target for a two-year certification in 2019

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield has been successful in implementing its HPP by partnering with the local development community. We sought developers who had land, experience, capacity, and capital to quickly kickstart small-scale affordable housing developments throughout Medfield.  



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 12 of 13 

Certification and Signatures 

The Housing Choice application for Designation requires the signatures of both the Local 
Building Official and the Chief Executive Officer (Mayor, Board of Selectmen Chair or City/Town 
Manager). Please print this page, get signatures, scan and upload the signed pages below. 

13. Certification by local building official  

By signing below, I certify that the building permit data for additional year-round housing units 
over the last 5 years is true and accurate. The data includes only additional year-round housing 
units, where demolished units were replaced 1:1 the new building permits are not included (or 
if permits for units replacing tear downs cannot be excluded from other additional unit permits, 
then demolition data is being provided); and conversions of commercial property to housing 
are included (such as mill conversions). 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Sign on the line above, enter name and title below 

13.a. Local Building Official Name* 

First Name* 

Last Name* 

13.b. Local Building Official Email* 

The Housing Choice application for Designation requires the signatures of both the Local 
Building Official and the Chief Executive Officer (Mayor, Board of Selectmen Chair or City/Town 
Manager). Please print this page, get signatures, scan and upload the signed pages below. 

14. Certification by Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Sign on the line above, enter name and title below 

14.a. City/Town Chief Executive Officer Name* 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Gary

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Pelletier

sraposa
Typewritten Text
gpelletier@medfield.net

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Text Box
Gary Sign

sraposa
Text Box
Gus Sign



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 13 of 13 

First Name* 

Last Name* 

14.b. City/Town Chief Executive Officer Email* 

14.c. City/Town Chief Executive Officer Mailing Address* 

Address Line 1 

Address Line 2 

City 

State 

ZIP Code 

15. Upload Signature Page (s) here 

Please print this page, get required signatures and upload the file here 

 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Gustave

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Murby

sraposa
Typewritten Text
459 Main Street

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield

sraposa
Typewritten Text
MA 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
02052

sraposa
Typewritten Text
gmurby1651@gmail.com



Bullet Point Lease Agreement Summary 
 
 

1.  PARTIES:  Town of Medfield (“Landlord”) and Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. 
(“Tenant”), to be assigned to another entity as project progresses. 

2. LEASED PREMISES:  The land and buildings shown on Exhibit A.  
3. TERM:  99 Years 
4. PURPOSE AND USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES: 

a. Offices of nonprofit and educational organizations; 
b. Classroom instruction; 
c. Artist studios and art gallery; 
d. Public events, including fundraising events, meetings open to the public, staged 
productions and similar events; 
e. During the Lease term, Tenant and its employees, agents, representatives and invitees 
shall have the right to use in common with others lawfully entitled thereto the grounds and 
parking areas adjacent to the Buildings. 

5. PROHIBITTED PURPOSE/USES 
6. RENT: One Dollar per Year 
7. ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS IN LIEU OF RENT 
8. HEAT, UTILITIES, WATER AND SEWER 
9. OBLIGATION TO MAINTAIN AND KEEP IN GOOD REPAIR, CONDITION OF 

LEASED PREMISES; MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 
10. INSURANCE 
11. INDEMNIFICATION OF LANDLORD 
12. TENANTS DEFAULT (Definition) 
13. PROVISIONS FOR NOTICE OF DEFAULT AND OPPORTUNITY TO CURE 
14. LANDLORD’S REMEDIES UPON TENANT’S DEFAULT 
15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
16. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES 
17. SUBORDINATION 
18. ARBITRATION 
19. MISCELLANEOUS TERMS 
20. REPORTS AND APPROVALS 
21. TENANT’S RIGHT TO MORTGAGE 

 
 
 
 
 
  



Lease Agreement 
 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Lease”) is made on the ____ day of _____________ 2020. 
 
The Landlord hereby agrees to lease to the Tenant and the Tenant hereby agrees to hire and take from the 
Landlord, the Leased Premises described below pursuant to the terms and conditions specified herein: 
 
WHEREAS, Town purchased and owns former Medfield State Hospital property (the “MSH Property”), 
including the former Chapel and Infirmary which are currently vacant and not being put to public or other 
productive use and Town desires that these buildings be preserved and adaptively reused to benefit 
community. 
 
WHEREAS, Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. is a duly-organized, non-profit whose purpose is to 
preserve and reuse the Chapel and Infirmary for a performing arts and education center.  Specifically, the 
properties included are: the Lee Chapel and the Infirmary (Buildings 24 and 25 at the former Medfield 
State Hospital) which will be connected by a new shared lobby entrance. The rehabilitation of the Lee 
Chapel and the Infirmary and the construction of the new shared lobby is referred to herein as the 
“Project”.  The land surrounding the buildings shall be included in the Lease Premises, specifically those 
grounds identified on the plan attached to this Lease as Exhibit A. 
 
WHEREAS, voters at Medfield’s October 28, 2019 Special Town Meeting authorized the Board of 
Selectmen to lease the former Chapel and Infirmary to a public or private entity for said purpose and to 
petition the General Court for special legislation to provide authorization therefor. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Selectmen did file a petition with the General Court for special legislation and 
the General Court enacted Chapter 40 of the Acts of 2019 providing said authorization. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing factual recitals Landlord and Tenant hereby agree 
as follows: 
 

1. LANDLORD: Town of Medfield, TENANT:  Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc., 
 municipal corporation  a Massachusetts non-profit corporation 
ADDRESS:  PO Box 315 ADDRESS:  3 Alder Road 
 Medfield, MA 02052 Medfield, MA  02052 
 

2. LEASED PREMISES AND APPURTENANCES.  
a. The Leased Premises are shown on the plan hereto attached as an Exhibit A (the “Lease 

Plan”). 
b. The Tenant shall have, as appurtenant to the Leased Premises, a right of pedestrian and 

vehicular access to the Leased Premises over the MSH Property from public ways 
abutting the MSH Property.  Such access shall be over the roadways driveways and 
sidewalks on the MSH Property, provided that such roadways, driveways and sidewalks 
may be relocated at the discretion of the Landlord so long as (i) such relocated roadways, 
driveways and sidewalks provide reasonably comparable pedestrian and vehicular access 
to that available as of the date hereof and (ii) the Tenant continues to have pedestrian and 
vehicular access to the Leased Premises during such time as the relocated roadways, 
driveways and sidewalks are being constructed. 

c. The Tenant shall have, as appurtenant to the Leased Premises, a right to install utility 
lines for water, sewer, electricity, gas, telecommunications and the like to serve the 
Leased Premises over the MSH Property from public ways abutting the MSH Property.  
Such utilities shall be installed in such locations as may be reasonably approved by the 



Landlord.  Tenant’s utility lines may be relocated at the expense of the Landlord or its 
other lessees of portions of the MSH Property so long as (i) such relocated utility lines 
are comparable in size and capacity to the then-existing utility lines serving the Leased 
Premises and (ii) the Tenant’s then-existing utility lines are not disrupted during such 
time as the relocated utility lines are being constructed. The Landlord shall cause its other 
lessees of portions of the MSH Property to cooperate with the Tenant in the installation 
of shared utility lines, provided that Tenant pays a reasonable proportion of the costs of 
such shared utility lines.  

 
3. TERM.  

a. The term of the Lease shall be for a period of 99 years commencing on [________, 2020] 
and ending on [________, 2119] unless sooner terminated as hereinafter provided. If a 
new lease has not been executed at the end of the term of this Lease, this Lease shall be 
extended with the same terms and conditions except that each party shall have the right to 
terminate the Lease by giving at least ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to the other 
party.  

b. The parties agree that this Lease shall be implemented in three separate phases: 
1. The first phase shall be referred to as the “Preconstruction Period.” 
2. The second phase shall be referred to as the “Construction Period.” 
3. The final/third phase shall be referred to “Occupancy Period.” 

c. The three above-referenced phases are described in Addendum A to this Lease which 
shall define additional terms which apply only to those phases.  The Preconstruction 
Period shall refer to that period of time necessary to raise the funds needed to begin the 
construction of the Project, to complete plans and specifications for the Project and to 
execute a construction contract for the Project.  Once the parties have mutually agreed 
that the Preconstruction Period has been completed, they will indicate their agreement in 
writing (the “Construction Approval”).  The Construction Approval will include an 
acknowledgement of the approved plans and specifications, the approved sources and 
uses and the approved construction contract, at which point the Construction Period will 
begin. 

d. Prior to the commencement of the Construction Period, the Board of Selectmen shall 
have the opportunity to review the plans and specifications for the Project, the sources 
and uses for the Project and the construction contract for the Project for the purpose of 
determining the financial viability of the Project and the conformance of the proposed 
Project with the terms of this Lease.   The Construction Approval shall evidence the 
approval by the Board of Selectmen of the foregoing, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

e. The Tenant shall have a period of up to seven years to complete the Preconstruction 
Period and obtain the Construction Approval (as it may be extended, the “Construction 
Commencement Deadline”).  The Construction Commencement Deadline shall be 
extended by up to three one-year periods upon request of the Tenant in writing to the 
Landlord made at least 30 days before the then-current Construction Commencement 
Deadline, which request shall describe the progress made by the Tenant to date toward 
achieving the Construction Approval.  Unless the Landlord reasonably determines prior 
to the then-current Construction Commencement Deadline that Tenant’s progress toward 
Construction Approval is inadequate, the Construction Commencement Deadline shall be 
deemed extended by such one-year period.  The Construction Commencement Deadline 
shall not be extended for more than three consecutive one-year period except by written 
amendment to this Lease signed by both the Tenant and the Landlord.  

f. If the Tenant has not obtained the Construction Approval on or before the Construction 
Commencement Deadline, this Lease shall automatically terminate.  



 
4. PURPOSE AND USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES:  

 
Tenant and its subtenants, employees, agents, representatives and invitees may use the Leased 
Premises for the following uses: 
 

a. Offices of nonprofit and educational organizations; 
b. Classroom instruction; 
c. Artist studios and art gallery; 
d. Public events, including fundraising events, meetings open to the public, staged 

productions and similar events; 
e. During the Lease term, Tenant and its employees, agents, representatives and 

invitees shall have the right to use in common with others lawfully entitled 
thereto the publicly accessible grounds and parking areas adjacent to the 
Buildings. 

f. The Chapel shall include flexible seating for about 325 to host live music 
performances with opportunities for film, storytelling, literary, and other cultural 
events. The Chapel will remain a community resource with opportunities for 
educational, arts, business and civic group meetings and special events. A 
catering kitchen and concessions will be installed to support these activities. 

g. The grounds will accommodate live performance, outdoor movies and events 
with opportunities for festivals, markets, public art, and the like.  

h. The former infirmary shall be a center of education for youth and adults with 
studios for private and group lessons in the visual and performing arts. 

 
5. PROHIBITED PURPOSE/USES. It is agreed and understood that the Leased Premises shall be 

used for purposes detailed in Section 4 above and no other purposes without the Landlord’s prior 
written approval.  As long as the Tenant shall engage in permitted uses of the property as defined 
in Section 4 above, it shall peaceably hold the rented premises without hindrance or interruption 
by the Landlord, or any other persons acting through or under the Landlord. 
 

6. RENT. The Tenant shall pay nominal rent of One ($1.00) Dollar per year and in addition, all 
necessary expenses associated with the occupancy of the premises including, but not limited to 
water and sewer charges, telephone, utility, electric, and heating expenses.  
 

7. ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS IN LIEU OF RENT. 
a. Maintenance/Repairs: The Tenant shall undertake all usual maintenance and repair of the 

Leased Premises, along with the surrounding grounds as defined on the attached Exhibit, 
with reasonable cooperation and support from the Town, at Tenant’s sole cost and 
expense. 

b. Improvements: The Tenant shall pay for any and all improvements to the Leased 
Premises made in accordance with the purposes set forth in Section 4 of this Lease and 
Tenant shall save and hold Landlord free of and harmless from any cost, charge, expense 
or lien arising from or on account of such work. 

c. It is agreed and understood that the Tenant may make alterations, additions, or 
improvements to, or install any fixtures on the Leased Premises, in accordance with the 
Approved Plans (as defined below) or, with respect to material alterations, additions or 
improvement not shown on the Approved Plans, as otherwise approved by the Board of 
Selectmen, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

d. It is understood that there shall be prior review and approval from the Board of 
Selectmen before significant structural work is undertaken.  The review and approval 



shall determine the financial viability, the contractor’s proposal and the contractor’s 
fitness for the Project and reputation.  The parties agree that this review shall occur as 
needed. The plans and specifications for the Project, once approved by the Board of 
Selectmen shall be referred to as the “Approved Plans”.  Any material changes to the 
structure or systems of the Project from the Approved Plans shall also be subject to 
approval by the Board of Selectmen and the Approved Plans shall be deemed to include 
any such changes approved by the Board of Selectmen as well as any changes not 
requiring approval by the Board of Selectmen. This provision shall apply to all Tenant’s 
undertakings both as specified within the body of the Lease Agreement and in Addendum 
A.  

 
8. HEAT, UTILITIES, WATER AND SEWER. Tenant shall pay all costs as set forth in Section 6.  

 
9. OBLIGATION TO MAINTAIN AND KEEP IN GOOD REPAIR. CONDITION OF LEASED 

PREMISES; MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR. The Tenant, at its expense, shall make all 
necessary repairs and replacements to the Leased Premises, including the repair and replacement 
of pipes, electrical wiring, heating and plumbing systems and appliances and their appurtenances. 
The quality and class of all repairs and replacements shall be consistent with the purposes set 
forth in Section 4 of this Lease.  The parties agree that this obligation shall not begin until the 
Tenant begins undertaking work on the premises that.  The parties agree that the Tenant’s 
obligation of care and maintenance shall extend to those surrounding grounds which are shown 
on the Lease Plan. The Landlord shall retain all obligations with respect to the infrastructure of 
the greater MSH Property not otherwise expressly imposed on the Tenant hereunder. 
 

10. INSURANCE 
a. By Landlord. Landlord shall at all times during the term of this Lease, at its expense, 

insure and keep in effect on the building in which the Leased Premises is located casualty 
insurance with extended coverage. The Tenant shall not permit any use of the Leased 
Premises which will make voidable any insurance on the property of which the Leased 
Premises are a part, or on the contents of said property.  

b. By Tenant. Tenant shall, at its expense, during the term hereof, maintain and deliver to 
Landlord public liability and property damage insurance policies with respect to the 
Leased Premises. Such policies shall name the Landlord and Tenant as insureds and have 
agreed upon limits for coverage including injury or death to any one person, for any one 
accident and/or damage to property. Such policies shall be in whatever forms and with 
such insurance companies as are reasonably satisfactory to Landlord, shall name the 
Landlord as additional insured, and shall provide for at least ten days’ prior notice to 
Landlord of cancellation.  The parties agree that this obligation shall not begin until the 
Tenant begins undertaking work on the premises that requires insurance to be in place or 
until the Tenant’s representative begin assessing the property, whichever occurs first. 

 
11. INDEMNIFICATION OF LANDLORD. Protection of the personal property and contents of the 

Leased Premises are the sole responsibility of the Tenant. The Tenant waives any and all claims 
against the town as to personal property claims.  The parties agree that neither shall be held 
responsible for the negligent acts of the other.  To the extent that either party is found responsible 
for acts deemed negligent or criminal in nature, then they agree to indemnify and hold the other 
party harmless for any of those acts. In consideration of the Landlord’s agreement to lease the 
Leased Premises to Tenant, Tenant expressly waives in advance any and all rights to sue and 
releases any and all claims which it, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, customers, 
invitees or visitors may have against the Town of Medfield or any of its officials or employees in 
any way arising from or connected with Tenant’s use of the Landlord’s property and Tenant 



further agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the Town of Medfield and its officials and 
employees to the fullest extent permitted by law from and against any and all liability, loss, 
damage or expense, including court costs and attorney’s fees arising from or connected with 
Tenant’s use of the Leased Premises, injury or damage suffered by any third part and/or Tenant’s 
violation of any term of this Agreement including but not limited to its failure to vacate Town 
property upon the termination of this Lease for any reason.  Tenant agrees to procure and 
maintain general liability insurance with affirmative contractual liability coverage to secure its 
obligations contained in this Section. 
 

12. TENANTS DEFAULT (DEFINITION). As used in this Lease, Tenant’s default shall be defined 
as follows: 

a. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease if the premises are used in a manner 
inconsistent with Section 4 of this Lease. 

b. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease if it allows the Premises to be used for 
illegal purposes. 

c. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease if the corporate status is dissolved or 
ceases to exist. 

d. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease if it abandons the Premises. 
e. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease upon the filing of any bankruptcy action. 
f. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease for failure to comply with those 

obligations set forth in Sections 4 and 6 through 10 of this Lease. 
 

13. PROVISION FOR NOTICE OF DEFAULT AND OPPORTUNITY TO CURE. The Landlord 
shall notify the Tenant in writing of any default. 

a. The Tenant shall have the opportunity to cure any default within a sixty (60) day period 
of time. 

b. After 60 days, should the parties still be unable to resolve a default, and should there 
remain a dispute about said default, then the parties shall agree to enter arbitration as 
defined under Section 18. 

c. Without any approval by Landlord, Tenant shall have the right to secure an equity 
investment from and to issue an equity interest to any commercial bank, insurance 
company, pension fund, equity fund, trust, savings bank, investment bank, or company in 
the business of investing in federal historic rehabilitation tax credits (an “Institutional 
Investor”).  Any such Institutional Investor holding such an interest is referred to as the 
“Investor.”  All costs incurred in connection with securing an Investor shall be paid by 
Tenant.  If Tenant shall forward to Landlord a written notice setting forth the name and 
address of an Investor, then if Landlord shall give a default notice to Tenant, Landlord 
shall simultaneously give a copy of such default notice to the Investor at the address 
contained in such notice from Tenant or such alternative address thereafter designated by 
the Investor.  Any such copy of a default notice shall be given in the same manner 
provided in this Lease for giving notices between Landlord and Tenant.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, any event of default arising pursuant to 
Section 12 hereof may be cured by the Investor or its affiliates or designees, on behalf of 
Tenant, and such cure shall be accepted by Landlord on the same basis as if made by 
Tenant itself. 

 
14. LANDLORD’S REMEDIES UPON TENANT’S DEFAULT. In the event of any breach of this 

Lease by the Tenant, which shall not have been cured within the appropriate time period, then the 
Landlord, besides other rights and remedies it may have, shall have the immediate right of 
reentry. If the Landlord elects to reenter as herein provided, or should it take possession pursuant 
to any notice provided for by law, it may terminate the Lease. 



 
15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. Tenant, at its expense, shall promptly 

comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, orders and regulations, and with all lawful 
directives of public officers, which impose any duty upon it or Landlord with respect to the 
Leased Premises. The Tenant at its expense shall obtain all required licenses or permits for the 
conduct of its business within the terms of this Lease, or for the making of repairs, alterations, 
improvements, or additions. Landlord, when necessary, will join with the Tenant in applying for 
all such permits or licenses.  

 
16. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES. If the Building(s) located on the Leased Premises is/are 

damaged by fire other casualty, without Tenant’s fault, and the damage is so extensive as to 
effectively constitute a total destruction of the property or building(s), this Lease shall terminate.  
Should this Lease terminate, under this Section, then there shall not be continuing obligation by 
and between the parties. 

 
17. SUBORDINATION. This Lease, and the Tenant’s leasehold interest, is and shall be subordinate, 

subject and inferior to any and all liens and encumbrances now and thereafter placed on the 
Leased Premises by the Landlord, any and all extensions of such liens and encumbrances and all 
advances paid under such liens and encumbrances.  

 
18. ARBITRATION. Should any matter develop which appears beyond the scope of this Lease, or is 

subject to a difference of interpretation, the parties shall agree to enter into arbitration as a means 
to resolve the outstanding issue.   

 
19. MISCELLANEOUS TERMS 

a. Notices. Any notice, statement, demand or other communication by one party to the 
other, shall be given by personal delivery or by mailing the same, postage prepaid, 
address to Tenant or to the Landlord at the addresses set forth above. 

b. Severability. If any Section or provision herein shall be adjudged invalid or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, 
it shall not affect the validity of any other Section or provision, which shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

c. Waiver. The failure of either party to enforce any of the provisions of this Lease shall not 
be considered a waiver of that provision or the right of the party to thereafter enforce the 
provision. 

d. Complete Agreement. This Lease constitutes the entire understanding of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof and may not be modified except by an instrument in 
writing and signed by the parties. 

e. Successors. This Lease is binding on all parties who lawfully succeed to the rights to take 
the place of the Landlord or Tenant. 

f. No Individual Liability. It is agreed and understood that any and all members of the 
Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc., a non-profit corporation, shall not be held personally 
liable for the Corporation’s obligations hereunder. 

g. Assignment.  The Tenant shall have the right to assign this Lease, or to sublease the 
Leased Premises for all or a portion of the term hereof, to a limited partnership or limited 
liability company (a “Transferee”) for the purpose of securing funding or tax credits, 
provided that (i) the Landlord determines that the proposed Transferee is financially 
viable and otherwise suitable to perform hereunder, (ii) the Transferee agrees, in writing, 
to abide by all of the terms of the original Lease and (iii) the manager or general partner 
of the Transferee is owned and controlled by Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. or 
another non-profit corporation organized under Chapter 180 of the Massachusetts 



General Laws.  No assignment, by the Tenant, shall be contrary to the legislation herein 
referred to as Chapter 40 of the Acts of 2019. 

h. Tax Ownership. For federal and state income tax purposes, Tenant alone shall be entitled 
to all of the tax attributes of ownership of the improvements, including, without 
limitation, the right to claim depreciation or cost recovery deductions and the right to 
claim the federal historic rehabilitation tax credit described in Section 47 of the Internal 
Revenue Code and the Massachusetts historic rehabilitation tax credit described in 
M.G.L. c.62, §6J, M.G.L. c.63, §38R and 830 C.M.R. §63.38R.1 et seq.  
 

20. REPORTS AND APPROVALS.  The Landlord and Tenant agree that in order for the Landlord to 
be satisfied that the Lease terms are being satisfied, the Tenant shall submit an annual report 
during the Preconstruction and Construction Periods.  The reports shall include information 
regarding the fundraising and financial status of the Project and the progress on the assessment 
and construction of the Project and shall conclude when the Project is completed and suitable for 
occupancy.  These reports shall be informational and only upon notification that the reports are a 
cause of concern to the Board of Selectmen shall the Tenant need to cease work on the Project.  
The Board of Selectmen shall not request a cessation of work unless the Board of Selectmen 
believes that the work is not consistent with the Approved Plans or otherwise is in violation of the 
terms and conditions of this Lease.  The Board of Selectmen shall provide approvals for 
significant structural work whenever a report includes a proposal for construction to be done on 
the Leased Premises that is not already shown in the Approved Plans.  Said approvals shall not be 
unreasonably withheld so as to hold up progress on the Project.  In the absence of an objection to 
proposed work the Tenant shall be allowed to continue with any work which has already begun. 
 

21. TENANT’S RIGHT TO MORTGAGE.  Without any approval by Landlord, Tenant shall have 
the right to borrow money secured by its interest in the Premises from any financial institution or 
other mortgage lender customarily engaged in the business of providing real estate financing, 
including but not limited to any commercial bank, insurance company, pension fund, equity fund, 
trust, savings bank, investment bank, or company in the business of “securitizing” loans or a so-
called conduit lender (any of the foregoing being an “Institutional Lender” or “Institutional 
Lenders”); and any Institutional Lender(s) holding any such mortgage shall have the right to 
assign such mortgage to any other Institutional Lender(s).  Any such mortgage granted by Tenant, 
including those referred to in the remainder of this Section 22, is hereinafter referred to as a 
“Leasehold Mortgage” and the Institutional Lender holding the same is referred to as the 
“Leasehold Mortgagee.”  All costs incurred in connection with a Leasehold Mortgage shall be 
paid by Tenant.  No Leasehold Mortgage now or hereafter constituting a lien upon Tenant’s 
leasehold or this Lease shall ever extend to or encumber the fee interest of Landlord including 
Landlord’s reversionary estate.  Tenant or the holder of a Leasehold Mortgage shall provide to 
Landlord a copy of all Leasehold Mortgages, together with the promissory note secured thereby 
and all associated loan documents. If the Leasehold Mortgagee shall forward to Landlord a 
written notice setting forth the name and address of the Leasehold Mortgagee, then until the time 
that such Leasehold Mortgage shall be satisfied of record or the Leasehold Mortgagee shall give 
to Landlord written notice that such Leasehold Mortgage has been satisfied: 
 

(a) No voluntary action by Tenant to cancel, surrender, terminate or modify this 
Lease shall be binding upon the Leasehold Mortgagee without its prior written consent, and 
Landlord shall not enter into an agreement with Tenant to amend, modify, terminate or cancel this 
Lease and shall not permit or accept a surrender of this Lease prior to the end of the Term 
without, in each case, the prior written consent of the Leasehold Mortgagee. In the event Tenant 
and Landlord desire to enter into any of the aforementioned agreements, it shall be the 
responsibility of Tenant to obtain the consent of the Leasehold Mortgagee. 



(b) If Landlord shall give any notice of default or of a condition which could lead to 
default (“Default Notice”) to Tenant, Landlord shall simultaneously give a copy of such Default 
Notice to the Leasehold Mortgagee at the address theretofore designated by the Leasehold 
Mortgagee.  Any such copy of a Default Notice shall be given in the same manner provided in the 
Lease for giving notices between Landlord and Tenant.  No Default Notice given by Landlord to 
Tenant shall be binding upon or affect the Leasehold Mortgagee unless a copy of such Default 
Notice shall be given to it as so provided.  In the case of an assignment of a Leasehold Mortgage 
or change in address of the Leasehold Mortgagee, the assignee or Leasehold Mortgagee, by 
written notice to Landlord, may change the address to which copies of Default Notices are to be 
sent.  Landlord shall not be bound to recognize any assignment of a Leasehold Mortgage unless 
and until Landlord shall have been given written notice thereof together with a copy of the 
executed assignment and the name and address of the assignee.  Thereafter, such assignee shall be 
deemed to be a Leasehold Mortgagee hereunder.  Landlord shall not exercise any right, power or 
remedy with respect to any default of Tenant under this Lease unless Landlord shall have given to 
the Leasehold Mortgagee a copy of the Default Notice as provided herein and such default shall 
not have been cured within the applicable grace period set forth in this Lease. 

(c) The Leasehold Mortgagee shall have the right to perform any term, covenant, or 
condition and to remedy any default by Tenant under this Lease within the applicable time period 
afforded Tenant, plus an additional period of thirty (30) days.  Landlord shall accept such 
performance with the same force and effect as if furnished by Tenant; provided, however, that if 
the default is not a default in the payment of money and is of a nature that possession of the 
Premises by the Leasehold Mortgagee is reasonably necessary for the Leasehold Mortgagee to 
remedy the default, the Leasehold Mortgagee shall be granted an additional period of time (not to 
exceed 90 days) within which to obtain possession of the Premises.  If a Leasehold Mortgagee 
becomes the holder of Tenant’s leasehold estate in the Premises, Landlord agrees that any 
judgments, claims or lawsuits obtained by Landlord against the Leasehold Mortgagee and arising 
under this Lease shall be satisfied solely out of the Leasehold Mortgagee’s interest in the 
Premises.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, a Leasehold 
Mortgagee shall in no event be required to cure or remedy any default (a “Non-Curable Default”) 
which is a default which is particular to Tenant and does not continue after the Leasehold 
Mortgagee succeeds to the interest of Tenant, such as but not limited to a bankruptcy by the 
Tenant or a misrepresentation by Tenant, and upon foreclosure or other acquisition of the 
Tenant’s interest in this Lease by the Leasehold Mortgagee or its designee, all Non-Curable 
Defaults shall be deemed to have been fully cured as to the Leasehold Mortgagee, its designee 
and their respective successors and assigns, but the foregoing shall not constitute a waiver by 
Landlord of such default with respect to Tenant or a release of Tenant with respect to any such 
default.  No Leasehold Mortgagee (or its designee as may have acquired Tenant’s leasehold estate 
through foreclosure) shall become personally liable under this Lease unless and until it becomes 
the holder of Tenant’s leasehold estate and then only as provided herein, and upon any 
assignment of this Lease by a Leasehold Mortgagee or its designee, the assignor (but not the 
assignee or any subsequent assignor, purchaser or transferee) shall be relieved of any further 
liability which may accrue under this Lease from and after (but not before) the date of such 
assignment, provided that the assignee shall execute and deliver to Landlord a recordable 
instrument of assumption wherein such assignee shall assume and agree to perform and observe 
the covenants and conditions in this Lease on Tenant’s part to be performed and observed 
thereafter arising, it being the intention of the parties that once the Leasehold Mortgagee (or such 
designee) shall succeed to Tenant’s interest under this Lease, a subsequent assignment by such 
Leasehold Mortgagee (or such designee) shall effect a release of its liability hereunder, except for 
liability which accrued prior to such assignment. 



(d) In the event of the termination of this Lease prior to its stated expiration date by 
reason of rejection of this Lease by Tenant in a bankruptcy proceeding or otherwise, notice 
thereof shall be given by Landlord to the Leasehold Mortgagee, together with a statement of all 
amounts then due to Landlord from Tenant under this Lease (other than any accelerated rents), 
and Landlord shall enter into a new lease of the Premises with the Leasehold Mortgagee or, at the 
request of such Leasehold Mortgagee, with a corporation or other entity formed by or on behalf of 
such Leasehold Mortgagee (which corporation or other entity shall, when identified to Landlord 
by Leasehold Mortgagee, be included within the meaning of “Leasehold Mortgagee” as used in 
this Section), for the remainder of the term, effective as of the date of such termination, at the 
Base Rent and upon the covenants, agreements, terms, options, provisions and limitations herein 
contained and, to the extent possible, with the same priority as this Lease, provided such 
Leasehold Mortgagee makes written request to Landlord for such new lease within sixty (60) days 
from the date it received notice of such termination.  Landlord shall be under no obligation to 
remove from the Premises Tenant or anyone holding by, through or under Tenant or any other 
occupant whose interest is not in privity of estate with the interest to be acquired by the Leasehold 
Mortgagee under such new lease, and the new tenant shall take subject to the possessory rights, if 
any, of such tenants or occupants and (i) any and all liens and encumbrances in effect on the date 
of this Lease; (ii) any easement, right of way or other agreement not constituting a lien which 
Landlord shall have approved and entered into during the term of and in accordance with the 
terms of this Lease; (iii) any other encumbrances which Landlord shall have entered into or 
approved under and in accordance with the terms of the Lease; (iv) the lien of taxes on the 
Premises which are not yet due and payable, and (v) any other lien or encumbrance created or 
caused by Tenant.  It is specifically acknowledged and agreed that all covenants, duties and 
obligations of Tenant hereunder shall survive the execution of any new lease between Landlord 
and the Leasehold Mortgagee (or its designee) pursuant to this sub-paragraph (d) and that such 
execution shall not release or be deemed to release Tenant from any liability for failure to perform 
any such covenant, duty or obligation.  Upon Landlord’s entering into such a new lease, Landlord 
shall assign all its rights, title and interest, as landlord, under any subleases by Tenant of the 
Premises or any portion thereof to the Leasehold Mortgagee and Landlord agrees not to terminate, 
modify or take any action which would otherwise affect any such subleases while the Leasehold 
Mortgagee retains its right to enter into a new lease as hereinabove provided.  In the event more 
than a single Leasehold Mortgagee shall make a request for a new lease hereunder, the Leasehold 
Mortgagee senior in lien priority shall have the prior right to a new lease and the certification of 
such priority from a title company duly licensed to do business in Massachusetts shall be 
conclusively binding on all parties concerned.   

(e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease, any Leasehold Mortgagee 
(or any unrelated purchaser at a foreclosure sale or an assignee under an assignment in lieu of 
foreclosure, directly or indirectly, is wholly owned and controlled by such Leasehold Mortgagee) 
may acquire title to the Premises by foreclosure or a transfer in lieu of foreclosure without any 
consent or approval by Landlord.   

(f) In the event of the termination of this Lease prior to its stated expiration date by 
reason of rejection of this Lease by Tenant in a bankruptcy proceeding or otherwise, notice 
thereof shall be given by Landlord to the Leasehold Mortgagee, together with a statement of all 
amounts then due to Landlord from Tenant under this Lease (other than any accelerated rents), 
and Landlord shall enter into a new lease of the Premises with the Leasehold Mortgagee or, at the 
request of such Leasehold Mortgagee, with a corporation or other entity formed by or on behalf 
of such Leasehold Mortgagee or any unrelated purchaser at a foreclosure sale or an assignee 
under an assignment in lieu of foreclosure (which corporation or other entity shall, when 
identified to Landlord by Leasehold Mortgagee, be included within the meaning of “Leasehold 



Mortgagee” as used in this Section), for the remainder of the term, effective as of the date of such 
termination, at the Base Rent and upon the covenants, agreements, terms, options, provisions and 
limitations herein contained and, to the extent possible, with the same priority as this Lease, 
provided such Leasehold Mortgagee makes written request to Landlord for such new lease within 
sixty (60) days from the date it received notice of such termination. 

 
(g) Landlord agrees at any time and from time to time, upon not less than ten (10) 

days prior written notice, to execute, acknowledge and deliver without charge to any Leasehold 
Mortgagee, or to any prospective Leasehold Mortgagee designated by either Tenant or any 
Leasehold Mortgagee, or to any prospective purchaser of Tenant’s leasehold interest designated 
by Tenant (1) a statement in writing stating that this Lease is in full force and effect and 
unmodified (or if there have been any modifications, identifying the same by the date thereof and 
specifying the nature thereof), that no notice of default or notice of termination of this Lease has 
been served on Tenant (or if Landlord had served such notice, Landlord shall provide a copy of 
such notice or state that the same has been revoked, if such be the case), that to the Landlord’s 
knowledge no default exists under this Lease or state or condition that, with the giving of notice, 
the passage of time, or both, would become a default (or if any such default does exist, specifying 
the same), and the date to which the Rent and other amounts due under this Lease have been paid 
and any other information as may be reasonably requested, and (2) reasonable modification to this 
Lease requested by prospective Leasehold Mortgagees that do not alter the basic economic terms 
or materially and adversely affect Landlord’s rights, obligations and remedies.   
 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have set their hands and seals as of the date first written above 
 
TOWN OF MEDIFELD Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. 
By its Board of Selectmen 
 
By: ____________________     By: ____________________   

Name:                Jean Mineo, its President  
Title:  Chairman             Hereunto duly authorized 

 



EXHIBIT A 
PLAN OF LEASED PREMISES 

 
  



 
Addendum A – Stages of Lease 

 
1. PRECONSTRUCTION PERIOD: 
 
 A. The parties agree that in order for the Tenant to fulfill their obligations under the terms of 
this Lease, they will need to secure funding.  The Landlord agrees to give the Tenant the time to secure 
this funding.  The Tenant agrees to work diligently to secure funding so that there are no unnecessary  
delays. 
 B.  The Tenant agrees that on an annual basis, the Landlord shall have the option to privately 
audit the fundraising efforts of the Tenant for the purpose of affirming that the Tenant is securing the 
proper funding to move the Project forward. 
 C.  The parties agree that should the Landlord have concerns about the ability, of the Tenant, 
to secure the necessary funding for the Project, then those concerns shall be brought to the Tenant. 
 D.   The Construction Phase shall not commence until such time as the Tenant has secured 
sufficient funding (including contributions, loans and tax credit equity) to pay for costs of construction of 
the Project.   
 E. Fundraising for operations shall be ongoing throughout the entirety of the Lease. 
 F.   The parties agree that in order for the Tenant to adequately implement the changes 
necessary to transform the Leased Premises, the Tenant will need a period of time to assess the site. 
 G. The Landlord agrees that during the Preconstruction Period the Tenant, and its 
consultants, which shall include, designers, architects, construction personnel and all other necessary 
individuals necessary to properly evaluate the Leased Premises, shall have use and access to the Leased 
Premises. 
 H.  Tenant agrees to have insurance which adequately insures any individuals who enter the 
Leased Premises, and to verify that those individuals have proper insurance as well, with the Landlord as 
additional insured.   
 I.  Landlord agrees that the Tenant may investigate the fitness of the Leased Premises for 
their particular purpose of use and to verify that the plans under consideration can be implemented. 
 J.   Both parties agree that should any major structural changes be necessary to investigate a 
proposed use that the Landlord shall be notified, and the Landlord’s consent shall be obtained.  See 
Section 20 for reports and approvals.  Landlord agrees not to unreasonably withhold said consent. 
 K.  The Tenant will make reasonable efforts to allow the ongoing use and enjoyment of the 
Leased Premises by the Town, their agents and assigns, during the Preconstruction Phase of the Project, at 
no additional expense to the Tenant; and, with full agreement that the Tenant will be indemnified and held 
harmless for any damage to person or property as a result of said usage.  
             L.  The initial assessment may continue until the Construction Phase begins. 
 
2. CONSTRUCTION PERIOD: 
 A. The parties agree that in order for the Tenant to adequately renovate the Leased Premises, they 
will need a period of time to perform construction on the site. 
 B. Landlord agrees that during this renovation period the Tenant, and its contractors, which shall 
include, designers, architects, construction personnel and all other necessary individuals which are 
necessary to properly prosecute the Project, shall have the ability to perform construction on the Leased 
Premises. 
 C. Tenant agrees to have insurance which adequately insures any individuals who enter, or 
perform work, on the premises, and to verify that those individuals are properly insured as well. 
 D. Tenant agrees that the Landlord may investigate the work being done on the premises. 
 E.  Both parties agree that should any major structural changes be necessary, that the Landlord 
shall be notified, and their consent shall be obtained.  Landlord agrees not to unreasonably withhold said 
consent. 



 F.  The Construction Period shall continue until the grand opening of the Cultural center, that date 
to be determined by the Tenant once construction is complete. 
 
3.  OCCUPANCY PERIOD: 
 
 A. During this period, once all construction has been completed, the parties agree that the only 
remaining obligation of the Tenant shall be to use the Leased Premises in the manner set forth in the 
Lease and to comply with all of its covenants in the Lease related to operation of the Leased Premises. 
 B.  The Occupancy phase shall continue from the date of the grand opening until such time as the 
Tenant or Landlord decides that this Lease shall terminate. 
 
 
TOWN OF MEDFIELD Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. 
By its Board of Selectmen 
 
             
(Name, Chairman)       By its President, so duly authorized 
 
 



Bullet Point Lease Agreement Summary 
 
 

1.  PARTIES:  Town of Medfield ((“Landlord)”) and Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. 
((“Tenant)”), to be assigned to another entity as project progresses. 

2. LEASED PREMISES:  The land and buildings shown on Exhibit A.  
3. TERM:  99 Years 
4. PURPOSE AND USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES: 

a. Offices of nonprofit and educational organizations; 
b. Classroom instruction; 
c. Artist studios and art gallery; 
d. Public events, including fundraising events, meetings open to the public, staged 
productions and similar events; 
e. During the Lease term, Tenant and its employees, agents, representatives and invitees 
shall have the right to use in common with others lawfully entitled thereto the grounds and 
parking areas adjacent to the Buildings. 
 

5. PROHIBITTED PURPOSE/USES: 
6. RENT: One Dollar per Year 
7. ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS IN LIEU OF RENT 
8. HEAT, UTILITIES, WATER AND SEWER 
9. OBLIGATION TO MAINTAIN AND KEEP IN GOOD REPAIR, CONDITION OF 

LEASED PREMISES; MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 
10. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR: 
11.10. INSURANCE 
12.11. INDEMNIFICATION OF LANDLORD 
13.12. TENANTS DEFAULT (Definition) 
14.13. PROVISIONS FOR NOTICE OF DEFAULT AND OPPORTUNITY TO CURE 
15.14. LANDLORD’S REMEDIES UPON TENANT’S DEFAULT 
16.15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
17.16. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES 
18.17. SUBORDINATION 
19.18. ARBITRATION 
20.19. MISCELLANEOUS TERMS 
20. REPORTS AND APPROVALS 
21. TENANT’S RIGHT TO MORTGAGE 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman



Lease Agreement 
 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Lease”) is made on the ____ day of    

_____________ 2020. 
 
The Landlord hereby agrees to lease to the Tenant and the Tenant hereby agrees to hire and take from the 
Landlord, the Leased Premises described below pursuant to the terms and conditions specified herein: 
 

                        
               

                 
 Medfield, MA 02052 Medfield, MA  02052 
 

WHEREAS, Town purchased and owns former Medfield State Hospital property    (the “MSH 
Property”), including the former Chapel and Infirmary which are currently vacant and not being put to 
public or other productive use and Town desires that these buildings be preserved and adaptively reused 
to benefit community. 
 
WHEREAS, Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. is a duly-organized, non-profit whose purpose is to 
preserve and reuse the Chapel and Infirmary for a performing arts and education center.  Specifically, the 
properties included are: the Lee Chapel and the Infirmary (Buildings 24 and 25 at the former Medfield 
State Hospital) which will be connected by a new shared lobby entrance. The rehabilitation of the Lee 
Chapel and the Infirmary and the construction of the new shared lobby is referred to herein as the 
“Project”.  The land surrounding the buildings shall be included in the Lease Premises, specifically those 
grounds identified on the plan attached to this Lease as Exhibit A. 
 
WHEREAS, voters at Medfield’s October 28, 2019 Special Town Meeting authorized the Board of 
Selectmen to lease the former Chapel and Infirmary to a public or private entity for said purpose and to 
petition the General Court for special legislation to provide authorization therefor. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Selectmen did file a petition with the General Court for special legislation and 
the General Court enacted Chapter 40 of the Acts of 2019 providing said authorization. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing factual recitals Landlord and Tenant hereby agree 
as follows: 
 

1. LANDLORD: Town of Medfield, TENANT:  Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc., 
 municipal corporation  a Massachusetts non-profit corporation 
ADDRESS:  PO Box 315 ADDRESS:  3 Alder Road 
 Medfield, MA 02052 Medfield, MA  02052 
 

2. LEASED PREMISES  AND APPURTENANCES.  
a. The Leased Premises are shown on the plan hereto attached as an Exhibit A  (the “Lease 

Plan”). 
b. The Tenant shall have, as appurtenant to the Leased Premises, a right of pedestrian and 

vehicular access to the Leased Premises over the MSH Property from public ways 
abutting the MSH Property.  Such access shall be over the roadways driveways and 
sidewalks on the MSH Property, provided that such roadways, driveways and sidewalks 
may be relocated at the discretion of the Landlord so long as (i) such relocated roadways, 
driveways and sidewalks provide reasonably comparable pedestrian and vehicular access 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Tab stops:  1.44 , Left  Not at 
1.31

Formatted: Tab stops:  1.25 , Left  Not at 
1.31

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Normal, Tab stops: Not at  1.25
  3.88

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Tab stops:  1.44 , Left  Not at 
1.31

Formatted: Tab stops:  1.25 , Left  Not at 
1.31

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman



to that available as of the date hereof and (ii) the Tenant continues to have pedestrian and 
vehicular access to the Leased Premises during such time as the relocated roadways, 
driveways and sidewalks are being constructed. 

c. The Tenant shall have, as appurtenant to the Leased Premises, a right to install utility 
lines for water, sewer, electricity, gas, telecommunications and the like to serve the 
Leased Premises over the MSH Property from public ways abutting the MSH Property.  
Such utilities shall be installed in such locations as may be reasonably approved by the 
Landlord.  Tenant’s utility lines may be relocated at the expense of the Landlord or its 
other lessees of portions of the MSH Property so long as (i) such relocated utility lines 
are comparable in size and capacity to the then-existing utility lines serving the Leased 
Premises and (ii) the Tenant’s then-existing utility lines are not disrupted during such 
time as the relocated utility lines are being constructed. The Landlord shall cause its other 
lessees of portions of the MSH Property to cooperate with the Tenant in the installation 
of shared utility lines, provided that Tenant pays a reasonable proportion of the costs of 
such shared utility lines.  

 
3. TERM.  

a. The term of the Lease shall be for a period of 99 years commencing on [________, 2020] 
and ending on [________, 2119] unless sooner terminated as hereinafter provided. If a 
new lease has not been executed at the end of the term of this Lease, this Lease shall be 
extended with the same terms and conditions except that each party shall have the right to 
terminate the Lease by giving at least ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to the 
other party.  

b. The parties agree that this Lease shall be implemented in three separate phases: 
1. The first phase shall be referred to as the “   Preconstruction Period .” 
2. The second phase shall be referred to as the “   Construction 
Period .” 
3. The final/third phase shall be referred to        
               “Occupancy Period.” 

 
c.           The three above-referenced        

phases are described in Addendum A to this Lease which shall define 
additional terms which apply only to those phases.  The Preconstruction Period shall refer 
to that period of time necessary to raise the funds needed to begin the construction of the 
Project, to complete plans and specifications for the Project and to execute a construction 
contract for the Project.  Once the parties have mutually agreed that the    
Preconstruction Period has been completed, they will indicate their agreement in writing 

        (the “Construction Approval”).  The Construction Approval will 
                        

    include an acknowledgement of the approved plans and 
specifications, the approved sources and uses and the approved construction contract, at 
which point the Construction Period will begin. 

d. Prior to the commencement of the Construction Period, the Board of Selectmen shall 
have the opportunity to review the plans and specifications for the Project, the sources 
and uses for the Project and the construction contract for the Project for the purpose of 
determining the financial viability of the Project and the conformance of the proposed 
Project with the terms of this Lease.   The     Construction 
Approval shall                   evidence the  

    approval by the Board of Selectmen of the     

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman



      foregoing, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed. 

e. The Tenant shall have        a period of up to seven 
years to complete the Preconstruction Period and obtain the Construction Approval (as it 
may be extended, the “Construction Commencement Deadline”).  The Construction 
Commencement Deadline shall be                  
                          

extended by up to three one-year periods upon request of the Tenant      
            in writing to the Landlord made at least 30 

days before the then-current Construction Commencement Deadline, which request shall 
describe the progress made by the Tenant  to date toward achieving the Construction 
Approval.  Unless the Landlord reasonably determines prior to the then-current 
Construction Commencement Deadline that Tenant’s progress toward Construction 
Approval is inadequate, the Construction Commencement Deadline shall be deemed 
extended by such one-year period.  The Construction Commencement Deadline shall not 
be extended for more than three consecutive one-year period except by written 
amendment to this Lease signed by both the Tenant and the Landlord.  

 
f.    If the Tenant has not obtained the 

Construction Approval on or before the Construction Commencement Deadline, this 
Lease shall automatically terminate.  
 

4. PURPOSE AND USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES:  
 
Tenant and its subtenants, employees, agents, representatives and invitees may use the Leased 
Premises for the following uses: 
 

a. Offices of nonprofit and educational organizations; 
b. Classroom instruction; 
c. Artist studios and art gallery; 
d. Public events, including fundraising events, meetings open to the public, staged 

productions and similar events; 
e. During the Lease term, Tenant and its employees, agents, representatives and 

invitees shall have the right to use in common with others lawfully entitled 
thereto the publicly accessible grounds and parking areas adjacent to the 
Buildings. 

f. The Chapel shall include flexible seating for about 325 to host live music 
performances with opportunities for film, storytelling, literary, and other cultural 
events. The Chapel will remain a community resource with opportunities for 
educational, arts, business and civic group meetings and special events. A 
catering kitchen and concessions will be installed to support these activities. 

g. The grounds will accommodate live performance, outdoor movies and events 
with opportunities for festivals, markets, public art, and the like.  

h. The former infirmary shall be a center of education for youth and 
adults with studios for private and group lessons in the visual and performing 
arts. 

 
  PROHIBITED PURPOSE/USES. It is agreed and understood that the 

Leased Premises shall be used for purposes detailed in Section 4 above and no other 
purposes without the Landlord’s prior written approval. 

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 2 
Numbering Style: a, b, c,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.75   Indent
at:  1 , Tab stops:  1 , Left  Not at  1.25

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman



 
5.   As long as the Tenant shall engage in permitted uses of the property as defined in Section 4 

above, it shall peaceably hold the rented premises without hindrance or interruption by the 
Landlord, or any other persons acting through or under the Landlord. 
 

6.   RENT. The Tenant shall pay nominal rent of One ($1.00) Dollar per year and in addition, all 
necessary expenses associated with the occupancy of the premises including, but not limited to 
water and sewer charges, telephone, utility, electric, and heating expenses.  
 

7.  ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS IN LIEU OF RENT. 
a. Maintenance/Repairs: The Tenant shall undertake all usual maintenance and repair of the 

Leased Premises, along with the surrounding grounds as defined on the attached Exhibit, 
with reasonable cooperation and support from the Town, at Tenant’s sole cost and 
expense. 

b. Improvements: The Tenant shall pay for any and all improvements to the Leased 
Premises made in accordance with the purposes set forth in Section 4 of this Lease and 
Tenant shall save and hold Landlord free of and harmless from any cost, charge, expense 
or lien arising from or on account of such work. 

c. It is agreed and understood that the Tenant may make alterations, additions, or 
improvements to, or install any fixtures on the Leased Premises, in accordance with the 
Approved Plans (as defined below) or, with respect to material alterations, additions or 
improvement not shown on the Approved Plans, as otherwise approved by the Board of 
Selectmen, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

d. It is understood that there shall be prior review and approval from the Board of 
Selectmen before significant structural work is undertaken.  The review and approval 
shall determine the financial viability, the contractor’s proposal and the contractor’s 
fitness for the Project and reputation.  The parties agree that this review shall occur as 
needed. The plans and specifications for the Project, once approved by the Board of 
Selectmen shall be referred to as the “Approved Plans”.  Any material changes to the 
structure or systems of the Project from the Approved Plans shall also be subject to 
approval by the Board of Selectmen and the Approved Plans shall be deemed to include 
any such changes approved by the Board of Selectmen as well as any changes not 
requiring approval by the Board of Selectmen. This provision shall apply to all Tenant’s 
undertakings both as specified within the body of the Lease Agreement and in Addendum 
A.  

 
8.  HEAT, UTILITIES, WATER AND SEWER. Tenant shall pay all costs as set forth in Section 

6.  
 

9. 9. OBLIGATION TO MAINTAIN AND KEEP IN GOOD REPAIR. CONDITION OF LEASED 
PREMISES; MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR. The Tenant, at its expense, shall make 

all necessary repairs and replacements to the Leased Premises, including the repair and 
replacement of pipes, electrical wiring, heating and plumbing systems and appliances and their 
appurtenances. The quality and class of all repairs and replacements shall be consistent with the 
purposes set forth in Section 4 of this Lease.  The parties agree that this obligation shall not begin 
until the Tenant begins undertaking work on the premises that.  The parties agree that the 
Tenant’s obligation of care and maintenance shall extend to those surrounding grounds which are 

shown on the        Lease Plan. The Landlord shall retain all 
obligations with respect to the infrastructure of the greater       MSH 
Property not otherwise expressly imposed on the Tenant hereunder. 

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Tab stops: Not at  1.25    3.88

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Italic



 
10.   INSURANCE 

a. By Landlord. Landlord shall at all times during the term of this Lease, at its expense, 
insure and keep in effect on the building in which the Leased Premises is located casualty 
insurance with extended coverage. The Tenant shall not permit any use of the Leased 
Premises which will make voidable any insurance on the property of which the Leased 
Premises are a part, or on the contents of said property.  

b. By Tenant. Tenant shall, at its expense, during the term hereof, maintain and deliver to 
Landlord public liability and property damage insurance policies with respect to the 
Leased Premises. Such policies shall name the Landlord and Tenant as insureds and have 
agreed upon limits for coverage including injury or death to any one person, for any one 
accident and/or damage to property. Such policies shall be in whatever forms and with 
such insurance companies as are reasonably satisfactory to Landlord, shall name the 
Landlord as additional insured, and shall provide for at least ten days’ prior notice to 
Landlord of cancellation.  The parties agree that this obligation shall not begin until the 
Tenant begins undertaking work on the premises that requires insurance to be in place or 
until the Tenant’s representative begin assessing the property, whichever occurs first. 

 
11.  INDEMNIFICATION OF LANDLORD. Protection of the personal property and contents of 

the Leased Premises are the sole responsibility of the Tenant. The Tenant waives any and all 
claims against the town as to personal property claims.  The parties agree that neither shall be 
held responsible for the negligent acts of the other.  To the extent that either party is found 
responsible for acts deemed negligent or criminal in nature, then they agree to indemnify and hold 
the other party harmless for any of those acts. In consideration of the Landlord’s agreement to 
lease the Leased Premises to Tenant, Tenant expressly waives in advance any and all rights to sue 
and releases any and all claims which it, its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, 
customers, invitees or visitors may have against the Town of Medfield or any of its officials or 
employees in any way arising from or connected with Tenant’s use of the Landlord’s property 
and Tenant further agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the Town of Medfield and its 
officials and employees to the fullest extent permitted by law from and against any and all 
liability, loss, damage or expense, including court costs and attorney’s fees arising from or 
connected with Tenant’s use of the Leased Premises, injury or damage suffered by any third part 
and/or Tenant’s violation of any term of this Agreement including but not limited to its failure to 
vacate Town property upon the termination of this Lease for any reason.  Tenant agrees to 
procure and maintain general liability insurance with affirmative contractual liability coverage to 
secure its obligations contained in this Section. 
 

12.  TENANTS DEFAULT (DEFINITION). As used in this Lease, Tenant’s default shall be 
defined as follows: 

a. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease if the premises are used in a manner 
inconsistent with Section 4 of this Lease. 

b. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease if it allows the Premises to be used for 
illegal purposes. 

c. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease if the corporate status is dissolved or 
ceases to exist. 

d. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease if it abandons the Premises. 
e. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease upon the filing of any bankruptcy action. 
f. Tenant shall be deemed in default of this Lease for failure to comply with those 

obligations set forth in Sections 4 and 6  through 10 of this Lease. 
 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Tab stops: Not at  1.25    3.88

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Italic

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: List Paragraph, Tab stops:  0.75 ,
Left   1 , Left  Not at  1.25

Formatted: List Paragraph, Tab stops:  1 ,
Left  Not at  1.25

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5 , Tab stops: Not
at  1.25    3.88

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: List Paragraph

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Italic

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  1



13.  PROVISION FOR NOTICE OF DEFAULT AND OPPORTUNITY TO CURE. The 
Landlord shall notify the Tenant in writing of any default. 

a. The Tenant shall have the opportunity to cure any default within a sixty (60) day period 
of time. 

b. After 60 days, should the parties still be unable to resolve a default, and should there 
remain a dispute about said default, then the parties shall agree to enter arbitration as 
defined under Section 18. 

c. Without any approval by Landlord, Tenant shall have the right to secure an equity 
investment from and to issue an equity interest to any commercial bank, insurance 
company, pension fund, equity fund, trust, savings bank, investment bank, or company in 
the business of investing in federal historic rehabilitation tax credits (an “Institutional 
Investor”).  Any such Institutional Investor holding such an interest is referred to as the 
“Investor.”  All costs incurred in connection with securing an Investor shall be paid by 
Tenant.  If Tenant shall forward to Landlord a written notice setting forth the name and 
address of an Investor, then if Landlord shall give a default notice to Tenant, Landlord 
shall simultaneously give a copy of such default notice to the Investor at the address 
contained in such notice from Tenant or such alternative address thereafter designated by 
the Investor.  Any such copy of a default notice shall be given in the same manner 
provided in this Lease for giving notices between Landlord and Tenant.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, any event of default arising pursuant to 
Section 12 hereof may be cured by the Investor or its affiliates or designees, on behalf of 
Tenant, and such cure shall be accepted by Landlord on the same basis as if made by 
Tenant itself. 

 
14.  LANDLORD’S REMEDIES UPON TENANT’S DEFAULT. In the event of any breach of 

this Lease by the Tenant, which shall not have been cured within the appropriate time period, then 
the Landlord, besides other rights and remedies it may have, shall have the immediate right of 
reentry. If the Landlord elects to reenter as herein provided, or should it take possession pursuant 
to any notice provided for by law, it may terminate the Lease. 

 
15.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. Tenant, at its expense, shall promptly 

comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, orders and regulations, and with all lawful 
directives of public officers, which impose any duty upon it or Landlord with respect to the 
Leased Premises. The Tenant at its expense shall obtain all required licenses or permits for the 
conduct of its business within the terms of this Lease, or for the making of repairs, alterations, 
improvements, or additions. Landlord, when necessary, will join with the Tenant in applying for 
all such permits or licenses.  

 
16.  DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES. If the Building(s) located on the Leased Premises is/are 

damaged by fire other casualty, without Tenant’s fault, and the damage is so extensive as to 
effectively constitute a total destruction of the property or building(s), this Lease shall terminate.  
Should this Lease terminate, under this Section, then there shall not be continuing obligation by 
and between the parties. 

 
17.  SUBORDINATION. This Lease, and the Tenant’s leasehold interest, is and shall be 

subordinate, subject and inferior to any and all liens and encumbrances now and thereafter placed 
on the Leased Premises by the Landlord, any and all extensions of such liens and encumbrances 
and all advances paid under such liens and encumbrances.  

 

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman



18.  ARBITRATION. Should any matter develop which appears beyond the scope of this Lease, 
or is subject to a difference of interpretation, the parties   shall agree to enter into 
arbitration as a means to resolve the outstanding issue.               

                         
 

19.  MISCELLANEOUS TERMS 
a. Notices. Any notice, statement, demand or other communication by one party to the 

other, shall be given by personal delivery or by mailing the same, postage prepaid, 
address to Tenant or to the Landlord at the addresses set forth above. 

b. Severability. If any Section or provision herein shall be adjudged invalid or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by operation of any applicable law, 
it shall not affect the validity of any other Section or provision, which shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

c. Waiver. The failure of either party to enforce any of the provisions of this Lease shall not 
be considered a waiver of that provision or the right of the party to thereafter enforce the 
provision. 

d. Complete Agreement. This Lease constitutes the entire understanding of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof and may not be modified except by an instrument in 
writing and signed by the parties. 

e. Successors. This Lease is binding on all parties who lawfully succeed to the rights to take 
the place of the Landlord or Tenant. 

f. No Individual Liability. It is agreed and understood that any and all members of the 
Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc., a non-profit corporation, shall not be held personally 
liable for the Corporation’s obligations hereunder. 

g. Assignment.  The Tenant shall have the right to assign this Lease, or to sublease the 
Leased Premises for all or a portion of the term hereof, to a limited partnership or limited 
liability company (a “Transferee”) for the purpose of securing funding or tax credits, 
provided that (i) the Landlord determines that the proposed Transferee is financially 
viable and otherwise suitable to perform hereunder, (ii) the Transferee agrees, in writing, 
to abide by all of the terms of the original Lease and ( iii) the manager or general partner 
of the Transferee is owned and controlled by Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. or 
another non-profit corporation organized under Chapter 180 of the Massachusetts 
General Laws.  No assignment, by the Tenant, shall be contrary to the legislation herein 
referred to as Chapter 40 of the Acts of 2019. 

h. Tax Ownership. For federal and state income tax purposes, Tenant alone shall be entitled 
to all of the tax attributes of ownership of the improvements, including, without 
limitation, the right to claim depreciation or cost recovery deductions and the right to 
claim the federal historic rehabilitation tax credit described in Section 47 of the Internal 
Revenue Code and the Massachusetts historic rehabilitation tax credit described in 
M.G.L. c.62, §6J, M.G.L. c.63, §38R and 830 C.M.R. §63.38R.1 et seq.  
 

20. REPORTS AND APPROVALS.  The Landlord and Tenant agree that in order for the 
Landlord to be satisfied that the Lease terms are being satisfied  , the Tenant shall submit an 
annual report during the Preconstruction and Construction Periods.  The reports shall include 
information regarding the fundraising and financial status of the Project and the progress on the 
assessment and construction of the Project and shall conclude when the Project is completed and 
suitable for occupancy.  These reports shall be informational and only upon notification that the 
reports are a cause of concern to the Board of Selectmen shall the Tenant need to cease work on 
the Project.  The Board of Selectmen shall not request a cessation of work unless the Board of 
Selectmen believes that the work is not consistent with the Approved Plans or otherwise is in 

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman



violation of the terms and conditions of this Lease.  The Board of Selectmen shall provide 
approvals for significant structural work whenever a report includes a proposal for 
construction to be done on the Leased Premises that is not already shown in the Approved Plans.  
Said approvals shall not be unreasonably withheld so as to hold up progress on the Project.  In the 
absence of an objection to proposed work the Tenant shall be allowed to continue with any work 
which has already begun. 
 

21. TENANT’S RIGHT TO MORTGAGE.  Without any approval by Landlord, Tenant 
shall have the right to borrow money secured by its interest in the Premises from any financial 
institution or other mortgage lender customarily engaged in the business of providing real estate 
financing, including but not limited to any commercial bank, insurance company, pension fund, 
equity fund, trust, savings bank, investment bank, or company in the business of “securitizing” 
loans or a so-called conduit lender (any of the foregoing being an “Institutional Lender” or 
“Institutional Lenders”); and any Institutional Lender(s) holding any such mortgage shall have the 
right to assign such mortgage to any other Institutional Lender(s).  Any such mortgage granted by 
Tenant, including those referred to in the remainder of this Section 22, is hereinafter referred to as 
a “Leasehold Mortgage” and the Institutional Lender holding the same is referred to as the 
“Leasehold Mortgagee.”  All costs incurred in connection with a Leasehold Mortgage shall be 
paid by Tenant.  No Leasehold Mortgage now or hereafter constituting a lien upon Tenant’s 
leasehold or this Lease shall ever extend to or encumber the fee interest of Landlord including 
Landlord’s reversionary estate.  Tenant or the holder of a Leasehold Mortgage shall provide to 
Landlord a copy of all Leasehold Mortgages, together with the promissory note secured thereby 
and all associated loan documents. If the Leasehold Mortgagee shall forward to Landlord a 
written notice setting forth the name and address of the Leasehold Mortgagee, then until the time 
that such Leasehold Mortgage shall be satisfied of record or the Leasehold Mortgagee shall give 
to Landlord written notice that such Leasehold Mortgage has been satisfied: 
 

(a) No voluntary action by Tenant to cancel, surrender, terminate or modify this 
Lease shall be binding upon the Leasehold Mortgagee without its prior written consent, and 
Landlord shall not enter into an agreement with Tenant to amend, modify, terminate or cancel this 
Lease and shall not permit or accept a surrender of this Lease prior to the end of the Term 
without, in each case, the prior written consent of the Leasehold Mortgagee. In the event Tenant 
and Landlord desire to enter into any of the aforementioned agreements, it shall be the 
responsibility of Tenant to obtain the consent of the Leasehold Mortgagee. 

(b) If Landlord shall give any notice of default or of a condition which could lead to 
default (“Default Notice”) to Tenant, Landlord shall simultaneously give a copy of such Default 
Notice to the Leasehold Mortgagee at the address theretofore designated by the Leasehold 
Mortgagee.  Any such copy of a Default Notice shall be given in the same manner provided in the 
Lease for giving notices between Landlord and Tenant.  No Default Notice given by Landlord to 
Tenant shall be binding upon or affect the Leasehold Mortgagee unless a copy of such Default 
Notice shall be given to it as so provided.  In the case of an assignment of a Leasehold Mortgage 
or change in address of the Leasehold Mortgagee, the assignee or Leasehold Mortgagee, by 
written notice to Landlord, may change the address to which copies of Default Notices are to be 
sent.  Landlord shall not be bound to recognize any assignment of a Leasehold Mortgage unless 
and until Landlord shall have been given written notice thereof together with a copy of the 
executed assignment and the name and address of the assignee.  Thereafter, such assignee shall be 
deemed to be a Leasehold Mortgagee hereunder.  Landlord shall not exercise any right, power or 
remedy with respect to any default of Tenant under this Lease unless Landlord shall have given to 
the Leasehold Mortgagee a copy of the Default Notice as provided herein and such default shall 
not have been cured within the applicable grace period set forth in this Lease. 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Numbered  Level: 1 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3,   Start at: 1 
Alignment: Left  Aligned at:  0.25   Indent
at:  0.5



(c) The Leasehold Mortgagee shall have the right to perform any term, covenant, or 
condition and to remedy any default by Tenant under this Lease within the applicable time period 
afforded Tenant, plus an additional period of thirty (30) days.  Landlord shall accept such 
performance with the same force and effect as if furnished by Tenant; provided, however, that if 
the default is not a default in the payment of money and is of a nature that possession of the 
Premises by the Leasehold Mortgagee is reasonably necessary for the Leasehold Mortgagee to 
remedy the default, the Leasehold Mortgagee shall be granted an additional period of time (not to 
exceed 90 days) within which to obtain possession of the Premises.  If a Leasehold Mortgagee 
becomes the holder of Tenant’s leasehold estate in the Premises, Landlord agrees that any 
judgments, claims or lawsuits obtained by Landlord against the Leasehold Mortgagee and arising 
under this Lease shall be satisfied solely out of the Leasehold Mortgagee’s interest in the 
Premises.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, a Leasehold 
Mortgagee shall in no event be required to cure or remedy any default (a “Non-Curable Default”) 
which is a default which is particular to Tenant and does not continue after the Leasehold 
Mortgagee succeeds to the interest of Tenant, such as but not limited to a bankruptcy by the 
Tenant or a misrepresentation by Tenant, and upon foreclosure or other acquisition of the 
Tenant’s interest in this Lease by the Leasehold Mortgagee or its designee, all Non-Curable 
Defaults shall be deemed to have been fully cured as to the Leasehold Mortgagee, its designee 
and their respective successors and assigns, but the foregoing shall not constitute a waiver by 
Landlord of such default with respect to Tenant or a release of Tenant with respect to any such 
default.  No Leasehold Mortgagee (or its designee as may have acquired Tenant’s leasehold estate 
through foreclosure) shall become personally liable under this Lease unless and until it becomes 
the holder of Tenant’s leasehold estate and then only as provided herein, and upon any 
assignment of this Lease by a Leasehold Mortgagee or its designee, the assignor (but not the 
assignee or any subsequent assignor, purchaser or transferee) shall be relieved of any further 
liability which may accrue under this Lease from and after (but not before) the date of such 
assignment, provided that the assignee shall execute and deliver to Landlord a recordable 
instrument of assumption wherein such assignee shall assume and agree to perform and observe 
the covenants and conditions in this Lease on Tenant’s part to be performed and observed 
thereafter arising, it being the intention of the parties that once the Leasehold Mortgagee (or such 
designee) shall succeed to Tenant’s interest under this Lease, a subsequent assignment by such 
Leasehold Mortgagee (or such designee) shall effect a release of its liability hereunder, except for 
liability which accrued prior to such assignment. 

(d) In the event of the termination of this Lease prior to its stated expiration date by 
reason of rejection of this Lease by Tenant in a bankruptcy proceeding or otherwise, notice 
thereof shall be given by Landlord to the Leasehold Mortgagee, together with a statement of all 
amounts then due to Landlord from Tenant under this Lease (other than any accelerated rents), 
and Landlord shall enter into a new lease of the Premises with the Leasehold Mortgagee or, at the 
request of such Leasehold Mortgagee, with a corporation or other entity formed by or on behalf of 
such Leasehold Mortgagee (which corporation or other entity shall, when identified to Landlord 
by Leasehold Mortgagee, be included within the meaning of “Leasehold Mortgagee” as used in 
this Section), for the remainder of the term, effective as of the date of such termination, at the 
Base Rent and upon the covenants, agreements, terms, options, provisions and limitations herein 
contained and, to the extent possible, with the same priority as this Lease, provided such 
Leasehold Mortgagee makes written request to Landlord for such new lease within sixty (60) days 
from the date it received notice of such termination.  Landlord shall be under no obligation to 
remove from the Premises Tenant or anyone holding by, through or under Tenant or any other 
occupant whose interest is not in privity of estate with the interest to be acquired by the Leasehold 
Mortgagee under such new lease, and the new tenant shall take subject to the possessory rights, if 
any, of such tenants or occupants and (i) any and all liens and encumbrances in effect on the date 



of this Lease; (ii) any easement, right of way or other agreement not constituting a lien which 
Landlord shall have approved and entered into during the term of and in accordance with the 
terms of this Lease; (iii) any other encumbrances which Landlord shall have entered into or 
approved under and in accordance with the terms of the Lease; (iv) the lien of taxes on the 
Premises which are not yet due and payable, and (v) any other lien or encumbrance created or 
caused by Tenant.  It is specifically acknowledged and agreed that all covenants, duties and 
obligations of Tenant hereunder shall survive the execution of any new lease between Landlord 
and the Leasehold Mortgagee (or its designee) pursuant to this sub-paragraph ( d) and that such 
execution shall not release or be deemed to release Tenant from any liability for failure to perform 
any such covenant, duty or obligation.  Upon Landlord’s entering into such a new lease, Landlord 
shall assign all its rights, title and interest, as landlord, under any subleases by Tenant of the 
Premises or any portion thereof to the Leasehold Mortgagee and Landlord agrees not to terminate, 
modify or take any action which would otherwise affect any such subleases while the Leasehold 
Mortgagee retains its right to enter into a new lease as hereinabove provided.  In the event more 
than a single Leasehold Mortgagee shall make a request for a new lease hereunder, the Leasehold 
Mortgagee senior in lien priority shall have the prior right to a new lease and the certification of 
such priority from a title company duly licensed to do business in Massachusetts shall be 
conclusively binding on all parties concerned.   

( e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease, any Leasehold Mortgagee 
(or any unrelated purchaser at a foreclosure sale or an assignee under an assignment in lieu of 
foreclosure, directly or indirectly, is wholly owned and controlled by such Leasehold Mortgagee) 
may acquire title to the Premises by foreclosure or a transfer in lieu of foreclosure without any 
consent or approval by Landlord.   

( f) In the event of the termination of this Lease prior to its stated expiration date by 
reason of rejection of this Lease by Tenant in a bankruptcy proceeding or otherwise, notice 
thereof shall be given by Landlord to the Leasehold Mortgagee, together with a statement of all 
amounts then due to Landlord from Tenant under this Lease (other than any accelerated rents), 
and Landlord shall enter into a new lease of the Premises with the Leasehold Mortgagee or, at the 
request of such Leasehold Mortgagee, with a corporation or other entity formed by or on behalf 
of such Leasehold Mortgagee or any unrelated purchaser at a foreclosure sale or an assignee 
under an assignment in lieu of foreclosure (which corporation or other entity shall, when 
identified to Landlord by Leasehold Mortgagee, be included within the meaning of “Leasehold 
Mortgagee” as used in this Section), for the remainder of the term, effective as of the date of such 
termination, at the Base Rent and upon the covenants, agreements, terms, options, provisions and 
limitations herein contained and, to the extent possible, with the same priority as this Lease, 
provided such Leasehold Mortgagee makes written request to Landlord for such new lease within 
sixty (60) days from the date it received notice of such termination. 

 
( g) Landlord agrees at any time and from time to time, upon not less than ten (10) 

days prior written notice, to execute, acknowledge and deliver without charge to any Leasehold 
Mortgagee, or to any prospective Leasehold Mortgagee designated by either Tenant or any 
Leasehold Mortgagee, or to any prospective purchaser of Tenant’s leasehold interest designated 
by Tenant (1) a statement in writing stating that this Lease is in full force and effect and 
unmodified (or if there have been any modifications, identifying the same by the date thereof and 
specifying the nature thereof), that no notice of default or notice of termination of this Lease has 
been served on Tenant (or if Landlord had served such notice, Landlord shall provide a copy of 
such notice or state that the same has been revoked, if such be the case), that to the Landlord’s 
knowledge no default exists under this Lease or state or condition that, with the giving of notice, 
the passage of time, or both, would become a default (or if any such default does exist, specifying 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman



the same), and the date to which the Rent and other amounts due under this Lease have been paid 
and any other information as may be reasonably requested, and (2) reasonable modification to this 
Lease requested by prospective Leasehold Mortgagees that do not alter the basic economic terms 
or materially and adversely affect Landlord’s rights, obligations and remedies.   
 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have set their hands and seals              
as of the date first written above 
 
TOWN OF MEDIFELD Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. 
By its Board of Selectmen 
 
                         
By: ____________________     By: ____________________   

Name                 :      
          Jean Mineo, its President     

Title:  Chairman             Hereunto duly authorized 
 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.25

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman



EXHIBIT A 
PLAN OF LEASED PREMISES 

 
  



 
Addendum A – Stages of Lease 

 
1.   PRECONSTRUCTION PERIOD: 
 
 A. The parties agree that in order for the Tenant to fulfill their obligations under the terms of 
this Lease, they will need to secure funding.  The Landlord agrees to give the Tenant the time to secure 
this funding.                        The Tenant agrees to 
work diligently to secure funding so that there are no unnecessary  delays. 
                                  

 
   B.  The Tenant agrees that on an annual basis, the Landlord shall have the option to 
privately audit the fundraising efforts of the Tenant for the purpose of affirming that the Tenant is 
securing the proper funding to move the Project forward. 
 C.  The parties agree that should the Landlord have concerns about the ability, of 
the Tenant, to secure the necessary funding for the Project, then those concerns shall be brought to the 
Tenant. 
               D.   The Construction Phase shall not 
commence until such time as the Tenant has secured sufficient         funding 
(including contributions, loans and tax credit equity) to  pay for costs of construction of the Project.   
 E. Fundraising for operations shall be ongoing throughout the entirety of the Lease. 
 
     

     F.   The parties agree that in order for the Tenant to adequately implement the 
changes necessary to transform the Leased Premises, the Tenant will need a period of time to assess 
the site. 
  G. The Landlord agrees that during     the Preconstruction Period the 
Tenant, and its consultants, which shall include, designers, architects, construction personnel and all 
other necessary individuals    necessary to properly evaluate the Leased Premises, shall 
have use and access to the Leased Premises. 
  H.  Tenant agrees to have insurance which adequately insures any individuals who enter the 

Leased Premises, and to verify that those individuals have proper insurance as well , with the 
Landlord as additional insured.   
  I.  Landlord agrees that the Tenant may investigate the fitness of the Leased 
Premises for their particular purpose of use  and to verify that the plans under consideration can be 
implemented. 
   J.   Both parties agree that should any major structural changes be necessary to investigate a 
proposed use that the Landlord shall be notified, and the Landlord’s consent shall be obtained.  See 
Section 20 for reports and approvals.  Landlord agrees not to unreasonably withhold said consent. 
                  
   K.  The Tenant will make reasonable efforts to allow the ongoing use and enjoyment of the 

Leased Premises by the Town, their agents and assigns, during the    
Preconstruction Phase of the Project, at no additional expense to the Tenant; and, with full 

agreement that the Tenant will be indemnified and held harmless for any damage to person or property as 
a result of said usage.  
                     L.  The initial assessment may continue until the 
Construction Phase begins. 
                       
 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Tab stops:  1 , Left

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman



 
2. CONSTRUCTION PERIOD: 
 A. The parties agree that in order for the Tenant to adequately renovate the Leased Premises, they 
will need a period of time to perform construction on the site. 
 B. Landlord agrees that during this renovation period the Tenant, and its contractors, which shall 
include, designers, architects, construction personnel and all other necessary individuals which are 
necessary to properly prosecute the Project, shall have the ability to perform construction on the Leased 
Premises. 
 C. Tenant agrees to have insurance which adequately insures any individuals who enter, or 
perform work, on the premises, and to verify that those individuals are properly insured as well. 
 D. Tenant agrees that the Landlord may investigate the work being done on the premises. 
 E.  Both parties agree that should any major structural changes be necessary, that the Landlord 
shall be notified, and their consent shall be obtained.  Landlord agrees not to unreasonably withhold said 
consent. 
 F.                
    The Construction Period shall continue until the grand opening of the Cultural center   

, that date to be determined by the Tenant once construction is complete. 
 
3.  OCCUPANCY PERIOD: 
 
 A. During this period, once all construction has been completed, the parties agree that the only 
remaining obligation of the Tenant shall be to use the Leased Premises in the manner          

set forth in the Lease and to comply with all of its covenants in the Lease related to operation of the 
Leased Premises. 
 B.  The Occupancy phase shall continue from the date of the grand opening until such time as the 
Tenant or Landlord decides that this Lease shall terminate. 
 
 
TOWN OF MEDFIELD Cultural Alliance of Medfield, Inc. 
By its Board of Selectmen 
 
             
(Name, Chairman)       By its President, so duly authorized 
 
 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

































































































































Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 1 of 13 

  

To complete this application, you will need information about your community's total year-
round housing units from the 2010 Census and the cumulative net increase in year-round 
housing units from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2019 (referred to below as 
"additional" units). BUILDING PERMIT data from the US Census Building Permit Survey is the 
primary source of information about additional units. You will need to have the application 
signed and certified by your local Building Official as to the accuracy of this information. The 
Executive Officer (Mayor or Chair of Board of Selectmen) must also sign the application.  

You may save your work and return to the form. IF you use the "Save and Resume" feature, 
please note that uploaded files will not be saved. Therefore, gather and keep files needed for 
uploading, and only upload them when you are planning to hit the "SUBMIT" button at the 
END of the form. Please do not submit your form without the uploaded signatures. 

If you are qualifying based on an increase of 300 units/3% increase in year round housing 
stock, you will also need information about Best Practices related to housing that your 
community has established. Please be sure to upload all documentation needed to 
demonstrate these best practices.  

Applications are DUE no later than 3:00 p.m. on March 23, 2020.  

If you have questions, contact Housing Choice Program Director Chris Kluchman 
at chris.kluchman@mass.gov or 617-573-1167. 

  

mailto:chris.kluchman@mass.gov
sraposa
Text Box
Draft for BoS 3/3/20



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 2 of 13 

Housing Choice Designation Application 2020 

1. Submitting Municipality*  
Choose your City or Town from the drop down list 
2. Contact Name* 

First Name* 

Last Name* 
2.a. Contact Mailing Address* 

Address Line 1 

Address Line 2 

City 

 State 

ZIP Code 
2.b. Contact Email* 
2.c. Phone* 
3. Was your City/Town designated a Housing Choice Community in 2018?* 

Yes No 
4. Does your community have any ACTIVE housing restrictions such as a moratorium or 
limitations on the number of new housing units? * 

Yes No 
Zoning moratorium makes your community INELIGIBLE for Housing Choice designation 
 

If the answer to Question 4. Is Yes:  

 4.a. If your community has an ordinance or bylaw that restrict or limit the number 
of new housing units, please provide a copy here. 

5. Has your community conducted a Self Evaluation or Transition Plan related to Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA)? * 

Yes No 
More information on ADA requirements for local governments can be found at the Housing 
Choice Web pages  
 

IF the answer to Question 5 is No:  
5.a. If your answer to #5 was NO, is your community willing to enter into a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Massachusetts Office of 
Disability and DHCD to conduct such study within the next five (5) years? 

Yes No  

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Sarah 	

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Raposa

sraposa
Typewritten Text
459 Main Street

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield

sraposa
Typewritten Text
MA

sraposa
Typewritten Text
02052

sraposa
Typewritten Text
sraposa@medfield.net

sraposa
Typewritten Text
5089063027

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 3 of 13 

Information about your Community's Housing Production 

The Housing Choice designation is based on PRODUCTION of new year-round housing units over 
the last 5 years. The threshold for qualifications is a 5% increase (or 500 units) or a 3% increase 
(or 300 units) and best practices. This section describes how to calculate and demonstrate the 
increase in new year-round housing units. 

(1) Look up your community's 2010 year-round housing units (this is also the denominator 
used in the Subsidized Housing Inventory or SHI). The Housing Choice web site has a list of 2010 
year-round units for all communities here  

(2) Calculate the number of additional year-round housing units over the last 5 years using the 
number of BUILDING PERMITS issued to create the ratio of additional units added over the last 
5 years, excluding housing units that replace demolished units at a 1 to 1 ratio. Demolition of 
one single family unit and replacement with one single family unit is an increase of 0 units. If a 
demolished single family home is replaced with 3 units, the net increase is +2 units. If building 
permits for new units replacing a demolished home cannot be easily excluded from your data, 
please provide data about the number of demolition permits and total units demolished. 

 (3) Data Sources: BUILDING PERMITS are the measurement of additional year-round housing 
units for this calculation. Your building official should have a record of new residential building 
permits for year-round housing issued between January 1, 2015 and December 31, 2019. If your 
building official does not have ready access for this information, another source for this building 
permit data is information submitted by your community to the U.S. Census in the Building 
Permit Survey. A copy of the Building Permit Survey for all cities and towns in Massachusetts for 
2015 through 2018 can be found on the Housing Choice web site here.  2010 Building Permit 
Survey data is not yet available, and therefore 2019 building permit data must be provided 
from your building official. If your community has reason to believe the current Census Building 
Permit Survey data does not fully reflect the number of building permits in your community, 
there is a place in the application to add comments and explanation. 

6. Provide your community's 2010 year-round housing units* 

2010 year-round housing units are available for download: https://www.mass.gov/how-
to/apply-for-the-housing-choice-designation 

7. Number of net new units that were issued building permits between January 1, 2015 and 
December 31, 2019* 

Note: please see the above description of qualifying net new units 

8. Here is the percent increase in year-round housing units (net new units/2010 units*100)* 

Note: this field calculates the % increase automatically. Use this or the number of units over the 
last 5 years in Question 7 to complete Question 9 below. 

https://www.mass.gov/how-to/apply-for-the-housing-choice-designation
https://www.mass.gov/how-to/apply-for-the-housing-choice-designation


Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 4 of 13 

9. Housing Choice Designation.  

Based on the increase in housing units in Question 8 OR the number of units produced over 
the last 5 years in Question 7, select the appropriate designation in Question 9.a. If you do not 
meet the numeric standard to qualify to be a Housing Choice Community, visit the Housing 
Choice Web pages and review the many Technical Assistance opportunities available from 
many public, quasi-public and advocacy organizations. You might also talk to your Regional 
Planning Agency about what steps your community might take to increase housing production 
so that you may qualify for the designation in the future. 

9.a. Choose the Housing Choice Designation for your community based on Questions 6, 7 and 
8* 

5% increase OR 500+ units over the last five years 3% increase OR 300+ units over the 
last five years 

10. UPLOAD documentation of the building permits issued over the last 5 years. Please upload 
.pdfs of printouts from your building permit software, excel spreadsheets, or other information 
about building permits in your community.  Remember, even if you use Building Permit Survey 
data for 2015 through 2018, you must provide your community's building permit information 
for 2019.   

10.a. Upload building permit data* 

You must provide detailed back up for all net new units 

10.b. Use the space below to provide information about additional housing units in your 
community that you believe are not captured by the Building Permit 

Survey  

Here you can let us know about the reasons why the Building Permit Survey does not accurately 
reflect housing production in your community 

11. Housing Choice Best Practices  

If your community has over 5% increase in housing production or 500 or more net new 
housing units, please go through all 14 of the best practices below and indicate by checking 
the box for each of your community's BEST PRACTICES to indicate which ones your City/Town 
has implemented..  You do not have to submit or upload any 
documentation.   While communities with 5%/500 growth in housing units do not need to 
demonstrate a certain number of best practices to qualify for Housing Choice designation, the 
best practices are a part of evaluating grant proposals.  

 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
4220



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 5 of 13 

For Production and Planning (3%/300) which Housing Best Practices do you have?  

x You MUST select at least 7 of the 14 best practices below to qualify for the 3%/300 
unit category.  

x TWO Best Practices MUST be in the affordable category. 
x You MUST upload documentation to demonstrate achievement of at least 7 of the 14 

Best Practices that you select below.  

NOTE: when uploading required documentation, only one file per upload box is allowed, 
please scan documents into a SINGLE FILE for uploading to each best practice.  

11.a. Allow for Multifamily development in local zoning 

Have at least one zoning district that allows multifamily by right (in addition to 40R 
districts) where there is capacity to add units and that allows for family housing that is not age 
restricted and does not restrict units with more than 2 bedrooms (or demonstrate a pattern of 
approving such developments over the last 5 years) 

11.a. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.a. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.a. 

11.b Have Inclusionary Zoning [Affordable Category] 

Have inclusionary zoning that provides for reasonable density increases so that housing is 
not unreasonably precluded 

11.b. Instructions. Provide a copy of the section in your current zoning ordinance or by-law that 
addresses inclusionary zoning with density increases for provision of affordable units 

11.b. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.b. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.b. 

11.c. Have an approved 40R Smart Growth or Starter Home zoning district [Affordable 
Category] 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Upper Spring Street Overlay District allows multi-family by-right with site plan approval by the planning board (5.5 units per acre)

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Inclusionary Zoning adopted in 2017



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 6 of 13 

Have adopted a 40R Smart Growth or Starter Homes zoning district 

11.c. Instructions. Provide a copy of the section in your current zoning ordinance or by-law that 
implements MGL chapter 40R Smart Growth or Starter Homes provisions 

11.c. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.c. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.c. 

11.d. Have Zoning that allows mixed use or cluster developments 

Have zoning that allows for mixed use, or cluster developments by right (or can 
demonstrate a consistent pattern over the last 5 years of approving such developments) 

11.d. Instructions. Provide a copy of the section in your current zoning ordinance or by-law that 
allows mixed use or cluster development by right. If you believe your community has 
demonstrated a consistent pattern over the last 5 years of approving such developments, 
please provide a table with the following information: project address/name, number of units, 
action taken (approve, deny, withdrawn, appealed) and date of final board decision. If there are 
questions about these projects program staff may follow up for additional information. 

11.d. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.d. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.d. 

11.e. Allow Accessory Dwelling Units  

Have zoning that allows for Accessory Dwelling units (ADUs) by right (or can demonstrate a 
consistent pattern over the last 5 years of approving ADUs) 

11.e. Instructions. Provide a copy of the section in your current zoning ordinance or by-law that 
allows ADUs by right. If you believe your community has demonstrated a consistent pattern 
over the last 5 years of approving ADUs, please provide a table with the following information: 
project address/name, number of units, action taken (approve, deny, withdrawn, appealed) and 
date of final board decision. If there are questions about these projects program staff may 
follow up for additional information. 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
MSHD (adopted 2019) allows some by-right mixed use redevelopment

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 7 of 13 

11.e. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.e. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.e 

11.f. Designated local resouces for housing [Affordable Category] 

Designated local resources for housing such as establishe an Affordable housing Trust, 
donated land, or spent substantial Community Preservation Act (CPA) funds for community 
housing over the last 5 years. 

11.f. Instructions: Provide a narrative description of designated local resources and upload 
documentation including but not limited to (1) meeting minutes from meetings of Board of 
Selectmen, Town Meeting or Affordable Housing Trust board awarding funding, designating 
CPA funds for Community Housing projects and a list of funds spent for community housing 
projects including number of units produced if applicable,  (2) copy of deed conveying property 
for nominal value, or for reduced value if accompanied by evidence of value or approving 
conveyance of land for nominal or reduced value; (3) award letter or other documentation of 
funding award, or (4) copy of Affordable Housing Trust charter. 

11.f. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.f. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.f 

11.g. Reduction in Parking requirements for Multi-Family units 

Have reduced parking requirement(s) for Multi-Family units within the last 5 years, or 
require no more than 1 parking space per unit for multifamily units. 

11.g. Instructions.  Provide a copy of the section of your current zoning ordinance or by-law 
that demonstrates no more than one (1) parking space per unit for multi-family developments 
and/or describe the reduction in parking requirements that occurred within the last 5 years. 

11.g. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
ZBA routinely approves family apartment special permits

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield AHT established in 2017 and funded with $1m bond authorization

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 8 of 13 

11.g. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.g 

11.h. Training for Land Use Board Members 

Board members received training in the last 5 years 

Requires evidence that a MAJORITY of a Board received training 

11.h. Instructions.  Provide evidence of education and training for a majority of members on 
a land use board (Planning Board, Zoning Board of Appeals, Select Board and/or City Council) 
from Citizens Planner Training Collaborative (CPTC), Massachusetts Housing Partnership's 
(MHP's) Housing Institute or Urban Land Institute's (ULI's) Urban Plan Public Leadership 
Institute over the last 5 years.  Comparable training will be evaluated on a case by case basis.   

11.h. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.h. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.h 

11.i. Achieved 10% or greater in your Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) [Affordable Category].  

Have units currently eligible for inclusion in the Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) that 
equal or exceed 10% of total year-round housing stock, according to the DHCD subsidized 
housing inventory 

NEW FOR 2020 DESIGNATION: SHI units that are added after Housing Appeals Court (HAC) 
overturned a local denial or overturned local conditions will NOT COUNT towards your 
community's SHI totals. 

11.i. Instructions. Provide a copy of most recently published SHI for your community. If you 
believe there are additional units eligible for inclusion on the SHI, but not reflected on the SHI, 
documentation of those units must meet the standards applied by DHCD under its regulations 
and guidelines in determining whether units are SHI-eligible.  NEW FOR 2020 
DESIGNATION:  SHI units that are added after Housing Appeals Court (HAC) overturned a local 
denial or overturned local conditions will NOT COUNT towards your community's SHI totals.   

11.i. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
PB & ZBA members attend CPTC and 40B trainings

sraposa
Typewritten Text
MSHD (2019) reduces multi-family parking to 1 space per unit (for senior housing/cottages) and 1.23 spaces per unit (for low- mid-rise MF housing). Medfield does not have public transportation so the MSHD also encourages shared parking for mix-uses.   

sraposa
Typewritten Text




Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 9 of 13 

11.i. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.i. 

11.j. Have increased your community's SHI by at least 2.5% points in the last 5 years [Affordable 
Category] 

Have increased units currently eligible for inclusion in the Subsidized Housing Inventory 
(SHI) by at least 2.5%, according to the DHCD subsidized housing inventory 

NEW FOR 2020 DESIGNATION: SHI units that are added after Housing Appeals Court (HAC) 
overturned a local denial or overturned local conditions will NOT COUNT towards your 
community's SHI totals. 

11.j. Instructions. Provide a copy of most recently published SHI for your community showing 
at least a 2.5% increase over the last 5 years. If you believe there are additional units eligible for 
inclusion on the SHI, but not reflected on the SHI, documentation of those units must meet the 
standards applied by DHCD under its regulations and guidelines in determining whether units 
are SHI-eligible.  NEW FOR 2020 DESIGNATION:  SHI units that are added after Housing Appeals 
Court (HAC) overturned a local denial or overturned local conditions will NOT COUNT towards 
this best practice.   

11.j. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.j. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.j. 

11.k. Community Compact with Housing Best Practice 

Have applied for (or received) a Community Compact with a housing best practice 

11.k. Instructions. Provide a copy of Community Compact application/award showing the 
Housing Best Practice. Here is the web page for the Community Compact 
Cabinet: https://www.mass.gov/orgs/community-compact-cabinet 

11.k. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.k. Narrative  

https://www.mass.gov/orgs/community-compact-cabinet...
sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
2014 (4.22%) --> 2019 (8.29%)

sraposa
Typewritten Text




Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 10 of 13 

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.k. 

11.l. Participate in Housing related incentive programs [Affordable Category] 

Participate in the Housing Development Incentive Program, have adopted an Urban Center 
Housing Tax Increment Financing district, approved District Improvement Financing (DIF) 
related to housing, have adopted an Urban Renewal Plan that includes a significant Housing 
element 

11.l. Instructions. If you are participating in the HDIP program, provide a copy of a DHCD-
approved Housing Development Tax Increment Exemption Agreement, together with copies of 
any award letters for state Housing Development Tax Credits for specific projects. If you have 
adopted an UCH-TIF district, provide a copy of your DHCD-approved urban center housing tax 
increment financing plan, together with copies of any approved UCH-TIF agreements. For Urban 
Renewal Plans, submit evidence of substantial housing element(s) in the plan. 

11.l. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.l. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.l 

11.m. Have adopted local option property tax mechanisms that promote housing [Affordable 
Category] 

Have adopted local option property tax relief programs either as provided for by statute 
(MGL c. 59 section 5) or through a home rule petition 

11.m. Instructions. Provide a copy of local bylaw or ordinance establishing the tax relief 
program. 

11.m. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.m. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.m 



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 11 of 13 

11.n. Certified Housing Production Plan 

Have a CERTIFIED Housing Production Plan which means that you have an DHCD approved 
Housing Production Plan and have subsequently seen an increase of 0.5% or 1% in year round 
housing units 

11.n. Instructions.  There is a difference between a CERTIFIED Housing Production Plan (HPP) 
and one that has been APPROVED by DHCD. A certified HPP which means that you have an 
DHCD approved Housing Production Plan and have subsequently seen an increase of 0.5% or 
1% in your year round housing units (see https://www.mass.gov/service-details/chapter-40-b-
housing-production-plan for more information). Provide a copy of your current Housing 
Production Plan and the DHCD certification letter. 

11.n. Upload file here    

NOTE: For 3%/300 cities and towns, if you choose this Best Practices you MUST submit 
documentation here 

11.n. Narrative  

Provide additional narrative here for question 11.n 

12. Use the space below to provide additional details about your community's Best 

Practices  

Provide additional narrative here if needed 

  

https://www.mass.gov/service-details/chapter-40-b-housing-production-plan
https://www.mass.gov/service-details/chapter-40-b-housing-production-plan
sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
2016 HPP was certified in 2017, 2018, 2019 and is on target for a two-year certification in 2019

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield has been successful in implementing its HPP by partnering with the local development community. We sought developers who had land, experience, capacity, and capital to quickly kickstart small-scale affordable housing developments throughout Medfield.  



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 12 of 13 

Certification and Signatures 

The Housing Choice application for Designation requires the signatures of both the Local 
Building Official and the Chief Executive Officer (Mayor, Board of Selectmen Chair or City/Town 
Manager). Please print this page, get signatures, scan and upload the signed pages below. 

13. Certification by local building official  

By signing below, I certify that the building permit data for additional year-round housing units 
over the last 5 years is true and accurate. The data includes only additional year-round housing 
units, where demolished units were replaced 1:1 the new building permits are not included (or 
if permits for units replacing tear downs cannot be excluded from other additional unit permits, 
then demolition data is being provided); and conversions of commercial property to housing 
are included (such as mill conversions). 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Sign on the line above, enter name and title below 

13.a. Local Building Official Name* 

First Name* 

Last Name* 

13.b. Local Building Official Email* 

The Housing Choice application for Designation requires the signatures of both the Local 
Building Official and the Chief Executive Officer (Mayor, Board of Selectmen Chair or City/Town 
Manager). Please print this page, get signatures, scan and upload the signed pages below. 

14. Certification by Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Sign on the line above, enter name and title below 

14.a. City/Town Chief Executive Officer Name* 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Gary

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Pelletier

sraposa
Typewritten Text
gpelletier@medfield.net

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Typewritten Text
x

sraposa
Text Box
Gary Sign

sraposa
Text Box
Gus Sign



Housing Choice Designation – 2020 Application  Page 13 of 13 

First Name* 

Last Name* 

14.b. City/Town Chief Executive Officer Email* 

14.c. City/Town Chief Executive Officer Mailing Address* 

Address Line 1 

Address Line 2 

City 

State 

ZIP Code 

15. Upload Signature Page (s) here 

Please print this page, get required signatures and upload the file here 

 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Gustave

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Murby

sraposa
Typewritten Text
459 Main Street

sraposa
Typewritten Text
Medfield

sraposa
Typewritten Text
MA 

sraposa
Typewritten Text
02052

sraposa
Typewritten Text
gmurby1651@gmail.com

































































































1

SPECIAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT
NOVEMBER 20, 2019

Article 1:   Hear Report of Town Manager 
Sponsor:  Routine

To see if the town will hear any report of the Town Manager, or pass any vote or take any action relative
thereto.

Article 2:   Adjust Fiscal Year 2020 Appropriation
Sponsor:  Town Manager/Finance Director

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds in the treasury a sum 
of money to be added to or to make adjustments to Article 3 of the May 2019 annual town meeting (fiscal
year 2020 budget), or pass any vote or take any action relative thereto.

Article 3:   Free Cash Transfer
Sponsor: Town Manager/Finance Director

To see if the Town will vote to transfer from available funds, a sum of money to be placed in the 
Stabilization Fund, OPEB Trust Fund, Special Education Special Purpose Stabilization Account, Capital 
Account, Capital Stabilization Account, and/or FY20 budgetary line items as proposed, or pass any vote 
or take any action relative thereto.

Article 4:   Property Tax Exemptions  
Sponsor:  Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to adjust (the exemption amount and eligibility factors) for the property tax 
exemption for senior citizens under MGL Chapter 59, Section 5 Clause 41C½, to be effective for 
exemptions granted for any fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, or pass any vote or take any action relative
thereto.

Article 5:   Approve Purchase/Taking of Land – 0 Tri Street
Sponsor: Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectman to purchase, acquire, or take by eminent 
domain, and to raise and appropriate, either by appropriation, borrowing or otherwise, a sum of money to 
fund said purchase or taking along with all associated legal and engineering costs necessary, the property, 
or any part thereof,  located in Ashland, Massachusetts identified as those certain parcels of land off of Tri
Street totaling approximately 9.5 acres +/-, located at Map 26 Lots 75 and 76 an as more fully set forth on
the plan on file with the Town Clerk and  including Parcel A and Lots 1-6 inclusive (collectively the 
“Property”) , the acquisition of said land having been determined to be necessary for the health and 
welfare of the inhabitants of Ashland and to be used for open space and recreation to be under the care, 
custody and control of the Board of Selectman; or pass any vote or take any action relative thereto.



2

Article 6:   Approve Development Restriction – 378 Eliot Street
Sponsor: Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept a Restrictive Covenant for the land 
known as  and numbered 378 Eliot Street, Ashland, Middlesex County, Commonwealth of Massachusetts,
conveyed by deed recorded with the Middlesex South District Registry of Deeds in Book 24575 Page 11 
and dated May 18, 1994,  to limit the number of homes to no more than one per acre; and in exchange 
therefore, raise and appropriate, or transfer, by borrowing or otherwise,  as sum of money sufficient to 
pay for said restriction further to see if the Town will authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept said 
development restriction, and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into and negotiate all 
agreements necessary to effectuate same; or take any other action related thereto.

 Article 7: Dispose of Real Property
Sponsor: Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to change the use, which is currently general municipal, of  433 Chestnut 
Street, more fully set forth on that certain plan by, Feldman Land Survey dated November 15, 2016 and 
which is on file with the Town Clerk,  to the purpose of conveyance and/or transfer and to authorize the 
Board of Selectmen to sell, transfer or otherwise convey same, and take any legal action necessary to 
effectuate said conveyance or transfer and to further authorize the Board of Selectmen to negotiate and 
execute any and all documents necessary to effectuate same including entering into a Historic 
Preservation Restriction on the Property, or pass any vote or take any action relative thereto.

Article 8:   Authorize Easements along Main Street
Sponsor:  Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to purchase, acquire or take by eminent
domain, and to raise and appropriate, either by appropriation, borrowing or otherwise, a sum of money to
fund said purchase or taking along with all associated legal and engineering costs necessary,  easements
in the parcels of land located along Main and Front Street at: 10-60 Main Street, 446 sq. ft. +/-; 98-100
Main Street, 273 sq. ft. +/-; 118 Main Street, 370 sq. ft. +/-; 128-132 Main Street, 191 sq. ft. +/-; 4-12
Front Street, 37 sq. ft. +/-; all as shown on a plan by BSC Group dated May 6, 2019 and on file with the
Town Clerk, _the acquisition of said land having been determined to be necessary for the health and
welfare of the inhabitants of Ashland and to be used for municipal purposes; or pass any vote or take any
action relative thereto. 

Article 9:   Mill Pond Park Beautification
Sponsor:  Community Preservation Committee

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate up to $100,000 in Community Preservation Act from an 
account to be determined  to allow the Board of Selectmen to undertake construction for the beautification
of Mill Pond Park and increase accessibility of the Sudbury Riverwalk and that to meet this appropriation,
the sum of up to $100,000 be transferred from the Community Preservation Fund, account to be 
determined with the following stipulations: the Board of Selectmen shall obtain all required town board 



3

and town department permits and approvals prior to the disbursement of any funds, the Board of 
Selectmen shall enter into a grant agreement with the Community Preservation Committee prior to 
disbursement of any funds and  unexpended funds as of June 30, 2021 being returned to their funding 
sources, or pass any vote or take any other action thereon.

Article 10:  Town Forest Restoration Project Phase 2
Sponsor:  Community Preservation Committee

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate up to $5,000 in Community Preservation Act historical 
funds  to allow the Town Forest Committee to complete phase 2 of a Restoration Project  within the town 
forest to preserve the remains of the Stone Bungalow; and that to meet this appropriation, the sum of up 
to $5,000 be transferred from the Community Preservation Fund, Historical Preservation Account with 
the following stipulations: the Town Forest Committee shall obtain all required town board and town 
department permits and approvals prior to the disbursement of any funds, the Town Forest Committee 
shall enter into a grant agreement with the Community Preservation Committee prior to disbursement of 
any funds and  unexpended funds as of June 30, 2021 being returned to their funding sources, or pass any 
vote or take any other action thereon.

Article 11:   Decrease Demand Fees
Sponsor:  Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town, in accordance with G.L. c. 60 § 15 (2), will vote to change the fee charged by the 
Collector for each written demand issued from a fee of $30 to a fee of $15 to be added and collected as 
part of the tax, or pass any vote or take any other action thereon.

Article 12:   Net Zero Resolution
Sponsor:  Sustainability Committee

To see if the Town will adopt the following Resolution to Adopt a Net Zero Emissions Goal:

WHEREAS, Massachusetts has adopted a carbon emissions reduction goal (as defined in the 2008 
Global Warming Solutions Act) and the Patrick and Baker Administrations have taken leadership to 
mitigate and adapt to climate change by reducing greenhouse gas emissions and building a more 
resilient Commonwealth that safeguards residents, municipalities, and businesses (as outlined in the 
Global Warming Solutions Act and Executive Order 569); and

WHEREAS, The Town of Ashland is one of 210 cities and towns across the Commonwealth that 
have committed to reducing municipal energy use as part of the Green Communities Program. The 
Town of Ashland has been taking actions to reduce its carbon emissions, promote clean energy, and 
increase resilience including: installing municipal solar arrays, supporting private and public 
renewable energy installations, installing electric vehicle charging stations, opting for renewable 
electricity aggregation, promoting residential and commercial energy efficiency programs, and 
converting to LED streetlights, among other efforts; and

WHEREAS, More than 30 communities, including Acton, Arlington, Bedford, Boston, Brookline, 
Cambridge, Concord, Framingham, Lexington, Melrose, Medford, Natick, Newton, Wayland, and 



4

Wellesley, are in the process of adopting greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals and 
comprehensive, cost-effective plans to achieve these goals; and

WHEREAS, Many Massachusetts communities are already feeling the impacts of a changing climate,
with rising temperatures, increased flooding and more intense and frequent storms, increased health 
risks such as tick-borne diseases and heat-related health conditions. In addition, the state’s centralized
energy system and transit infrastructure is becoming more vulnerable to climate-related risks like 
storms and extreme temperatures; and

WHEREAS, A Net Zero community is one for which, on an annual basis, all greenhouse gas 
emissions resulting from operations are reduced or offset. Net Zero communities adopt multi-pronged
strategies including energy efficiency, renewable energy, zero waste, and nature-based solutions to 
CO2 removal, such as the protection and restoration of forests, wetlands and other ecosystems; and

WHEREAS, The transition to a Net Zero community brings many potential benefits, including 
improved health, reduced pollution, the creation of clean energy and energy efficiency jobs, and the 
ability to retain more of our energy dollars in the local economy.

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved that:

1. The Town of Ashland supports a Net Zero goal of eliminating or offsetting by 2040 all greenhouse gas 
emissions in Ashland:

a. Originating from heating and cooling, electricity consumption, transportation, industry, agriculture,
gas leaks, and waste streams
b. Including households, businesses, the municipality, institutions and utilities

2.   The Town of Ashland will develop a Net Zero Action Plan by November 2020 that outlines specific 
strategies and sets measurable, attainable and realistic interim targets for achieving the 2040 Net Zero 
goal, and will provide an annual progress report to Ashland Town Meeting.

3.   In developing and implementing the Net Zero Action Plan, the voices and interests of all members of the 
Ashland community are considered including the most vulnerable (such as seniors, low-income residents, 
immigrants, people with disabilities, and youth) to ensure the benefits and related costs of a transition to a
clean energy economy are shared equitably by the entire community. 

or pass any vote or take any other action thereon.

Article _13_:   Bylaw Change: Replace “Board of Selectmen” with “Select Board” in General
Bylaws
Sponsor:  Board of Selectmen



5

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to petition the general court of 
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to amend the Ashland Home Rule Charter; and to see if the
Town will vote to amend the Ashland General Bylaws, to replace all gendered references to 
“Board of Selectmen” with “Select Board” or take any other action relative thereto. 

Article _14_:   Zoning Bylaw Change: Replace “Board of Selectmen” with “Select Board” in the
Zoning Bylaws
Sponsor:  Board of Selectmen

To see if the Town will vote to see if the Town will vote to amend the Ashland Zoning Bylaws, 
to replace all gendered references to “Board of Selectmen” with “Select Board” or take any other
action relative thereto.

Article 15:   Zoning Bylaw: Amend Industrial Uses in the Commercial Highway, Commercial
Village, and Commercial Neighborhood District
Sponsor:  Planning Board

To see if the Town will vote to amend the Town of Ashland Zoning Bylaw Chapter 282, Section 3, as 
follows (cross out are eliminations and bold underline is new language):
Section 3.0 Use Regulations:

PRINCIPAL USES

F. INDUSTRIAL USES RA RB RM CH CD CV CN I

Mini-storage warehouse facility N N N Y/N N PB/N PB/N Y

Construction yard or 
landscaping business

N N N Y/N N PB/N PB/N Y

or pass any vote or take any other action thereon.



2/19/20, 1(54 PMAshland Town Meeting commits to being net-zero by 2040 to combat… - News - MetroWest Daily News, Framingham, MA - Framingham, MA

Page 1 of 2https://www.metrowestdailynews.com/news/20191121/ashland-town-meeting-commits-to-being-net-zero-by-2040-to-combat-climate-change

By Cesareo Contreras   / Daily News Staff
Posted Nov 21, 2019 at 6:34 PM
Updated Nov 21, 2019 at 10:48 PM

The town could accomplish the net-zero goal by reducing energy
consumption, by generating its own on-site renewable energy and/or
by taking advantage of more off-site energy such as wind and solar, he
said. Residents could also plant more trees.

ASHLAND - Residents officially made the commitment to eliminate or offset its use of greenhouse
emissions by 2040.

The action came Wednesday when Town Meeting voted in support of the Sustainability
Committee’s nonbinding resolution to be “net zero” within the next 20 years.

In remarks made before the vote, Sustainability Committee Chairman Matthew Marshquist made
reference to a 2018 report from the Intergovernmental Panel On Climate Change that states the
Earth’s population has about 11 years to make the “transformative changes” needed to adequately
combat the effects of climate change.

A key finding in the report, he said, is that the Earth needs to restrict its average temperature rise
to under 1.5 degrees Celsius (2.7 degrees Fahrenheit) in the next decade or so to “avoid the
catastrophic impacts of climate change.”

“Just 0.5 degrees Celsius means vastly different things for humanity and the planet – 10 million
more people exposed to sea-level rise without adaptation. ... 60 million more people exposed to
drought,” he said.

Ashland Town Meeting commits to being net-zero by 2040 to
combat climate change

https://www.metrowestdailynews.com/


2/19/20, 1(54 PMAshland Town Meeting commits to being net-zero by 2040 to combat… - News - MetroWest Daily News, Framingham, MA - Framingham, MA

Page 2 of 2https://www.metrowestdailynews.com/news/20191121/ashland-town-meeting-commits-to-being-net-zero-by-2040-to-combat-climate-change

To accomplish that goal locally, the town will have to develop a plan to offset or eliminate its use of
greenhouse gasses, Marshquist said. Other communities have approved net-zero resolutions,
including Lexington, Somerville, Natick, Bedford and Newton.

“A net-zero community is one for which on an annual basis, all greenhouse gas emissions,” he said,
specifying that it would include offsetting emissions from transportation, households, businesses
and the municipality itself.

Not all homes and buildings need to have zero greenhouse emissions for the town to be net zero,
he said. It just means that all greenhouse emissions need to be offset in some way to equal zero.

The town could accomplish the goal by reducing energy consumption, by generating its own on-
site renewable energy and/or by taking advantage of more off-site energy such as wind and solar,
he said. Residents could also plant more trees.

While most residents who spoke about the net-zero resolution supported it, James Morrissey was
concerned about the possibility of the town potentially implementing a carbon tax, which would
impose fees on property owners who burn fossil fuels.

Town Manager Michael Herbert said it was too early to speculate on how the town will implement
the net-zero goal, but that it will look into “proposing anything reasonable to accomplish that goal.”

With the resolution now approved, the next step is for the Sustainability Committee to work with
the town’s sustainability coordinator – who is in the process of being hired – to develop a net-zero
plan by fall 2020.

All other articles on the warrant passed, save for Article 11, which would have decreased demand
fees. That article was withdrawn because the Select Board is exploring other options rather than
decrease fees, Herbert said.

Cesareo Contreras writes about environmental issues and technology for the Daily News. He can be reached at

508-626-3957 or ccontreras@wickedlocal.com. Follow him on Twitter @cesareo_r.

mailto:ccontreras@wickedlocal.com
http://www.twitter.com/cesareo_r


2/19/20, 2(25 PMClimate group criticizes Sherborn sustainability plan - News - Wicked Local Sherborn - Sherborn, MA

Page 1 of 3https://sherborn.wickedlocal.com/news/20190910/climate-group-criticizes-sherborn-sustainability-plan

By Cesareo Contreras   / Daily News Staff
Posted Sep 10, 2019 at 6:04 PM

The Upper Charles Climate Action Node, the group that put the article
on the Sherborn town warrant, wants the town to conduct a search for
a sustainability coordinator.

SHERBORN – Town Planner Gino Carlucci may soon have more work on his plate.

Over the last few months, the Sherborn Select Board has contemplated how to bring a
sustainability coordinator to town after residents at Town Meeting in April supported a petition
article authorizing the board to create the position.

In July, the town was given access to $50,000 from the state for a sustainability coordinator to serve
both it and neighboring Holliston.

But instead of creating a new position, the Select Board is contemplating expanding the town
planner’s job description to include the responsibilities of the sustainability coordinator.

That has members of a local climate change advocacy group that successfully put the petition article
on the warrant to believe the board has lost sight of the article’s intent. They believe the board
should conduct a thorough candidate process to ensure the best person for the job is hired.

During its meeting on Thursday, the Select Board will hear from that group and from the public
before voting on whether to update the town planner’s job description.

The Upper Charles Climate Action Node, the group that successfully put the article on the warrant,
provided a four-page job description with its petition article that outlines what it believes the
sustainability coordinator’s responsibilities should be.

Climate group criticizes Sherborn sustainability plan

https://sherborn.wickedlocal.com/


2/19/20, 2(25 PMClimate group criticizes Sherborn sustainability plan - News - Wicked Local Sherborn - Sherborn, MA

Page 2 of 3https://sherborn.wickedlocal.com/news/20190910/climate-group-criticizes-sherborn-sustainability-plan

The coordinator’s main purpose would be to help the town be more environmentally conscious
and sustainable. Some of the ways this would be accomplished include working with various town
and school employees to promote green projects and initiatives; seeking outside grant funding
from the state and other sources; and writing regular reports outlining the town’s progress in
becoming more sustainable, the group wrote.

The group recommends the coordinator work 20 hours a week and be paid an annual salary of
$30,000, with $9,000 in benefits.

Town Administrator David Williams said Carlucci, who works for the town part-time at about 22
hours a week, is already doing some of the work a sustainability coordinator would perform, such
as applying for grants. Williams said that by expanding Carlucci’s role and working hours, the
Select Board will not have to go through the lengthy process of conducting a candidate search and
training a new town employee.

“Although the Sherborn Select Board is still exploring its options, I believe the proposed structure
is an expeditious, yet incremental, way of getting the sustainability effort off the ground utilizing
the $50,000 grant from the state for the benefit of both towns, and is a responsible use of the
public’s tax dollars,” Williams wrote in an email to the Daily News.

But resident Fred Cunningham, who is part of the Action Node, said it’s important the Select Board
have more of an official candidate search. He said many in town don’t know about the town
planner’s qualifications, or if he is fit to serve in the position.

“So our request on (Sept. 12) is for them to change their focus a little bit and not just put (13) hours
on the town planner on top of his part-time job, but to do the right thing, which is complete a job
description, post it and get candidates,” Cunningham said.

Williams said as part of the updated job description, he would recommend the Select Board allow
the town planner to work up to 35 hours a week, with the added 13 hours to be spent solely on
sustainability efforts.



2/19/20, 2(25 PMClimate group criticizes Sherborn sustainability plan - News - Wicked Local Sherborn - Sherborn, MA

Page 3 of 3https://sherborn.wickedlocal.com/news/20190910/climate-group-criticizes-sherborn-sustainability-plan

Sherborn would use about $30,000 of the $50,000 of state money to pay for that increase for the
remainder of the year. Holliston would then be able to use the remaining $20,000 for its own
sustainability consultant, he said.

Holliston has not approved any of this in public yet and the two towns are still in the middle of the
drafting process of their inter-municipal agreement, which will outline how the money and
services are shared, Williams said.

Carlucci touted his years of experience and his ability to take on the new role, noting he had
previously served as director of environmental affairs in New Orleans and that he holds a master’s
degree in urban regional planning from the University of New Orleans.

“I have written millions of dollars worth of grants,” he said in a phone interview. “I think I am
certainly more than qualified. I have been doing virtually all of the tasks that were listed already and
that I have significant qualifications for that position.”

Should the board vote in support of the updated job description, it will then be reviewed by the
Personnel Board on Sept. 18, Williams said.

More than a dozen other Massachusetts communities have hired sustainability coordinators in the
last decade, including Natick, Framingham, Newton, Medford, Greenfield, Northampton and
Somerville.

Cesareo Contreras writes about environmental issues and technology for the Daily News. He can be reached at

508-626-3957or ccontreras@wickedlocal.com. Follow him on Twitter @cesareo_r.

mailto:ccontreras@wickedlocal.com
http://www.twitter.com/cesareo_r


W
A

R
R

A
N

T
 A

R
T

IC
LE

 5
1 

W
ar

ra
nt

 A
rt

ic
le

 5
1–

 C
on

co
rd

’s
 E

ne
rg

y 
G

oa
ls

 

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
To

w
n,

 in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

P
ar

is
 C

lim
at

e 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t o
f 2

01
5,

 w
ill

 v
ot

e:
 

(a
)

to
 a

lig
n 

th
e 

en
er

gy
 g

oa
ls

 o
f t

he
 T

ow
n 

of
 C

on
co

rd
 w

ith
 th

e 
M

as
sa

ch
us

et
ts

 G
lo

ba
l 

W
ar

m
in

g 
S

ol
ut

io
ns

 A
ct

 o
f 2

00
8 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 m
in

im
um

 2
5%

 to
w

n-
w

id
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 G
re

en
 

H
ou

se
 G

as
 (G

H
G

) e
m

is
si

on
s 

by
 2

02
0 

an
d 

an
 8

0%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

by
 2

05
0 

fro
m

 th
e 

ba
se

lin
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
 2

00
8;

  a
nd

  
(b

)
by

 2
03

0,
 a

s 
an

 in
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 g
oa

l, 
to

 u
rg

e 
C

M
LP

 to
 re

du
ce

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
of

 it
s 

po
w

er
 

su
pp

ly
 p

or
tfo

lio
 a

nd
 to

 o
ffs

et
 a

ny
 re

si
du

al
 G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

of
 it

s 
el

ec
tri

ci
ty

 s
up

pl
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f R

E
C

s 
or

 o
th

er
 o

ffs
et

s,
 w

ith
 th

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

th
at

 th
is

 m
ay

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f e

ne
rg

y 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

by
 C

M
LP

 a
nd

 m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 e

le
ct

ric
 ra

te
s;

 

an
d 

fu
rth

er
, t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

To
w

n 
w

ill
 v

ot
e 

to
 ra

is
e 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 o

r t
ra

ns
fe

r f
ro

m
 

fu
nd

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
Tr

ea
su

ry
, t

he
 s

um
 o

f $
10

0,
00

0,
 o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

um
, t

o 
be

 e
xp

en
de

d 
un

de
r 

th
e 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f e

ng
ag

in
g 

on
e 

or
 m

or
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

fo
r t

he
 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
an

d 
m

ak
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l p
la

n 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 s
ai

d 
go

al
s;

  
an

d 
fu

rth
er

, t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
To

w
n 

w
ill

 v
ot

e 
to

 ra
is

e 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 o
r t

ra
ns

fe
r f

ro
m

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fu
nd

s 
in

 th
e 

Tr
ea

su
ry

, t
he

 s
um

 o
f $

10
0,

00
0,

 o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 s
um

, t
o 

be
 e

xp
en

de
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

 fo
r t

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f h
iri

ng
 a

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f E

ne
rg

y 
(o

r o
th

er
 ti

tle
), 

on
 a

n 
on

-g
oi

ng
 b

as
is

, t
o 

be
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

To
w

n 
M

an
ag

er
 fo

r r
ec

om
m

en
di

ng
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
m

ea
su

rin
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 to
w

ar
d 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
es

e 
go

al
s 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l p

la
n,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

tra
ck

in
g 

an
d 

as
se

ss
in

g 
ne

w
 e

ne
rg

y 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 a

nd
 fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s,
 o

r t
ak

e 
an

y 
ot

he
r a

ct
io

n 
re

la
tiv

e 
th

er
et

o.
  

 

1 



2/19/20, 2(14 PMSelect Board approves sustainability office committee - News - seacoastonline.com - Portsmouth, NH

Page 1 of 3https://www.seacoastonline.com/news/20190606/select-board-approves-sustainability-office-committee

By Alex LaCasse 
Posted Jun 6, 2019 at 5:45 PM
Updated Jun 6, 2019 at 5:45 PM

EXETER -- The Select Board unanimously voted this week to create a town committee as the first
step in formalizing the voter-approved sustainability office.

The committee will be composed of seven volunteers, a Select Board representative, a
representative from the Parks and Recreation Department and a representative from the Planning
Department. Following the vote, Select Board chairwoman Kathy Corson urged residents to apply
to serve on the committee.

A group of more than a dozen volunteers calling themselves the Sustainability Office Advocates
(SOA) presented a significant amount of the research into how other towns have implemented
sustainability offices of their own.

They discussed how the office would fit into the town government structure and presented
recommendations for advancing the formal establishment of the office.

According to the group’s presentation, SOA volunteers envisioned a future sustainability
coordinator serving in a “cross-functional” capacity under the town manager. The coordinator
would lead a team working to improve sustainable practices within town departments, develop
initiatives to address climate impacts from various types of development, and provide education
and support to residents to better promote sustainable living in the midst of pending
environmental challenges.

“62 percent of Exeter voters who approved this warrant article expect and want us to act on the
spirit and intent of the warrant article by taking action in 2019,” SOA member Terrie Harman said.
“We are facing critical water, climate and environmental threats, and we’re already far behind the
eight ball in addressing them.”

Select Board approves sustainability o4ce committee

mailto:alacasse@seacoastonline.com
https://www.seacoastonline.com/


2/19/20, 2(14 PMSelect Board approves sustainability office committee - News - seacoastonline.com - Portsmouth, NH

Page 2 of 3https://www.seacoastonline.com/news/20190606/select-board-approves-sustainability-office-committee

The establishment of the sustainability office passed in March’s election as a citizen’s petition by a
vote of 1,409-866. The warrant article, however, did not legally appropriate the funds needed to
hire a part-time sustainability coordinator. The sustainability office petition was technically passed
in an advisory capacity until funding is approved at next year’s Town Meeting.

Members of SOA recommended the town finalize a job description for the sustainability officer
before the end of the year. SOA members also recommended incorporating sustainable practices
into major projects, such as the redesign and expansion of Recreation Park and the library
renovation.

″(These recommendations are) ambitious for a volunteer committee and will require the
participation of town officials until a sustainability coordinator is in place, since some functions
cannot be done solely by people in a volunteer status,” SOA member Derek Haddad said. “The
sustainability officer would not need a significant budget in the beginning as much of the initial
work is relationship building, organization, submitting grant and funding requests, and providing
educational resources for town citizens.”

Selectman Niko Papakonstantis applauded the work of the SOA members for contributing a
significant amount of leg work to jump-start the sustainability office.

“The work you’ve done has saturation in the community, you can see it on social media, and you
can see it in the schools,” Papakonstantis said, addressing SOA members. “Your recommendations
for 2019 are very well thought-out.”

Selectwoman Anne Surman said with the Sustainability Advisory Committee now established, she
wanted to have a conversation in the near future about how and where the office would fit into the
town government.

“The devil is in all the details,” Surman said. “We’re in favor of all the concepts but the tough part is
going to be figuring out where it belongs, and how does it fit in?”

Town Manager Russ Dean said the most likely scenario would be the town hiring its first
sustainability coordinator in the second half of 2020, assuming a budget item appropriating the
funds passes in the next Town Meeting.



2/19/20, 2(14 PMSelect Board approves sustainability office committee - News - seacoastonline.com - Portsmouth, NH

Page 3 of 3https://www.seacoastonline.com/news/20190606/select-board-approves-sustainability-office-committee

“One of the roles of the Sustainability Committee would be to actually begin putting together a
more formal budget for that particular office,” Dean said. “We would try to make a determination
to see where that potentially fits in our organizational structure.”



 

  

Road to 100% Renewables  
 Mass Power Forward Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future



 

 

1 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

 

Contents 
 

why is local action important? ................................... 2 

about the campaign ............................................................. 4 

GOAL ONE: HOW TO PASS A 100% RENEWABLE ENERGY RESOLUTION IN YOUR TOWN OR CITY 5 

SAMPLE RESOLUTION ............................................................... 6 

GOAL TWO: HOW TO implement concrete clean energy projects in your town or city 8 

mass power forward clean energy checklist .... 9 

specific policy recommendations: ........................... 12 

other resources: ............................................................... 13 

 

  



 

 

2 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

why is local action important? 
 

Our dependence on dirty energy like oil and gas pollutes our air and water and 
harms the health of Massachusetts’ communities. Pipelines threaten our safety 
and our green spaces. Pollution from fossil fuels are changing our climate, 
contributing to sea level rise and increasing the frequency of droughts, severe 
storms, and other damaging weather events.  

This unprecedented threat is also an unprecedented opportunity to create clean 
energy jobs, develop sustainable neighborhoods, and clean up our air and water. 
With our state and federal governments considering multi-billion dollar 
investments in fossil fuels, now more than ever we need to lead a clean energy 
revolution from the ground up and show that we can get 100% of our energy from 
clean sources.  We can live better lives while creating good jobs, making great 
neighborhoods, and saving our green space. 

How does switching to clean energy help everyone? 

A switch from dirty to clean energy helps communities in several ways: 

! It puts the power and the solutions in the hands of our communities 
! It creates sustainable jobs - clean energy solutions generate good safe 

jobs 
! It protects green spaces - investing in clean energy and energy 

efficiency will help prevent the expansion of fossil fuel infrastructure 
that threatens our natural landscapes 

! It protects coastlines – immediate major reduction of greenhouse 
emissions is necessary to stabilize sea levels 

! it cleans up our air and water - the more clean energy we put into place, 
the more dirty energy we can take offline 

Is it possible? 

Though a 100% clean energy future may sound daunting, it is possible! Studies from 
major universities and institutions — including Stanford University, the University 
of Delaware, the National Renewable Energy Laboratory, the U.S. Earth System 
Research Laboratory, and others — have shown that a 100% clean electric grid is 
within reach. Communities like San Diego CA, Burlington VT, Boulder CO, and 
Rochester MN have all committed to 100% renewable energy, along with major 
corporations such as Amazon, Google, and Johnson & Johnson.  

 



 

 

3 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

As we transition to 100% clean energy, as much of that energy as possible should 
come from local sources, like wind and solar installations in New England. That way, 
we can maximize the economic and environmental benefits for our communities, 
while ensuring that the dollars we spend are resulting in more clean energy on the 
grid. 

Why local action and local projects? 

Local action and local projects are good for two reasons: they let your community 
make choices based on your values and priorities, and they prove that climate 
change solutions work. Your town gets to decide what our energy future looks like, 
and prove to state policy makers that communities can . We can set the example at 
the local level and show that it is possible to clean up our state and transition to a 
clean energy future! 

Across Massachusetts, cities and towns are already leading the way towards 100 
percent renewable energy. For example: 

! New Bedford has installed 16 megawatts of solar to power its municipal 
facilities, and more than a third of the vehicles in its municipal fleet are 
electric vehicles. 

! Cambridge has adopted a Net Zero Action Plan, laying out steps for the 
city to reduce carbon emissions from its buildings by 70 percent by 
2040. 

! Sutton has received $440,000 in funding for energy efficiency upgrades 
for municipal buildings through the Green Communities program. 

  



 

 

4 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

about the campaign 
 
The 100% Renewables Town and 
Cities Campaign looks to empower 
and give resources to community 
members working to make their city 
less dependent on fossil fuels. Over 
25 cities towns and cities in the 
United States and Canada have 
passed 100%  Renewable Energy 
resolutions, and have been 
successful in decreasing their 
town’s dependency on fossil fuel.  
 
Here in Massachusetts, 100% renewable towns and cities campaign has two goals:  
 

1. GOAL ONE: Persuade municipalities across Massachusetts to pass a non-
binding town or city resolution setting a goal of 100% renewable energy for 
all  

2. GOAL TWO: Persuade each of these municipalities to undertake 1-2 
concrete projects to promote clean energy, energy efficiency, etc. 

 
Note that these goals can be pursued in either order. Some towns and cities will 
work first on passing a nonbinding resolutions, and from there, figure out how to 
bring specific clean energy projects to their town. In other towns and cities, there 
are already active efforts underway to reach Green Communities status, build a 
municipal solar project, pass a Net Zero resolution, etc, and so it makes more sense 
to support these concrete efforts first, using the language of 100% renewable 
energy, and pass a non-binding 100% renewable energy resolution later.  
 
Mass Power Forward, which is a statewide coalition of more than 200 
environmental, community and social justice groups, is the primary organization 
pushing this campaign forward. The primary groups working on this within Mass 
Power Forward are Massachusetts Climate Action Network (MCAN), Environment 
Massachusetts, Clean Water Action, 350 Mass, and Boston Climate Action 
Network. We encourage partnering with local organizations wherever possible! 
 
This document includes  

● A timeline for passing a resolution 
● A sample of a municipal resolution 
● Materials for implementing concrete projects, including the Mass Power 

Forward Checklist, suggested policies and projects, and a link to further 
information on each  

  



 

 

5 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

GOAL ONE: HOW TO PASS A 100% 
RENEWABLE ENERGY RESOLUTION IN 
YOUR TOWN OR CITY  
 

1) Read this handbook and educate yourself about 
the campaign!  

2) Learn about how decisions are made in your town 
or city:  

a) Do you have a town meeting style of 
government? If so, when does town meeting 
happen? Is it a representative town meeting, 
or an open town meeting? Learn more about town meeting here.  

b) Do you have a city council? How many city councillors are there? Who 
are they? Are they generally supportive of clean energy? Where does 
your mayor stand?  

3) Research your town’s progress on clean energy to date 
a) What has the city well? What can still be done? 
b) The checklist at the end of this handbook may be helpful for assessing 

your town’s progress 
4) Have some kind of informational meeting for community members, and form a 

team  
5) Educate active people in town government (e.g. Board of Selectmen, city 

councillor, people on key committees) on the need to set a goal of reaching 
100% renewable energy  

6) Spread the word! Go on public access TV, put articles in the local paper, bring 
speaker to town, hold public events (e.g. at the elementary school) 

7) For town meeting style of government:  
a) Draft a town meeting warrant article using sample below  
b) Get enough signatures to submit the warrant article to the town (you may 

need 10 or 20 - depends on the town) 
c) Submit the warrant article to the town government  
d) Meet with selectmen and encourage them to offer their support 
e) Get the word out and encourage fellow citizens and/or town meeting 

members to vote yes!  
8) For City Council style of government:  

a) Meet with City Councillors to gauge submit  
b) Work with a City Councillor to draft a resolution  
c) Get the City Councillor to submit the resolution to the City Council  
d) Participate in city council committee hearings as needed! Turn out 

supporters to give testimony in support of the resolution  
e) Turn out big for the City Council vote! 
f) If the City Council passes the resolution, push the mayor to vote yes!  

9) Help follow through and implement next steps -- use momentum provided by 
the warrant article to push for clean energy projects in your town or city 



 

 

6 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

SAMPLE RESOLUTION  
 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of CITY NAME in support of 100 percent 
renewable energy 
 
WHEREAS, too much of Massachusetts’ energy comes from fossil fuels that pollute 
our air and water and alter our climate; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Massachusetts communities are already feeling the impacts of climate 
change; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of CITY NAME is already taking action to reduce its carbon 
emissions and promote clean energy, including LOCAL EXAMPLES (e.g., energy 
efficiency retrofits of all municipal buildings and the installation of solar panels on 
the city landfill); and 
 
WHEREAS, clean energy has brought many benefits to Massachusetts, including 
reduced pollution, tens of thousands of clean energy jobs, and more of our energy 
dollars retained in the local economy; and 
 
WHEREAS, Massachusetts has historically been a leader in the fight against global 
warming, and has a responsibility to continue to set a positive example for other 
states and countries to follow; and 
 
WHEREAS, Massachusetts can get 100 percent of its energy from clean, renewable 
sources by harnessing its abundant solar and wind resources, and taking 
advantage of innovations in energy efficiency, green transportation, energy 
storage, and other technologies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the transition to 100 percent renewable energy should promote 
employment opportunities and economic growth in our communities, facilitate 
local control and ownership over energy options, and bring tangible benefits to 
low-income residents and others who have historically been disadvantaged by our 
energy system; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of CITY NAME, in 
the County of COUNTY NAME, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, that 
Massachusetts should commit to a goal of 100 percent clean, renewable energy, 
and move as quickly as possible to achieve that goal; 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that leaders in the Legislature and statewide 
elected and appointed officials are urged to do everything in their power to bring 
Massachusetts closer to 100 percent renewable energy, and ensure that the 
benefits of renewable energy are realized by Massachusetts residents from all 
walks of life; 
 



 

 

7 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of CITY NAME will commit to a goal of 
100 percent renewable energy, and its officials and staff will consider all municipal 
decisions in light of whether they will bring the City and its residents, businesses, 
and institutions closer to 100 percent renewable energy; 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of CITY NAME will avoid taking actions 
that could increase the use of fossil fuels or delay the transition to 100 percent 
renewable energy; 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of CITY NAME will take actions to 
promote clean energy and reduce fossil fuel use, including: 

• EXAMPLE 
• EXAMPLE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

8 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

GOAL TWO: HOW TO implement concrete clean energy 
projects in your town or city 
 

1) Educate yourself using materials 
provided – check out policy tiers 
below and policy fact sheets.  

2) Assess your town’s progress to 
date. Use the Mass Power Forward 
checklist below to assess your 
town’s tier (link for identical 
printable checklist) 

3) Have some kind of informational 
meeting  

4) Form a team, and decide what 
concrete measures are 
appropriate for your municipality, 
based on the suggestions below  

5) Educate active people in town government (e.g. Board of Selectmen, city 
councillor, people on key committees) and work with them to figure out next 
steps for moving the project forward  

6) Spread the word! Go on public access TV, put articles in the local paper, bring 
speaker to town, hold public events (e.g. at the elementary school) 

7) Help follow through and implement next steps  
 

  



 

 

9 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

mass power forward clean energy checklist  
 
This checklist is intended to help you understand how much your town has already 
done on clean energy and climate change, so you can target your next steps. Check 
a box if your town has done an action, or is well on its way to completing it.  
 
You should be able to sit down with someone from your town/city government 
and fill this out.  
 
Energy efficiency 

❏ Completed energy audits in municipal buildings to identify energy-saving 
opportunities 

❏ Implemented energy efficiency upgrades in municipal buildings: 
❏ Installing LED or high-efficiency fluorescent interior lights 
❏ Installing occupancy sensors to automatically turn lights on and off 

as needed 
❏ Installing new, high-efficiency heating and cooling equipment 
❏ Installing an energy management system 
❏ Weatherizing the building (for example, by installing additional 

insulation or high-performance windows) 
❏ Instituting a program to encourage building occupants to reduce 

energy use by modifying their behavior, such as turning off 
equipment when not in use 

❏ Converted streetlights to LED fixtures 
❏ Created a local outreach program to help connect residents and businesses 

with energy efficiency audits and upgrades 
❏ Mass Save program outreach for homes 
❏ Mass Save for businesses and institutions 

 
Town Workings 

❏ Established a committee to focus on energy, climate, and/or environmental 
issues 

❏ Local, volunteer-led 
❏ Municipal government-level committee 

❏ Applied for Green Communities status under the Mass. Dept. of Energy 
Resources 

❏ Received Green Communities status 
❏ Applied for grants for energy upgrades from the Green Communities 

program 
❏ Received Green Communities grants 
❏ Completed a greenhouse gas inventory 
❏ Created a climate action plan 

❏ If so, has it been updated in the last 5 years? 
❏ Hired an energy manager or sustainability manager 

❏ If not, is there another staff person who is responsible for 
implementing clean energy and energy efficiency improvements? 



 

 

10 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

 
Clean energy 

❏ Community choice aggregation passed (also known as “municipal 
aggregation”) 

❏ With at least 5 percent additional Class I renewable energy? 
❏ Community choice aggregation implemented 
❏ Municipal operations’ electricity from clean source 
❏ Participated in MassCEC’s Solarize Mass program 

❏ If not: have you created a similar program to connect residents and 
businesses with solar installations? 

❏ New buildings required to be “solar-ready” 
❏ Solar installed on school buildings 
❏ Solar installed on capped landfill 
❏ Solar installed on town buildings 
❏ Solar installed on town parking lots (e.g., solar canopies) 
❏ Wind turbines installed or wind energy purchased 

 
Transportation 

❏ Adopted a Complete Streets policy, requiring streets to be designed with the 
needs of all users in mind (including cyclists and pedestrians) 

❏ Installed bike lanes 
❏ Are they being updated? 

❏ No idling by-law in place 
❏ Street planning like traffic calming patterns and roundabouts being 

implemented 
❏ Permeable paving for parking lots, etc 
❏ Installed electric vehicle charging stations that are open for the public to use 
❏ Purchased electric vehicles for town fleet 
❏ Purchased electric transit buses or schoolbuses 

 
Other Sustainable Actions 

❏ Created a bulk purchasing and outreach program for renewable heating 
technologies (e.g., solar hot water, air source heat pumps) 

❏ Composting programs  
❏ Recycling for hard to recycle items such as styrofoam, lids, etc 
❏ Tree plantings 

 
Adaptation 

❏ Adaptation plan for increased heat waves, stronger storms 
❏ If coastal, sea level rise adaptation plan 

 
Next, count up the number of checkmarks on your sheet.  
 
1-7) If you have checked 7 items or less, your town is just starting down the path to 
sustainability. We would put you in the category of a “beginner” town. This is 
exciting, because it means you have LOTS of things you can do to make things 



 

 

11 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

better! However, it also means you will probably need to do some education of 
people in your town, including town staff. But don’t worry, we have materials to help 
you do this.  
 
8-15) If you checked 8-15 items, your town is on it’s way to becoming a clean energy 
powerhouse. We would put you in the category of an “intermediate” town. The great 
news is that means you can still pick some low hanging fruit and do some fairly 
simple things that make a big difference. It also means there is a general level of 
knowledge about climate and clean energy issues, and it is probably a priority for 
people in town.  
 
16-33) If you checked more than 10 items, you are a very active and sustainable 
community. We would put you in the category of an “advanced” town. This means 
you have done a lot, which is wonderful, but it also means the stuff that is left is 
harder to do. The great news is that being advanced means your town is pretty 
knowledgeable about climate change and committed to making the changes to 
become a truly sustainable town, and you get to be on the cutting edge of towns in 
MA making strong commitments to solutions.  
 
So now what?  
Now you are ready to get started!  See our list of policy and project 
recommendations for each tier (beginner, intermediate, advanced). We have 
narrowed this down to the top things that you can do as a town to cut pollution and 
make your town into a clean energy powerhouse. Then, check out the fact sheets, 
which include information on each policy recommendation!  

  



 

 

12 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

specific policy recommendations:  
 
Beginner towns 

1. Do a greenhouse gas inventory to identify the largest sources of global 
warming pollution in the community. Create a basic climate action plan for 
the town. (short-term) 

2. Conduct an energy efficiency audit of all municipal buildings, including 
schools, and complete all energy efficiency upgrades with a payback period 
of 10 years or less. Additionally, convert streetlights to LED fixtures. 
(medium-term) 

3. Join the Commonwealth’s Green Communities Program, which provides 
funding for local clean energy and energy efficiency projects. (long-term) 

4. Adopt a Complete Streets policy, requiring roads to be designed in a way 
that is safe and accessible for all users, including cyclists and pedestrians. 

 
Intermediate towns 

1. Pass community choice aggregation (which allows the municipality to 
choose a default source of electricity for residents and businesses), with at 
least 5 percent additional Class 1 Renewable Energy Credits beyond what 
the state requires. 

2. Advance municipal policies that promote solar power in public and private 
development through “solar-ready” requirements on new construction, 
renewable energy development on public buildings and community-wide 
solar challenges such as the Solarize Massachusetts program. 

3. Increase access for all to electric vehicles through town purchases of 
electric buses, increasing the percentage of electric vehicles in town fleets, 
and installing electric vehicle charging stations that are open for the public 
to use. 

 
Advanced towns 

1. Create an energy efficiency program with a strong emphasis on serving 
renters and low-income families. 

2. Create a net zero plan, setting out a roadmap to achieve zero emissions for 
buildings and transportation. 

3. For communities with existing climate action plans, update the local climate 
action plan to incorporate environmental justice and equity principles. 

4. Create a community outreach and bulk purchasing program to increase the 
adoption of renewable heating technologies, such as solar thermal, 
geothermal, and air source heat pumps. 

 
A reminder: it might be tempting to go for the big guns, even if you are in a beginner 
town. We don’t recommend that - we want you to WIN in your first campaign (and 
second, and third).  
 



 

 

13 100% Renewable Towns & Cities Campaign Handbook 

 MASS
 POWER
FORWARD

For a clean energy future

other resources:  
 

 
● Now that you've picked the policy to 

focus on, the next step is to advocate 
for your city or town officials to adopt 
that policy. We have prepared fact 
sheets about each of the above policy 
recommendations, with basic 
information about how to get started, 
stories of towns that have already 
taken action, and links to other online 
resources. You should share these fact 
sheets with your local officials, bring them to events, etc. You can access the fact 
sheets at http://mapowerforward.com/100re.  

● Want to host a 100% Renewable Towns and Cities campaign kick-off event to raise 
community awareness and garner interest? Email Emily Kirkland, 
Emily@betterfutureproject.org, for our event planning guide!  

● Questions? Concerns? Ideas? We’d love to hear from you and put you in touch with 
other local activists in your area!  
Contact info:  
 

Ben Hellerstein, Environment Massachusetts, 
ben@environmentmassachusetts.org 
 
Carol Oldham, MA Climate Action Network, 
carololdham@massclimateaction.net 
 
Joel Wool, Clean Water Action, jwool@cleanwater.org 
 
Emily Kirkland, 350 Mass, emily@betterfutureproject.org.  
 

 



 

 
 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
http://bit.ly/2m9KrIJ 

Greenhouse Gas Inventory 
 
Air pollution from fossil fuels, like carbon dioxide and methane, causes climate change. A first 
step to figuring out where to focus your town’s clean energy efforts is to do an inventory of 
where your pollution is coming from, or a Greenhouse Gas Inventory. 
 
What is a Greenhouse Gas Inventory? 
A Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Inventory estimates the amount of greenhouse gas emissions from a 
town or city, as well as by power plants that supply electricity to the town’s customers.  An 
inventory usually lists the energy use and resulting emissions of municipal buildings, 
residences, and businesses.  Emissions come from categories like: 

● Electricity 
● Building heat (oil and natural gas) in commercial, residential and municipal buildings 
● Transportation (gasoline and diesel) 
● Waste, or garbage  

 
Why is it important to know where our greenhouse gas pollution is coming from? 
It is important to do an inventory in order to get a baseline estimate of the energy use and GHG 
emissions within your community, so that GHG emission reduction targets can then be set. This 
will help your town figure out where you can have the most impact.  
 
This is just one tool in a toolkit for involving town officials and residents in making your town 
more sustainable. 
 
What are the steps for doing a GHG Inventory? 

1. Pull together a team and divide up the work. 
2. Figure out the scope of your inventory. (Are you looking only at municipal operations or 

at the community as a whole?) 
3. Identify the base year. (You can use Mass Save’s data from 2013.) 
4. Identify sources of data for inventory (see below). 
5. Collect and categorize data. 
6. Calculate base year emissions. 
7. Think about how to use this data. How can you involve your community in next steps? 
8. Once you have a clear idea of where your climate change causing pollution is coming 

from now, you need to make a plan! Check out our fact sheet on how to make a climate 
action plan. 

 
Data Sources 



 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
http://bit.ly/2m9KrIJ 

● Electricity 
○ Utility Companies (National Grid, Eversource) are the main places to get data on 

electricity usage for towns. This can be broken down by residential and 
commercial use. 

○ Mass Save has a data tool. Click on your town on the map, and you will get data 
(only for 2013) on residential and commercial electricity and natural gas usage.  

○ If your town or city has a Community Choice Aggregation program, the utilities 
are required to give your community data on electricity use. 

○ In order to get data on municipal buildings, look at the town’s utility bills. It is 
helpful to separate out the municipal energy use, in order to compare emissions 
from municipal, commercial, and residential buildings. 

● Building heat (oil and/or natural gas) 
○ Utilities can provide data on natural gas usage (see Mass Save link above). The 

number of homes or businesses using natural gas can be subtracted out from the 
total number of homes or businesses to get an estimate of heating oil use.  

○ There is U.S. Census data on type of home heating fuel. Click on the link below, 
put in the town or city, and then click on “Physical Housing Characteristics” under 
“2014 American Community Survey.” 

● Transportation 
○ For car emissions data, you can contact the Metropolitan Area Planning Council.  

They have compiled data from the Registry of Motor Vehicles, and can give you 
the number of cars owned, the years of the cars, and the miles driven. 

● Waste 
○ Data on the amount of waste being landfilled or incinerated, and the associated 

emissions, can be obtained from the waste diversion facility itself. You can use 
this EPA calculator to calculate emissions from waste. 

● Calculating emissions 
○ The EPA has an online tool to calculate carbon dioxide emission equivalents for 

burning gasoline and using electricity, heating oil and natural gas: 
○ Local Governments for Sustainability (ICLEI) also has an online tool for 

calculating GHG emissions called ClearPath, and it is free for all local 
governments to use. 

 
 

  



 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
http://bit.ly/2m9KrIJ 

 

Success Stories 
 
Lexington 
Sustainable Lexington had a team of five people and two volunteer interns conducting their 
inventory.  They used 2012 as a base year, and got emissions data for electricity, heat, 
transportation, waste disposal, and food production/consumption.  All of the data was local 
except for food. They also later added data from natural gas leaks, which added 10% to the 
town’s total emissions.  
 
The inventory revealed that 66% of the town’s emissions were coming from buildings, and that 
almost a third of total emissions were from industry.  The inventory also showed that only 2% of 
emissions were from municipal buildings. Mark Sandeen (from Sustainable Lexington and 
MCAN) presented this information to the town so that they could move forward on setting 
reduction targets and taking action. Actions that Lexington is taking include setting up 
Community Choice Aggregation and writing a plan for the town to go Net Zero. 
 
Brookline 
The inventory in Brookline was completed primarily by Alan Leviton, a retired engineer active in 
MCAN and in Climate Change Action Brookline.  He used 2009 as the base year, and 
calculated emissions for electricity, heat, and transportation.  
 
To help get data from the utilities, he contacted Representative Frank Smizik, who sits on the 
House Committee on Global Warming and Climate Change. Representative Smizik put him in 
touch with sources at Eversource and National Grid who helped provide Alan with the data on 
electricity and natural gas usage that he needed.   
 
Alan used U.S. Census data to get the percentages of homes in Brookline that use oil and 
natural gas, as well as DOE data on BTUs per square foot for oil and natural gas, to calculate 
emissions for oil and natural gas heat.  The inventory showed that, similar to Lexington, 
municipal buildings produced only 2% of emissions, while commercial buildings produced 25-
30%, and residential buildings produced 60-70%.  The inventory also showed that electricity use 
generated about one third of all emissions.   
 
Based on these findings, the town focused on reducing emissions from residential buildings, 
including a big push for Mass Save audits and weatherization, increasing the number of homes 
with solar panels with Solarize Mass, and setting up a Community Choice Aggregation program 
that provides 25% of energy from renewables.   
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
Writing A Climate Action Plan 

Climate Change is impacting our towns and cities, our families and neighborhoods. Your 
town can be a part of the solution, and becoming sustainable and climate friendly as a 
community starts with making a plan. Working with your neighbors and your elected 
officials, you can get from where you are today to a better world.  
 
What is a Climate Action Plan? 
A Climate Action Plan (CAP) is a document that outlines a strategy to reduce 
Greenhouse Gas emissions. By setting goals and priorities for reducing emissions, a 
climate action plan provides a framework for achieving those goals. 
 
How is It different from a Sustainability Plan or a Climate Resilience Plan? 
A CAP is a framework of strategies for reducing GHG emissions and mitigating climate 
change.  A Sustainability Plan is generally broader in scope, and addresses many more 
environmental issues, such as those related to solid waste, water use, and land 
conservation.  A CAP may touch on these areas as they pertain to climate change, and it 
often makes sense for a CAP to be part of a larger Sustainability Plan.   
 
A climate resilience or adaptation plan differs from a CAP in that it addresses the 
expected impacts of climate change, such as sea level rise and extreme weather event, 
rather than the mitigation of climate change. Communities should ideally develop both of 
these types of plans, and focus on initiatives that will help to both reduce GHG emissions 
and also reduce the effects of climate change.  An example of this is green roofs, which 
both reduce energy consumption and lower emissions from heat use, and also reduce 
stormwater runoff resulting from increased precipitation. 
 
Why Is a Climate Action Plan important? 
A Climate Action Plan is important because it helps your town prioritize the actions you 
need to take to reduce your climate impact, and it provides a framework and a roadmap 
for implementing actions and policies. Writing a plan allows everyone to be involved in 
prioritizing actions, and facilitates coordination among town officials and departments. 
 
What are the steps to writing your plan? 

1. Determine your leadership team, advisory council, and responsibilities. 
2. Determine the scope of the plan - what areas of energy use will it address? 
3. Come up with a strategy for communicating with and engaging all stakeholders 

and community members. (see our fact sheet on integrating equity into climate 
planning, here: http://bit.ly/2h3ssRh ) 

4. Complete and analyze GHG inventory (baseline emissions) if this hasn’t been 
done. 

5. Set goals and GHG emissions reductions targets. 



 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
 

6. Identify initiatives and implementation measures to reach emissions reduction 
goals. Consider using SMART (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant, and 
Timely) criteria for developing initiatives. 

7. Quantify the potential impact of the initiatives, and prioritize initiatives. 
8. Develop a plan for implementation. 
9. Establish metrics for tracking and reporting progress toward goals. 
10. Draft the plan, get feedback, and edit your plan. 
11. Implement the plan - and don’t forget to track and report your progress! 

 
A Success Story from Brookline: 
Brookline was one of the first communities in Massachusetts to address climate change.  
The town did an inventory of greenhouse gas emissions in 2000, and wrote the first 
Climate Action Plan in 2002.  While the town took a number of steps to reduce emissions 
based on that plan, they wanted to do more.  

In 2008, Climate Action Brookline presented a warrant article to town meeting, 
which passed overwhelmingly, to create a 15 member Climate Action Committee. The 
committee then did another baseline emissions inventory, and rewrote the Climate Action 
Plan in 2012.  The goal, consistent with the MA Global Warming Solutions Act, is to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions 25% from 1990 levels by 2020, and 80% by 2050. To 
write the plan, a subcommittee reviewed plans from around the US and the world, and 
then solicited public input online and in meetings for actions to take to reduce emissions.  
The subcommittee then ranked over 150 possible actions, and established rating criteria 
such as carbon savings, cost, and feasibility.   

They narrowed the list of actions to 37, and grouped them into 6 categories such 
as energy efficiency, renewable energy, and food and agriculture.  As a result of 
Brookline’s Climate Action Plan, the town has implemented measures such as “Green 
Homes Brookline,” to increase the number of home energy audits and weatherizations, 
Solarize Mass, which increased the number of homes with solar panels, and Community 
Choice Aggregation, which will increase the amount of energy from renewables that the 
town uses for electricity. 
  
*The steps for writing a Climate Action Plan are based on the recommendations in the 
“Climate Action Planning Guide,” developed by the Climate Smart Communities Program 
of the New York Energy Research and Development Authority. 
(http://www.midhudsoncsc.org/documents/CAP%20Guide_MAR%202014_FINAL.pdf) 



 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapowerforward.com 
 

Energy efficiency for municipal buildings and facilities 
 
Investing in energy efficiency is one of the most important steps we can take to reduce our fossil 
fuel use and achieve 100 percent renewable energy. 
 
City and town governments can take several steps to make schools, municipal offices, police 
and fire departments, and other public buildings more efficient. By maximizing the energy 
efficiency of municipal buildings, local governments can reduce their energy use, cut down on 
pollution, save taxpayer money, and set a positive example for residents and businesses in the 
community to follow. 
 
The American Council for an Energy-Efficient Economy estimates that we can reduce our use of 
energy by 40-60% by 2050 through energy efficiency measures. Cities and towns can achieve 
major gains in energy efficiency today, and realize the benefits for years to come. 
 
First step: Complete an energy audit. 
 
Typically, the first step towards improving the energy efficiency of municipal buildings is to 
complete an energy audit. Trained professionals will evaluate various aspects of the building —
 including lighting, heating and cooling systems, appliances, and insulation — to identify 
opportunities for energy savings. Often, an energy audit will include an estimate of how long it 
will take for each efficiency measure to pay for itself through reduced energy costs — known as 
the “payback period.” 
 
These audits are available to most municipalities through the Mass Save program (except for 
cities and towns that are served by a municipal utility). 
 
Some communities choose to enter into an energy performance contract, where local officials 
hire a contractor to identify and carry out energy efficiency upgrades, with the costs of the 
contract typically covered by the energy savings. 
 
How can we make municipal buildings more efficient? 
 
According to a recent survey of 191 cities and towns conducted by the Environment 
Massachusetts Research & Policy Center, these are the most common energy efficiency 
measures implemented by municipalities in Massachusetts: 

● Installing LED or high-efficiency fluorescent interior lights. (82.2%) 
● Installing new, high-efficiency heating and cooling equipment. (71.2%) 
● Installing occupancy sensors to automatically turn lights on and off as needed. (70.2%) 
● Weatherizing the building (for example, by installing additional insulation or high-

performance windows). (66.0%) 



 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapowerforward.com 
 

 
Other common energy efficiency practices include: 

● Installing an energy management system. These systems help to optimize a building’s 
energy performance by enabling the control and monitoring of building facilities, such as 
heating and cooling equipment, by computer. 

● Installing variable frequency drives (VFDs) to decrease motor speed in heating and 
cooling systems when possible. 

● Instituting a program to encourage municipal employees to reduce energy usage 
through their behavior. 

 
What funding and support is available for municipal energy efficiency efforts? 
 

● The Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources has assembled a list of 
recommendations and resources for communities interested in energy efficiency 
upgrades. 

● The Mass Save program provides energy audits for municipalities that are served by 
investor-owned utilities (rather than municipal utilities). Mass Save also helps to identify 
incentives and financing opportunities for energy efficiency upgrades. 

● Cities and towns that have joined the Green Communities program can qualify for grants 
to offset the cost of energy audits and energy efficiency upgrades. The Green 
Communities program also provides technical assistance and advice for municipal clean 
energy and energy efficiency efforts. 

● Some regional planning agencies, such as the Metropolitan Area Planning Council, 
provide technical assistance for communities within their coverage area that are 
considering energy efficiency upgrades. These agencies sometimes help to connect city 
and town governments with qualified contractors through a joint procurement process. 

● Through the Industrial Assessment Center program, the Center for Energy Efficiency 
and Renewable Energy at UMass Amherst offers free energy audits for water or 
wastewater treatment facilities with annual energy bills of at least $100,000. 

● The UMass Clean Energy Extension offers free assistance for clean energy projects on 
a case-by-case basis. Usually it is a good idea to contact the utility company first to see 
what support they can provide, and then contact UMass Clean Energy Extension if 
additional assistance is needed. 

 
 
 
 
LED Streetlights 
 
Upgrading streetlights to LED fixtures can result in significant energy savings. In 2015, the Town 
of Swampscott received funding through the Green Communities program to change its 



 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapowerforward.com 
 

streetlights to LEDs. As a result, Swampscott reduced municipal electricity usage by more than 
477,000 kilowatt-hours per year, saving $80,000 on its lighting bills. 
 
Although there is a significant cost associated with LED fixtures, the payback period is typically 
around 7 years. In addition to using less energy, LED fixtures also last longer than other types 
of outdoor lighting, cutting down on maintenance costs. 
 
LEED Certification 
 
Some communities require all new or renovated municipal buildings to meet higher standards 
for energy efficiency — for example, by qualifying for LEED certification. LEED is an 
international certification system for green buildings, taking into account energy efficiency, 
sustainable construction materials, water conservation, and other factors. Different levels of 
LEED certification are available, including Silver, Gold, and Platinum. 
 
The Collaborative for High-Performance Schools (CHPS) is a similar certification system, 
specifically for school buildings. 
 
In a recent survey conducted by the Environment Massachusetts Research & Policy Center, 
19.4 percent of communities that responded said that they require new or renovated municipal 
buildings to meet LEED or other energy efficiency standards. 



 

 

 
Becoming a Green Community 

Does your community want to make a commitment to being better on energy efficiency 
and clean energy? Do you want state support to figure out how to be a cleaner, greener 
town, and state grants for projects to become more sustainable?  
 
What is the Green Communities Program? 
The Green Communities Program strives to help all Massachusetts cities/towns find 
clean energy solutions, reduce energy costs, and strengthen local economies. The 
program provides technical assistance and financial support for municipal initiatives 
aimed to improve energy efficiency and increase the use of renewable energy in public 
buildings, facilities, and schools. Overall, the Green Communities Program helps clean 
up your community’s environment and encourages cutting-edge green development. 
  
What is the Green Communities Designation? 
The Green Communities Designation demonstrates a municipality's commitment to 
“green” efforts at the local level and lets the city or town get help for energy efficiency 
and renewable energy initiatives from the state. Green Communities aim to decrease 
their energy use by 20% over the course of 5 years and receive assistance in improving 
the energy efficiency of their public buildings, facilities, and schools.  
  
What are the steps for becoming a Green Community? 
Step 1: Review the Criteria to be Designated a Green Community: 

● Provide as-of-right siting in designated locations for renewable energy  
● Simplify and expedite permitting for new clean energy facilities 
● Develop a plan to reduce energy use by 20% within 5 years 
● Purchase fuel-efficient vehicles for municipality departments 
● Minimize life-cycle energy costs for new construction (e.g. “Stretch Code”) 

Step 2: Submit application to DOER’s Green Communities Division 
Step 3: Green Communities Division review 
Step 4: If accepted, submit proposal for energy reduction plans  
Overall, becoming a green community can take more than a year, but it is a great way to learn 
where your community currently stands, bring your neighbors up to speed on the issues, and 
then get expert help on taking your next steps.  
 
What are resources to help with the process of becoming a Green Community? 
Green Communities Program Guidance is available through the MA DOER, and 
Regional Coordinators serve as go-to contacts to answer questions, give advice, and 



 

assist with energy initiatives. Read more: 
http://www.mass.gov/eea/docs/doer/green-communities/grant-program/gc-program-guidance-fall-
2016.pdf         
http://www.mass.gov/eea/energy-utilities-clean-tech/green-communities/green-communities-coordinators/ 
 
Technical Assistance: Communities can often find technical assistance through their 
local planning agencies. For eample, the Metropolitan Area Planning Council provides 
help to 101 communities in Greater Boston (http://www.mapc.org/green-communities-
ta).   
 
Central Region: Kelly Brown (Kelly.brown@state.ma.us) 
Northeast  Region: Joanne Bissetta (Joanne.bissetta@state.ma.us) 
Southeast Region: Seth Pickering (Seth.pickering@state.ma.us) 
Western Region: Jim Barry (Jim.barry@state.ma.us) 
  

Success Stories: 
Arlington, MA was one of the first municipalities 
to be designated as a Green Community in the 
spring of 2010. Since then, they have successfully 
reduced their energy consumption by 21% and 
have saved approximately $354,000 in annual 
energy costs. Arlington was also the winner of the 
DOER’s Leading by Example Award in 2013. 
The Highland Fire Station in Arlington was recently 
renovated and designated a LEED Silver Building. 
Just one example of many sustainable projects 
going  on in town! 

 
 
Dedham, MA became a designated Green Community in 
2011 and has enjoyed both the economic and the 
environmental benefits associated with this designation. 
Dedham successfully launched its Sustainable Dedham 
Initiative to educate its residents about energy 
conservation and sustainability. Additionally, the town has 
installed solar arrays on the high school and Town Hall, 
partnered with Next Step Living and Sustainable Business 
Network of Massachusetts, and has had countless other 
successful initiatives! 



 
Complete Streets 

 
Transportation is the largest source of global warming pollution in Massachusetts, responsible 
for 39 percent of statewide emissions. Pollution from cars and trucks is harmful to our health, 
contributing to diseases like asthma, bronchitis, and cancer. 
 
Today, most of our transportation system is powered by oil. By promoting non-motorized forms 
of transportation like walking and biking, we can cut down on fossil fuel use and bring 
Massachusetts closer to 100 percent renewable energy economy-wide. 
 
But often, our streets are designed for cars rather than people, with few sidewalks or bike lanes. 
As a result, walking and biking can seem unsafe, and a car can seem like the only way to get 
where you need to go. 
 
Complete Streets is an approach to road design that requires planners to take into account the 
needs of all users, including pedestrians and cyclists, when building new streets or redesigning 
existing streets. By adopting a Complete Streets policy, communities can increase opportunities 
for walking and biking, and reduce the need for residents to travel by car. 
 
What is a Complete Street? 
 
According to the Massachusetts Department of Transportation, a Complete Street is “one that 
provides safe and accessible options for all travel modes - walking, biking, transit and vehicles – 
for people of all ages and abilities.” 
 
Often, Complete Streets include the following elements: 

● Sidewalks and crosswalks to encourage walking 
● Bike lanes, protected bike lanes (lanes that are separated from traffic by parked cars, 

plantings, or other barriers), and sharrows (pavement markings) to encourage biking 
● Transit stops and designated bus lanes, where appropriate, to encourage the use of 

mass transit 
● Traffic calming measures to reduce the speed of cars in residential and commercial 

areas, including speed humps, curb extensions, and speed limit reductions 
● Curb cuts and other features to ensure that everyone can get around, particularly people 

with disabilities and older adults 
 
Complete Streets doesn’t mean that every road needs to have all of the features above. Rather, 
local officials and planners should consider the needs of all users when they design streets, and 
make decisions that will promote the use of zero-carbon alternatives like biking and walking. 
Developing a Complete Streets policy 
 



 
Typically, the first step is for communities to adopt a Complete Streets policy. This policy 
provides guidance to local officials and planners to ensure that streets are designed to be safe 
and accessible for all users. Depending on the community, this policy may be adopted by the 
city council, the board of selectmen, or the mayor. 
 
Smart Growth America and the National Complete Streets Coalition have developed guidelines 
for communities looking to adopt Complete Streets policies, as well as sample policies adopted 
by cities and towns across the country.  
 
 
What funding and support are available? 
 

● The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) has created a Complete 
Streets Funding Program to provide support for municipalities at various stages of 
implementation. Funding can be used to support developing a Complete Streets policy, 
creating a plan to prioritize Complete Streets implementation, and building roadways that 
meet Complete Streets goals. The funding program is set to expire at the end of the 
current fiscal year, but may be extended depending on the program’s success. 

● What Works, a report from Transportation for Massachusetts, Livable Streets, 
Metropolitan Area Planning Council, and WalkBoston, profiles communities in 
Massachusetts and across the country that have adopted successful, low-cost measures 
to promote walking, biking, and transit. 

● Regional planning agencies such as the Metropolitan Area Planning Council (MAPC) 
may provide support for communities looking to adopt Complete Streets policies and 
develop bicycle and pedestrian network plans. MAPC has created a fact sheet outlining 
the benefits of Complete Streets and the steps for communities to qualify for funding 
from MassDOT. 

● The Massachusetts Public Health Association has assembled a list of Complete Streets 
resources. 



!

!

Community)Choice)Aggregation)
)

What)is)Community)Choice)Aggregation?)
Community!Choice!Aggregation!(CCA)!is!basically!bulk!buying!for!electricity.!It!is!a!
process!by!which!municipalities!can!aggregate!and!switch!the!electricity!of!the!
households!and!small!businesses!from!basic!service!over!to!cleaner!energy.!!!
!
An!energy!broker!is!employed!to!ensure!the!municipality!can!purchase!the!amount!
and!types!of!energy!needed,!and!residents!may!opt!out!at!any!time.!The!electricity!is!
still!distributed!and!billed!through!the!original!utility,!i.e.!Eversource.!!

!
CCA)allows)residents)and)small)businesses)to)seamlessly)switch)to)
more)renewable)energy,)and)do)the)right)thing)on)climate)change.)

Basic)Outline)of)Community)Choice)Aggregation)Approval)Process:)
)

o Town!Meeting!approval!to!pursue!CCA)

(minimum renewable 
energy requirement)!

(goal: increase renewable 
energy requirement)!

Current Electricity Supply & 
!



!

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
!

o Broker!creates!aggregation!plan!(at!no!cost!to!town))
o Board!of!Selectmen!approves!aggregation!plan)
o Department!of!Energy!Resources!reviews!aggregation!plan!
o Department!of!Public!Utilities!approves!plan)
o Broker!issues!RFP!for!competitive!supplier)
o Town!selects!competitive!supplier)
o Broker!publicizes!CCA!to!residents!and!small!businesses,!and!handles!all!optJ

out!requests)
If)no)plans)or)energy)prices)are)deemed)acceptable,)there)is)no)obligation)for)the)town)
to)proceed.)
)

if!your!city!or!town!has!a!city!council,!they!would!take!the!place!of!the!town!meeting,!
and!the!mayor!plays!a!similar!role!to!the!Board!of!Selectmen.)
)

)
Sample)Enabling)Language:)(from)municipalities)who)have)already)approved)CCA))

Dedham:)
To!see!if!the!Town!will!vote!to!authorize!the!Board!of!Selectmen!to!research!and!develop!a!
plan!to!participate!in!a!contract!or!contracts,!to!aggregate!the!electricity!load!of!the!residents!
and!businesses!in!the!Town!of!Dedham!and!for!other!related!services,!independently!or!in!
joint!action!with!other!municipalities,!in!accordance!with!the!provisions!of!Chapter!164!of!
the!Acts!of!1997,!which!provision!established!a!competitive!marketplace!through!
deregulation!and!restructuring!of!the!electric!utility!industry;!and!further!authorize!the!
Town!Manager!to!establish,!and/or!appoint!representatives!for!a!committee!to!oversee!such!
independent!or!joint!action,!or!take!any!other!action!relative!thereto.!

Lexington:)
To!see!if!the!Town!will!vote!to!authorize!the!Board!of!Selectmen!to!enter!into!a!Community!
Choice!Aggregation!Program!and!contract!for!electric!supply!for!Lexington!residents!and!
businesses!as!per!MGL!164,!Section!134,!or!otherwise!act!thereon.!

Melrose:)
Be!it!be!ordered!that!the!Melrose!Board!of!Aldermen!authorize!the!Mayor!and!appropriate!
department(s)!to!research!and!develop!a!plan!to!participate!in!a!contract,!or!contracts,!to!
aggregate!the!electricity!load!of!the!residents!and!businesses!in!the!City!of!Melrose,!and!for!
other!related!services,!independently,!or!in!joint!action!with!other!municipalities,!and!
further!authorizes!the!Mayor!to!execute!all!documents!necessary!to!accomplish!the!same.!



 

 
 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
 
 

 

Local Solar Energy 
Solar is incredibly popular in Massachusetts, with more than 84% of people saying that 
Massachusetts should rely more on solar power. Solar is also a burgeoning jobs engine, 
employing more than 15,000 people in Massachusetts alone. You can get your energy from the 
sun AND save money - some towns anticipate savings of almost $400,000 annually. 
 
What is Local Solar? 
Solar produced in your town or city is an important tool for a community to get to 100% 
renewable energy for all. Getting more of your power from the sun can take many forms: 
municipal policies that promote solar power in public and private development; “solar-ready” 
requirements on new construction; renewable energy development on public buildings; and 
community-wide opportunities such as the Solarize Massachusetts program. 
 
Why is it important? 
Local solar is not only clean energy, it also helps people understand that these solutions work in 
cities and towns across the Commonwealth and across the country. Seeing solar panels every 
day when picking up kids from school or the drive home from work will continue to remind your 
friends and neighbors that clean energy works here, and is happening in your backyard. 
 
How can we expand solar power in my community? 
We suggest considering three options: 

1. Connect residents and businesses with affordable solar options through programs like 
Solarize Mass or other bulk purchase programs. 

2. Install solar panels on municipal buildings and properties, including capped landfills, 
parking lots, and school buildings. 

3. Require new buildings to be built “solar-ready,” so that solar panels can be installed 
later. 

 

1. Connect residents and businesses with affordable solar options 
The Solarize Mass program, a partnership between the Massachusetts Clean Energy Center 
(MassCEC) and the Green Communities Division of the Massachusetts Department of Energy 
Resources, aims to increase the adoption of small-scale solar installations through community 
outreach campaigns. 
 
Since it was launched in 2011, the program has led to nearly 3,000 families and businesses 
signing contracts for solar installations. Most cities and towns that have participated in Solarize 
Mass have doubled the amount of solar installed in their community. 



 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
 

 

 
Once selected to participate in the program, municipalities select a designated solar installation 
company, and local volunteers work to spread the word in the community. Typically, residents 
and businesses that sign up through Solarize Mass are able to install solar at a lower cost than 
would otherwise be available. Some installers also offer solar installations under a lease or 
power purchase agreement (PPA), allowing families to switch to solar without any upfront cost. 
 
Some cities and towns have chosen to create their own solar outreach program, rather than 
participate in Solarize Mass, in order to better meet the needs of their residents. 
 
Resources 

● The Solarize Mass website has instructions for communities applying to participate in the 
program. Solarize Mass is currently accepting applications on a rolling basis, and hopes 
to enroll up to 10 communities or groups of communities in 2017. 

● Sunny Cambridge is a good example of an alternative model for solar outreach, with a 
special emphasis on making it easier for residents of condominiums and other multi-
family homes to switch to solar. 

 
2. Install solar on municipal buildings and properties 
Many local governments have installed solar panels on municipal properties as a way to save 
money on their electricity bills while promoting the adoption of renewable energy. Schools, fire 
and police departments, and municipal office buildings often have large, sunny roofs that are 
ideal for rooftop solar installations. Solar installations on school buildings can also serve an 
educational function, integrating into lesson plans around renewable energy, climate change, 
physics, and chemistry. 
 
Installing solar panels on underutilized land, such as capped landfills, is also a smart way to 
increase clean energy adoption. Some communities are also looking at solar canopy 
installations over parking lots, which serve the dual purpose of generating clean energy and 
providing shade for parked cars. 
 
Resources 

● The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) provides 
resources for communities that are considering installing clean energy on capped 
landfills. 

● The Solar Energy Industries Association (SEIA) has assembled statistics and case 
studies of solar installations on school buildings across the country. 

● The Green Communities Division of the Massachusetts Department of Energy 
Resources (DOER) assists communities with energy efficiency and renewable energy 
projects. Regional clean energy experts are available to answer questions. 

Some regional planning agencies, such as the Metropolitan Area Planning Council, assist cities 
and towns with planning renewable energy installations on municipal properties. 
 



 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
 

 

3. Require solar-ready buildings 
Some towns have started requiring that new buildings, or buildings that are having substantial 
renovations done, have their roofs be “solar ready”. If architects and contractors don’t plan 
ahead, roofs can end up being unsuitable for solar, with issues like vents in the wrong place or 
the roof facing the wrong direction. 
 
The goal is that even if the solar system is not installed in the short run, buildings are being built  
or rebuilt so that eventually most roofs in town will be suitable for solar.  
 
There are two ways a town can do this: by focusing narrowly buildings owned by the town 
(schools, municipal office buildings, etc) or by going more broadly and changing the town or city 
code to make sure all buildings in town are solar ready.  
 
Resources 

● The National Renewable Energy Lab, or NREL, put out this oldie but goodie in 2009: 
http://www.nrel.gov/docs/fy10osti/46078.pdf  

● For in depth discussion and sample language for solar zoning, see this resource: 
https://www.planning.org/research/solar/briefingpapers/localdevelopmentregulations.htm  

● We can help you craft locally appropriate language if solar ready is your goal!  
Success stories 

 
Solar power from a landfill 
The city of Northampton has decided to create a 3.3MW solar array on top of the former 
Glendale Road Landfill. This solar array will be a great way for the city to further promote their 
dedication to clean energy and to save the city a great deal in energy savings. When completed, 
the new solar array is expected to provide nearly 40% of the city’s annual municipal electricity 
use and save the city nearly $9 million over the next 20 years in energy savings and income! 
 
Solar and schools 
In Braintree, a plan to construct solar panels on two public schools is set to commence to give 
residents access to clean electricity. Panels on the roofs of Braintree High School and East 
Middle School will generate 1.3 million MW of electricity. The schools are set to receive 
$15,000/year for the space. Additionally, residents are offered solar electricity generated from 
the schools through a Community Solar Program where participants would be able to lock in a 
rate of 15cents per KW for 10 years, saving significant money on annual energy costs! 
 
Solarize program 
The launch of the new Solarize Somerville project to promote solar energy to clean up the grid 
in Somerville has been received with great enthusiasm. Today, nearly 70 households have 
switched to solar energy and numerous other neighbors are taking advantage of the solar 
energy site assessment. Customers who switch to solar energy enjoy multiple tax-based 
incentives including a possible $1000 personal income tax credit! 



 
Web - www.sierraclub.org/massachusetts   
FB - www.facebook.com/MassSierraClub  
Twitter - www.twitter.com/MassSierraClub  
     

 

 
Electric Vehicles (EVs) 

 
The transportation sector is responsible for approximately 40% of Massachusetts’ greenhouse 
gas (GHG) emissions1. Identifying and employing strategies to electrify our transportation sector 
is a critical step to reducing our dependence on fossil fuels and achieving 100 percent 
renewable energy. 
 
By encouraging the transition to electric vehicles (EVs), local governments can improve local air 
quality, decrease respiratory ailments such as asthma, boost the local economy by reducingfuel 
costs, and set a positive example for residents to follow.   
 
According to Union of Concerned Scientists, transitioning to EVs can help cut projected U.S. oil 
use in half over the next 20 years.2”   Additionally, as we continue to integrate more renewable 
energy into our electric grid, EVs will get cleaner in lockstep with this greener grid. 
 
How can municipalities encourage the transition to EVs? 
 
Lead By Example 
Electrify the Municipal Fleet 
 
One of the most powerful motivators to anyone making a change is seeing someone else do it 
first.  Many municipalities are already adding battery-electric and plug-in hybrid electric vehicles 
to their fleets, simultaneously leading their citizens while enjoying the benefits of reduced 
maintenance and lower fuel costs.   
 
The Department of Environmental Protection, through MassEVIP3, will provide incentive funding 
for municipalities to offset the initial costs of purchasing battery-electric or plug-in hybrid electric 
vehicles.  Over the lifetime of the vehicle, a municipality stands to save thousands of dollars in 
fuel costs by operating EVs in place of petroleum vehicles, while also cutting pollution and 
increasing air quality for it’s residents. 
 
Battery-Electric Zero Emission Buses (ZEBs) - School Buses and Public Transit 
 
Diesel, hybrid-diesel, and CNG buses, although initially cheaper, present large operating and 
maintenance costs.  Each battery-electric bus can cost hundreds of thousands of dollars less 
per year to fuel than diesel and CNG buses, as well as being easier to maintain. ZEBs also 
produce no tailpipe pollution, whereas diesel exhaust contains more than forty toxic air 
contaminants that in some cases can cause and/or worsen diseases such as asthma and 
cancer.4     
 
Municipalities can work to electrify school district bus fleets, municipal transit fleets, and 
encourage regional transit authorities (RTAs) to do the same.  Battery-electric school buses are 



 

already being operated in four Massachusetts school districts through the DOER’s Vehicle-to-
Grid Electric School Bus pilot program.  Riders of the Worcester RTA currently enjoy quietly 
efficient ZEBs traveling their routes, and other RTAs across the state are considering ZEBs as 
well.   
 
Federal funding is available through the Federal Transportation Authority in various forms, such 
as the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) program, and the Low or No Emission (Lo-
No) Vehicle Program. Visit https://www.transit.dot.gov/grants to learn more. 
 
Reduce Barriers 
Install Public Charging Stations 
 
EV battery ranges continue to increase each model year, with many models becoming 
comparable in range to petroleum vehicles; ”range anxiety” is being supplanted by “range 
confidence.” However a lack of clearly visible and accessible charging stations can still be a 
deterrent.  Municipalities can help by installing charging stations in city or town centers, retail 
areas, malls and other locations conducive to visitors, as charging can take anywhere from 30 
minutes to two hours.  
 
Municipalities can also encourage local business leaders to install charging stations so 
employees can easily and conveniently charge during the workday.  Employers can see 
charging stations as an additional strategy to attract and retain quality employees, while 
businesses such as restaurants and shopping centers can attract patrons to charge during their 
visit.  
 
MassEVIP will provide incentive funding for municipalities and private employers to offset the 
cost of installing Level 2 dual-head charging stations - the most common for public charging.   
 
Educate Citizens 
 
Just as very few people would buy a vehicle before test-driving it, similarly people are much 
more likely to consider buying an EV after being given the chance to drive one.   Municipal 
programs can play an important role in giving citizens the experience of driving electric while 
also providing the chance to educate on the economic, environmental, and social benefits of 
EVs.   
 
Municipal programs such as Braintree Drives Electric do just that.  The state has done similarly 
by providing educational material and guides, and hosting “EV Ride & Drive” events across the 
state through the MassDriveClean program.  These programs have been shown to be effective 
in increasing EV adoption.  Since the launch of Braintree Drives Electric, the city has seen an 
increase of 650% in EV adoption. 
 
 



 

1http://www.mass.gov/eea/air-water-climate-change/climate-change/massachusetts-global-
warming-solutions-act/ma-ghg-emission-trends/  
2http://www.ucsusa.org/sites/default/files/attach/2015/11/Cleaner-Cars-from-Cradle-to-Grave-
full-report.pdf  
3http://www.mass.gov/eea/docs/dep/air/community/massevipfs.pdf  
4https://www.sierraclub.org/sites/www.sierraclub.org/files/uploads-
wysiwig/1099%20Zero%20Emission%20Bus%20Factsheet%2005_x1a.pdf  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
http://bit.ly/2m9DUxY 

 
 
 

Writing a Net Zero Plan 
 
What is Net Zero? 
A Net Zero municipality produces zero net carbon pollution, the pollution that causes climate 
change. This means the community gets as much electricity from renewable sources as it uses. 
Getting to net zero usually comes from a combination of energy efficiency improvements, local 
clean energy production, and purchasing of renewable energy. 
 
Why would a town want to be Net Zero? 
MA made a commitment in state law (the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2008) to cut our 
climate change-causing pollution 80% by 2050. Cleaning up our energy supply and using less 
electricity in our buildings is key, and cities and towns are taking action. 
 
What is the process for a town to get to Net Zero? 

1. Create a Net Zero Team of advocates 
○ Talk to people, groups, or businesses in town who you know will support going 

net zero 
○ Talk to supportive town officials and see if you can find a champion who will help 

shepherd this through the process 
2. Introduce an initiative at town meeting or to city or town council 
3. Create a Net Zero Task Force that includes town officials, advocates, and stakeholders 
4. Conduct education and outreach on Net Zero to all stakeholders, including climate and 

neighborhood groups, business and industry 
5. Do a greenhouse gas inventory for the town if one hasn’t been done already 
6. Adopt Net Zero goals for the town 

○ Construct all new municipal buildings, such as schools, to be Net Zero 
○ Enact financing programs for new Net Zero commercial buildings 
○ Streamline permitting processes for energy efficiency and solar projects 

7. Conduct public forum and meetings with stakeholders 
 
 
What is a Net Zero plan? 
A Net Zero Plan is a long term roadmap for steps a city or town will take to reach net zero. It 
gives a timeline with short and long term goals, and priority actions.  The plan should be created 
based on visioning and input from the community and all stakeholders. 
 
 
 
 
 



www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
http://bit.ly/2m9DUxY 

 
 

 
 
 
What actions should you consider including in a Net Zero plan? 
 

● Figure out how you can reduce emissions based on the Greenhouse Gas Inventory 
● Set targets and come up with strategies for improving energy efficiency in existing 

buildings 
● Identify targets and strategies for Net Zero new construction 
● Create incentives and identify financing for energy efficiency (including deep retrofits) 

and net zero new construction 
● Develop and enact local ordinances and zoning favorable for producing renewable 

energy, such as for rooftop solar ready and for ground mounted solar 
● Identify ways to buy additional green power, such as through Community Choice 

Aggregation 
● Set goals and develop strategies for reducing emissions from vehicle use  
● Look into setting up a local carbon fund 
● Come up with strategies for long-term community and stakeholder engagement 
● Develop strategies to measure and verify emissions reductions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
http://bit.ly/2m9DUxY 

 
 
Success Stories 
 
Cambridge- 
Cambridge has been a leader in going net zero, having started the process in 2013. A net zero 
team filed a citizen’s zoning petition requiring that all new buildings be net zero.  According to 
Quinten Zondervan, the main goal of doing this was to get the public’s attention, to start 
considering a net zero goal for the city.  From that point forward, the team conducted outreach 
to businesses, property owners, and other stakeholders, and then put a representative net zero 
task force together. Working groups were set up to focus on: 
 

● Engagement and behavior change  
● Incentives and financing tools  
● Regulation and planning approaches  
● Energy supply and offsets 

 
The proposed actions to meet the net zero objective are categorized into five key areas:  
1. Energy Efficiency in Existing Buildings  
2. Net Zero New Construction  
3. Energy Supply (low carbon and renewable energy)  
4. Local Carbon Fund  
5. Engagement & Capacity Building (communication and resources)  
 
Within each of these areas, the plan identifies short, medium, and long term actions, as well as 
what the projected greenhouse gas emission reductions are for each action. 
 
 
Lexington- 
The net zero team in Lexington began the process by holding a meeting open to the public and 
having Quinton Zondervan and Henrietta Davis from Cambridge present about their net zero 
process in Cambridge. According to Lisa Fitzgibbons and Mark Sandeen from the Lexington 
Global Warming Action Committee, this “established doability in the minds of the town,” and 
demonstrated a clear path toward achieving net zero.  It also reassured the town that they didn’t 
need to reinvent the wheel in order to do it.  The response from the first meeting was 
overwhelmingly positive, and after receiving a lot of input from the Board of Selectmen, the 
Planning Board, and various committees, the team wrote a warrant article asking for funding to 
hire a consultant to establish a baseline of greenhouse gas emissions. They presented the 
article at town meeting, it passed, and they have hired Peregrine Energy as a consultant.  Once 
they have detailed emissions data they will move forward on writing a net zero plan. 
 
 



www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
 

 
 

Climate Planning for Social Equity and Environmental Justice 
 
Environmental injustices arise when a group or community are heavily impacted by pollution, lack of 
natural resources, or environmental degradation caused by outside parties or corporations. Commonly, 
indigenous communities, communities of color, and low-income communities are disproportionately 
affected by environmental injustices. Many communities have turned to grassroots organizing in order to 
share their plight and fight for the clean environment they deserve.  
 
By addressing the root causes of environmental degradation and accurately representing the demands and 
rights of communities affected, climate planning strategies that incorporate social equity can be hugely 
fortuitous. 
 
How to Address Environmental Justice Issues in your community: 
1. Identify the problems facing your community 

Whether there is one large polluter or decades of resource depletion, identify what the largest 
obstacles are and how the environmental pollution is affecting your society. Approaching the 
problem from multiple perspectives, including but not limited to environmental concerns, social 
equity, and sustainable development and job creation will help to identify where the problems 
exist. 

2. Identify the stakeholders and the people you need to involve in your initiative 
Work with the stakeholders, including community organizations, resident groups,  government 
officials, corporate parties and other entities. Keep an open door policy, utilize facilitated 
discussions, and create space for public comment and feedback to understand the needs of your 
community. Create a unified voice that can better address the problem. This will help ensure a 
win-win situation for all! 

3. Organize and develop your goals 
Once you have your party together, start developing your main goals and priorities. Develop a 
clear unified goal and be able to show how cleaner energy alternatives or sustainable job growth 
will help promote social equity in your community. Clear incentives to promote social equity 
through cleaning the environment will not only help to spread the word but will help educate 
people on how greener living can create a more just community. Having the facts behind you will 
help convince stubborn corporations or government officials. 

4. Activate & Educate 
Get out and spread the word! Once you have your team behind you and your goals clearly laid 
out, it’s time to hit the street! Develop a plan to activate the community and educate people on 
cost-saving green living and sustainable job creation! Make sure to have a variety of events to 
attract people from every walk of life. Always utilize social media and make efforts to keep your 



www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
 

project goals and strategies accessible to everyone. Receiving public comments is helpful in 
gaining public trust and support!  

5. Keep researching and practice adaptive management 
Overtime, keep up with changes in your community and study similar campaigns in other areas 
and learn from their successes/failures. Keep adapting your own strategy to see what resonates 
the best with your community and keep an open mind. Make sure to establish a measurement 
system to track your success and be sure to learn from everyone you talk with.  

  
Some great Mass Organizations addressing Environmental Justice: 
Alternatives for Community and Environment: http://www.ace-ej.org/ 
Neighbor to Neighbor Massachusetts: http://www.n2nma.org/en/ 
Chelsea Greenroots: http://www.greenrootschelsea.org/ 

 
How to plan for Social Equity: 
 

1. Identify your constituents and clarify their goals for attaining equity 
Identifying your constituents and the increasing your knowledge of the demographics in your 
area will help set the stage for an equity movement that accurately fights for the goals of your 
community. By hosting a variety of events with public comment opportunities you’ll be sure to 
reach a vast group of people and identify their equity aspirations. 

2. Consider access and inclusion in your movement 
Allocate funding or develop creative transportation and accessibility solutions to ensure that 
previously underserved or marginalized neighborhoods can voice their opinions. 

3. Examine recruitment and advancement policies within businesses 
Encouraging the examination of business models for inclusion and accessibility for all 
demographics is key to promoting equal growth and opportunity in business. Try integrating a 
review of equity within business models to track progress and address weak areas. Make sure to 
promote equitable salary and promotion structures. 

4. Promote sustainable job development 
Incorporating environmental justice campaigns into equity planning will work to address 
environmental injustices occurring in marginalized neighborhoods (commonly communities of 
color, indigenous communities, and low-income areas). Including green infrastructure and 
protecting natural resources will help the entire community, ease environmental degradation, and 
address potentially unequal access to resources. 

5. Follow through and track your progress 
Tracking and monitoring your program’s progress is key to ensure that your project is 
implemented in a timely and effective manner. Also, continue allowing for public comment to 
guarantee you continue to address your community’s changing needs. 
 
Springfield, MA 

Grassroots organizers in Springfield, MA have a substantial environmental justice agenda that demands 

change not only for the environment but for human health and wellbeing. Following a conference on 

climate justice, the Springfield Climate Justice Coalition (SCJC) began pushing for a “Springfield 

Climate Action Plan” that addresses air pollution in the city, increases energy efficiency, expands access 



www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
 

to public transportation and housing, increases healthy food options, adopts better waste management, and 

lastly empowers the community through 

education. Groups like Arise for Social 

Justice and the Pioneer Valley Planning 

Commission pushed Springfield’s Mayor, 

City Council and other stakeholders to 

implement a Climate Action Plan and 

appoint a full-time Environmental 

Coordinator. When the city applied for a 

resiliency grant, the SCJC positioned itself 

as a useful ally to city leaders in pushing 

the local environmental agenda. 

 

Detroit, MI 

In Detroit, MI communities are fighting 

countless environmental polluters, including 

coal plants, oil refineries, waste incinerators, 

and Superfund sites, which have created a 

highly polluted atmosphere for residents of the 

city. Detroit suffers from one of the nation’s 

highest rates of asthma among children and 

clean sustainable energy and jobs are not readily accessible. Community members have started to 

organize for a grassroots urban renewal with recycling programs, food security, pollution reduction, and 

the promotion of sustainable jobs. The East Michigan Environmental Action Council has become an 

anchor to unify the local movement to work cross-sectorally and build community resilience to climate 

change.  

 



 

 

Renewable Heating and Cooling 
 

Do you want your home to be cooler in the summer or warmer in the winter? Are your heating or 

cooling bills too high?  

 

About 3 in 10 Massachusetts families still heat their homes with oil, and most of the rest use 

natural gas. Heating is responsible for a greater share of Massachusetts’ global warming 

pollution than electricity. The fossil fuels we burn to heat our homes and businesses and 

produce hot water also contribute to harmful air pollution that affects human health. 

 

The good news is that we have alternatives. We can heat our water using thermal energy from 

the sun. And with efficient air source heat pumps, we can keep our homes and businesses at a 

comfortable temperature with clean, renewable electricity. Switching to these technologies will 

help reduce the use of fossil fuels and promote a 100% renewable future for Massachusetts. 

 

Even better, these systems have lots of incentives so that you can get them installed and be 

heating your home with renewable energy for a lot less. The incentives are at both the federal 

and the state level. There are also programs that help you make choices about what kind of 

heating is right for you and help you find an installer.  

 

Renewable heating technologes 

 

● Solar water heaters use energy from the sun to provide hot water. These systems use 

“collectors” on the roof of a home or business to collect heat from the sun, which is then 

used to heat water. The hot water is kept in a tank that is connected to the plumbing 

system and can be used in the same way as hot water from an oil or gas boiler. 

● Solar energy can also be used for space heating. 

● Air source heat pumps use electricity to heat or cool a home efficiently. Thanks to recent 

improvements in technology, air source heat pumps are now able to heat homes 

effectively even in cold climates like New England. A study from the Northeast Energy 

Efficiency Partnership found that air source heat pumps are significantly more cost-



 

www.mapowerforward.com    —       admin@mapoweforward.com 
 

effective than oil heaters or electric resistance heating. And because these heat pumps 

run on electricity, they can be powered by renewable resources like the sun and wind. 

● Ground source or geothermal heat pumps provide heating, cooling, and water heating by 

using the temperature of the ground, which is nearly constant throughout the year. 

 

What incentives are available? 

Incentive programs from the state and federal government can help make a system in your 

home more affordable.  

● The Massachusetts Clean Energy Center (MassCEC) lists the incentives available for 

residents, businesses, government agencies, and nonprofits to install renewable heating 

technologies. 

● MassCEC offers rebates for solar hot water systems, up to $4,500 or 40% of the 

installed cost. MassCEC has created a guide for residential solar hot water systems. 

● MassCEC also offers rebates for air source heat pumps. 

● MassSave offers zero-interest loans for replacing your heating system with efficient 

technologies, including air source and ground source heat pumps. 

 

What can local communities do to promote renewable heating? 

 

This year, MassCEC is running a pilot project to promote renewable heating as part of its 

Solarize Mass program. Solarize Mass program, a partnership between the Massachusetts 

Clean Energy Center (MassCEC) and the Green Communities Division of the Massachusetts 

Department of Energy Resources, increases the adoption of small-scale solar installations 

through community outreach campaigns. As part of this pilot program, up to two communities 

will be selected to promote solar hot water, air source heat pumps, or electric vehicles alongside 

solar electricity. 

 

Communities that are looking to increase the adoption of renewable heating technologies could 

seek to join MassCEC’s “Solarize Mass Plus” program. Alternatively, a community could choose 

to create its own outreach and bulk purchasing program for renewable heating technologies, 

along the model of the Solarize Mass program. 



1 
 

Sherborn, Massachusetts 

Annual Town Meeting 
April 23, 2019 

�  Please bring this notice with you to the meeting  � 
 

 
 

at the Dover/Sherborn Regional High School 
 
Middlesex ss: 
 
To either of the Constables of the Town of Sherborn in said county GREETINGS; 
 
In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts you are hereby directed to notify and warn the inhabitants of Sherborn 
qualified to vote in Town Meeting to meet in the LINDQUIST COMMONS of DOVER/SHERBORN REGIONAL 
DISTRICT HIGH SCHOOL in DOVER on Tuesday, April 23, 2019, at 7:00P.M. and to be adjourned to April 25, 2019 at 
7:00P.M. or such other dates as may be determined then and there to act on the warrant articles described within. 

 
FY2020 Omnibus Budget: Advisory Committee Report to the Town 
 
Sherborn Advisory Committee: 
 
The Advisory Committee continues to work with department budget makers and managers to provide the Town with the 
assets and services we need at an efficient cost.  In planning for FY2020, we note and appreciate the Town Departments’ 
efforts to keep Operating costs in check.  However, we are concerned that a slowing housing market will negatively affect 
the calculated Tax Rate. 
 
The Omnibus Budget presented and recommended by the Advisory Committee has an increase in Operating Costs to the 
Town of just 0.66%.  The Town is benefitting greatly from a significant decrease in our Debt service costs in FY20 which 
reduces Operating expenditures by over $450,000, efficient spending by the Administration of the School District, and a 
reprieve this year from steadily increasing healthcare costs.  Additionally, our recommended Budget does not pay for any 
Capital Items out of Revenues or Free Cash as we have done in the past. 
 
For FY20 the Town is also fortunate that there is relatively low request for Capital spending.  The total requests are 
$742,695, for which we recommend paying using Excluded Debt.  We expect this Capital spending to add $0.06 (six cents) 
to the Tax Rate and therefore impact a home with a $750,000 Assessment by approx. $45.01 in additional taxes for the life 
of the outstanding debt.  
 
However, it costs more to run a Town like Sherborn every year.  Salaries, benefits, inflation of raw materials, and 
infrastructure needs combine to increase costs.  In FY20 we have unfunded State mandates for our Fire Department that the 
Town has to absorb, plus on-going maintenance of Town buildings and roadways.  Our pension obligations grow each year 
and our funding of those obligations has fallen behind schedule as we use tax revenues to cover Operating costs.   
 
We note that Capital expenditures in the years ahead will increase by a multiple of this year’s Capital expenditures; new 
roofs at the Sherborn School, Police Department, and Regional School District, Police vehicles and CM&D fleet, plus a 
significant amount for the Library are all expected in the next few years.  While the Town does have the capacity to take on 

http://www.doversherborn.org/page.cfm?p=1047
http://www.doversherborn.org/page.cfm?p=1047


2 
 

the debt associated with these Capital items, the annual debt service costs will pose a challenge to Operating budgets for 
years to come. 
 
Even with the low increase in Operating budget for FY20 and small Capital requests, we are greatly concerned the Tax Rate 
for residents will move sharply higher due to a slowing housing market.  Though the absolute dollars needed to fund the 
Town in FY20 is a small increase, the total Assessed Value of property in Town is likely to drop.  This causes the Tax Rate 
[ratio of tax dollars raised : taxable property base] to increase.  We believe this expected increased Tax Rate will put 
downward pressure on our home values.  We noted similar concerns last year and stated, “Some of these concerns can be 
addressed tactically such that we can enact changes that will have immediate positive impact on our finances, and some are 
slow-developing trends for which we can only seek to develop principles and guidance to help effect those changes in a 
manner that we as a Town choose.”  The below proposed Omnibus Budget and Capital Requests do make some of the 
tactical changes Sherborn needs, but we expect those changes to be short lived as both Operating and Capital budget needs 
will increase in the next few years.    
 
We are pleased to recommend the efficient Omnibus Budget and Capital requests below, and we see and appreciate the 
work of the many Town officials and volunteers to develop principles to guide future growth in Town.  However real change 
to Sherborn’s challenging budgets will only come from adding tax-paying properties.  We know the costs of running the 
Town will continue to increase in coming years, so if we do not add more tax-paying entities, each of us will have to pay 
more. 
 
 
 
 
 
Stephen Leahy, Chair Jane Materazzo, Vice Chair Susan Aharonian  
Brendan Daly  Peter Gallitano Dhruv Kaushal  
Steven Tsai Jeffrey Waldron  

 
  



3 
 

 

 
 
 
CONTENTS 
TOWN MEETING PROCEDURES ....... 3 
ARTICLE PAGE# 
1. TOWN REPORTS ........................ 4 
2. FY19 SUPPLEMENTAL .............. 4 
3. BOND PREMIUM &  
 AUTHORIZATION RESCISSION ... 4 
4. CEMETERIES ............................. 5 
5. REVOLVING FUNDS .................. 5 
6. OPEB TRUST FUND .................. 5 
7. STABILIZATION FUNDS ............. 6 
8. FY20 OMNIBUS BUDGET .......... 6 
9. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ......... 14 
10.TRANSFER FM STABILIZATION –  
 TREE CLEAN-UP ..................... 16 
11. TREE CLEAN-UP ..................... 17 
12. FREE CASH ............................. 17 
13. ELECTRONIC VOTING ............. 17 
14. RECREATION REVOLVING ....... 17 
15.AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST 

FUND &BRD OF TRUSTEES ..... 18 
16. CM&D TO DPW .................... 18 
17.GBL – TOWN MEETING RULES 
  & PROCEDURES ..................... 19 
18.GBL - HUNTING BY-LAW ....... 19 
19. GBL - INFO TECH MGR .......... 19 
20. GBL - HUMAN RESOURCE 

DIRECTOR .............................. 20 
21. TREASURER AS APPOINTED 
 OFFICER ................................. 20 
22. QUARTERLY TAX PAYMENT .... 21 
23. GBL - ILLICIT DISCHARGES ... 22 
24. ZBL - ACCESSORY APT .......... 26 
25. RAIL TRAIL  ............................ 27 
26. CITIZEN’S PETITION –  
 SUSTAINABILITY COORDINATOR 
  ............................................... 28 
27. CITIZEN’S PETITION - 

TRANSPARENCY IN EXCLUDING 
DEBT ...................................... 28 

28. CITIZEN’S PETITION – 
TRANSPARENCY IN INCURSION OF 
UNFUNDED LIABILITIES ......... 30 

 
CAPITAL BUDGET REPORT ........... 32 
 

From the Moderator: 
 
Town Meeting Procedures 

The New England town meeting is considered by many to be a model of 
democratic process. To achieve this, the moderator follows procedures that 
combine general laws of the Commonwealth, Sherborn by-laws, and rules of 
conduct developed by Sherborn’s moderators over many years. By consistent 
application of these rules, our town meetings move smoothly, often 
expeditiously, and with the participation of all who wish to be heard.  
 
Motions  
x All motions and amendments must be within the scope of the article under 

consideration.  
x The Moderator will always recognize a member of the Advisory Committee 

for the main motion on each article.  
x Non-routine motions (such as amendments) must be in writing for the 

clerk’s record.  
 
Conduct of Debate  
x You must be recognized by the Moderator.  
x Once recognized, use one of the microphones, and, before proceeding, state 

your name and address for the Clerk’s record.  
x Your comment should be specific to the substance of the motion on the 

floor.  
 
Voting  
x Normally, a voice vote will be taken on all motions.  
x A hand count by the tellers will be made if the voice vote is not clear to the 

Moderator, or if seven voters question the voice vote immediately after it is 
declared by the Moderator.  

x If a vote requires more than a majority, fifty voters may request a ballot 
vote. 

 
Consent Calendar 
Articles 2 – 7 will be considered and voted through a Consent Calendar. The 
purpose of the Consent Calendar is to save time by dispensing with separate 
motions and separate votes on articles that can be expected to pass unanimously 
or nearly unanimously. These articles are: routine (have appeared regularly and 
have passed regularly either for the past 10 years or, if fewer than 10, for all the 
years in which they have appeared); and clearly explained in the Advisory 
Committee Report.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Town Election 
 

Tuesday, May 14, 2019 
 

Town Hall 
 

7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 



4 
 

Recommendations on Warrant Articles 
 

ARTICLE 1. ANNUAL REPORTS 
To hear and act on the reports of the various Town Officers and Committees as contained in the Annual Town Report or 
otherwise. (Select Board) 
 
Advisory Committee: A copy of the Annual Town Report is posted on the Town's website and hard copies are 
available to those residents who request them. Copies of this Report are also available for inspection and copying 
at Town Hall so that all interested citizens may review the contents of this comprehensive document. This article 
requests that residents accept delivery, in some form as described above, of the Annual Town Report; it does not 
ask residents to take any action based on its contents.   
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0) 
. 

ARTICLE 2. FY19 SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS (CURRENT FISCAL YEAR) 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds a sum of money, and if so, what sum, 
for the purpose of supplementing the various line items of the Town's Fiscal Year 2019 budget, previously voted by the 
Town under Article 9 of the Warrant for the 2018 Annual Town Meeting; or take any other action relative thereto.  (Select 
Board for the Advisory Committee) 
 
Advisory Committee:  This article provides additional funding for unanticipated expenses that are now projected 
to be incurred in specific line items of the Town’s Fiscal Year 2019 Budget. The total supplemental funding 
required is $260,000 broken down as follows: 
 
 x Snow & Ice: $160,000 
 x Police Overtime: $100,000  
 
This sum of $260,000 in Supplemental Spending for FY 2019 is in line with expectations and previous estimates 
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 3. BOND PREMIUMS & AUTHORIZATION RESCISSION 
To see if the Town will vote to: 
 

1.  Supplement each prior vote of the Town that authorizes the borrowing of money to pay costs of capital projects 
to provide that, in accordance with M.G.L. Chapter 44, Section 20, the premium received by the Town upon the 
sale of any bonds or notes thereunder, less any such premium applied to the payment of the costs of issuance of 
such bond or notes, may be applied to pay project costs; and the amount authorized to be borrowed for each such 
project shall be reduced by the amount of any such premium so applied; and, 

2. Rescind the Affordable Housing appropriation approved in Article 14 of the 2008 Annual Town Meeting, which 
authorized a borrowing, in order to reduce the Town’s authorized but unissued debt total; 

 
or take any other action relative thereto.   (Select Board for the Town Treasurer) 

 
Advisory Committee: Part 1 of this article will allow a process where net premiums received by the Town on 
the sale of any bonds or notes may be used more promptly to pay down other bonds or for other projects. This is 
prudent management and use of Town financial resources, and the language of this article was recommended by 
the Town’s bond counsel and investor advisor.   
 
Part 2 of this article rescinds a 2008 Annual Town Meeting authorization to borrow funds that would be earmarked 
for an Affordable Housing Corporation for the Town.  These funds were never borrowed, so as a matter of prudent 
fiscal “housekeeping” this authorization should be rescinded so as to reduce the Town’s authorized but unissued 
debt total.  (See Article 15 below recommending establishment of new Affordable Housing Trust)   
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0) 



5 
 

ARTICLE 4. CEMETERIES 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds, a sum of money, and if so, what sum, 
to be used pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 114, Section 15, for the improvement or embellishment of the cemeteries throughout 
the Town; for the care, preservation or embellishment of any lot or its appurtenances therein; or take any other action relative 
thereto. (Select Board for the Cemetery Commission) 
 
Advisory Committee:  This article, funded by revenues generated by the sale of cemetery lots, requests $20,000 
be transferred from the Cemetery Enlargement Fund for the care, improvement, embellishment and enlargement 
of the cemeteries throughout the Town.  
 
We recommend favorable action and that $20,000 be transferred from the Enlargement Fund (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 5. REVOLVING FUNDS 
To see if the Town will vote to set the Fiscal Year 2020 spending limit for each of the Revolving funds set forth in Chapter 
28 of the General By-laws, pursuant to the provisions of M.G. L. Chapter 44, Section 53E ½; or take any other action 
relative thereto.  (Select Board for the Advisory Committee) 
 
 

Revolving Funds FY2020 Proposed 
Council on Aging Programs $  75,000.00  Limit 
Board of Health Flu Clinic $  15,000.00  Limit  
Recycling Committee Sale of Bins $       860.00  Limit   
Town Forest Sale of Firewood $  30,000.00  Limit  
Farm Pond $160,000.00  Limit  
Ambulance $300,000.00  Limit  
Elder Housing $287,561.00  Limit 
Total     $868,421.00 

 
Advisory Committee:  A revolving fund is used to accumulate fees paid for specific Town Services and use those funds 
to pay for related expenses. Revolving funds allow activities carried out by certain agencies and committees to be self-
sustaining without the need for an annual operating budget appropriation. State law requires annual authorization of certain 
revolving funds.  
 
The Council on Aging (COA) receives fees that it uses to provide home-delivered meals, transportation and activity 
programs for Sherborn seniors. The Board of Health (BOH) also operates a revolving fund for receipts paid and 
reimbursements received during the operation of the BOH sponsored immunizations. The Recycling Committee receives 
monies from the sale of composting bins. The Town Forest Committee received fees from the sale of firewood. Farm Pond 
receives fees from the sale of stickers and boat permits. The Ambulance Fund receives fees in connection with ambulance 
services and Elder Housing receives rents for the units at Woodhaven. 
 
We recommend favorable action to authorize the use of these existing revolving funds (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 6. OPEB TRUST FUND 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, or transfer from available funds, a sum of money, and if so, what sum, 
for the purpose of funding the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability Trust Fund; or take any other action 
relative thereto. (Select Board for the Advisory Committee) 
 
Advisory Committee:  The Town has a large obligation to pay Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEBs) for retired 
employees.  Each year we have been building the fund balance to start offsetting our long-term obligation. In FY20, it is 
proposed that $100,000 be transferred from Free Cash to the OPEB Liability Trust Fund. 
 
We recommend favorable action that $100,000 of Free Cash be transferred to the OPEB Liability Trust 
Fund (8-0) 
 
 



6 
 

ARTICLE 7. STABILIZATION FUNDS  
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, or transfer from available funds, a sum of money, and if so, what sum, 
to Stabilization Funds; or take any other action relative thereto.  (Select Board for the Advisory Committee) 
 
Advisory Committee:  The purpose of Sherborn’s General Stabilization Fund is for the Town to put aside funds for future 
uses. Such uses could include, for example, a pay-down of debt or the purchase of capital items. The Stabilization Fund is 
also an important component of the Town’s total cash reserves, which support Sherborn’s municipal bond rating. Unlike 
Free Cash, where use of funds requires a majority vote at Town Meeting, access to funds set aside in the Stabilization Fund 
requires a 2/3 vote. 
 
The purpose of the Special Education (SPED) Stabilization Fund is to provide a cushion for unexpected increases in SPED 
costs over a previous year. SPED spending in FY20 is not expected to require release of SPED Stabilization Fund money, 
which will remain at $100,000.  
 
The Elder Housing Capital Stabilization Fund was created three years ago to provide a means for the Elder Housing 
Committee to address prospective capital needs of Woodhaven Housing for the Elderly. The Elder Housing Capital 
Stabilization Fund provides a reliable financing source for future capital projects including but not limited to maintenance 
projects, capital expenditures, and capital improvements and/or extraordinary repair projects, or for the purpose of offsetting 
debt service costs for Woodhaven.  
 
We recommend favorable action, and that $10,000 be transferred from Free Cash to the General 
Stabilization Fund, that zero dollars be transferred to the Special Education Stabilization Fund, and that 
$25,000 be transferred from the Elder Housing Revolving Fund to the Elder Housing Capital Stabilization 
Fund.  (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 8.  FY20 OMNIBUS BUDGET (NEXT FISCAL YEAR) 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, or transfer from available funds, such sums of money, for any and all 
Town expenses and purposes, including debt and interest; and to provide for a Reserve Fund; and to fix the salaries and 
compensation of all elected Officers of the Town as required by M.G.L. Chapter 41, Section 108; and to determine whether 
such salaries or compensation shall be made effective from July first of the current year; and to provide for the payment of, 
and raise or appropriate money for, any salary and compensation so voted; or take any other action relative thereto.  
(Omnibus Budget, Select Board for the Advisory Committee) 

 
Advisory Committee:  This FY2020 Omnibus Budget reflects the commendable efforts of department budget makers 
and managers to meet the service needs of the Town while containing the ever-growing costs of providing these services. 
The Advisory Committee is sincerely grateful for their hard work in helping us to achieve this Omnibus Budget.  Since 
FY2007, Advisory has not recommended an Omnibus Operating Budget with an override, and we continue to support a 
no-override policy.   
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0) 
 
 

 
. 



 

7 
 

TO
W

N 
O

F 
SH

ER
BO

RN
 F

IS
C

A
L 

20
20

 O
M

NI
BU

S 
BU

DG
ET

FY
20

 A
DV

 R
EC

 V
S.

FY
 2

02
0

FY
 2

02
0

FY
19

 B
UD

G
ET

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

DE
PT

 R
EQ

A
DV

 R
EC

%
 C

HA
NG

E

G
EN

ER
A

L 
G

O
V

ER
NM

EN
T

SE
LE

C
TM

EN
12

2
S

SE
LE

CT
M

EN
-S

A
LA

RI
ES

23
9,

05
2

   
   

 
24

5,
90

2
   

   
   

25
1,

42
2

   
   

  
(2

a)
25

8,
60

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

4,
49

8
   

   
   

   
   

26
4,

49
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

28
%

12
2

E
SE

LE
CT

M
EN

-E
XP

EN
SE

S
30

,3
87

   
   

   
53

,0
90

   
   

   
  

10
6,

54
4

   
   

  
29

,3
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

36
,0

50
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

,0
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

.8
3%

 
E

ZO
NI

NG
 B

O
A

RD
 O

F 
A

PP
EA

LS
 - 

EX
PE

NS
E

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
70

0
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

SE
LE

C
TM

EN
 T

O
TA

L
26

9,
43

9
   

   
 

30
1,

69
2

   
   

   
35

7,
96

6
   

   
  

29
0,

65
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
3,

24
8

   
   

   
   

   
30

3,
24

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
33

%

LE
G

A
L 

C
O

UN
SE

L
15

1
   

   
   

   
E

LE
G

A
L 

CO
UN

SE
L

LE
G

A
L 

TO
TA

L
16

0,
74

9
   

   
 

21
7,

19
0

   
   

   
14

4,
41

6
   

   
  

80
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

%

A
SS

ES
SO

RS
14

1
   

   
   

   
S

A
SS

ES
SO

RS
-S

A
LA

RI
ES

92
,3

30
   

   
   

93
,7

29
   

   
   

  
97

,3
38

   
   

   
 

(2
b)

10
6,

00
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
9,

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
11

9,
75

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
.9

7%
14

1
   

   
   

   
E

A
SS

ES
SO

RS
-E

XP
EN

SE
S

21
,3

35
   

   
   

22
,2

99
   

   
   

  
14

,0
80

   
   

   
 

15
,2

55
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

,1
90

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
,1

90
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6.
13

%

A
SS

ES
SO

RS
 T

O
TA

L
11

3,
66

5
   

   
 

11
6,

02
8

   
   

   
11

1,
41

8
   

   
  

12
1,

25
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
5,

94
0

   
   

   
   

   
13

5,
94

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
.1

1%

TR
EA

SU
RE

R

14
5

   
   

   
   

S
TR

EA
SU

RE
R-

SA
LA

RI
ES

40
,5

08
   

   
   

55
,1

46
   

   
   

  
46

,7
39

   
   

   
 

(2
c)

65
,9

57
   

   
   

   
   

   
69

,2
59

   
   

   
   

   
  

69
,2

59
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5.
01

%

14
5

   
   

   
   

E
TR

EA
SU

RE
R-

EX
PE

NS
ES

6,
04

3
   

   
   

  
5,

73
1

   
   

   
   

 
26

,5
77

   
   

   
 

9,
54

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
,5

45
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,5
45

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

.4
8%

TR
EA

SU
RE

RS
 T

O
TA

L
46

,5
51

   
   

   
60

,8
77

   
   

   
  

73
,3

16
   

   
   

 
75

,5
02

   
   

   
   

   
   

79
,8

04
   

   
   

   
   

  
79

,8
04

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5.

70
%

C
O

LL
EC

TO
R

14
6

   
   

   
   

S
CO

LL
EC

TO
RS

-S
A

LA
RI

ES
98

,6
03

   
   

   
10

2,
21

9
   

   
   

10
7,

89
2

   
   

  
(2

d)
10

7,
10

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

3,
92

2
   

   
   

   
   

11
3,

92
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

36
%

14
6

   
   

   
   

E
CO

LL
EC

TO
RS

-E
XP

EN
SE

S
17

,3
18

   
   

   
18

,1
19

   
   

   
  

19
,2

17
   

   
   

 
19

,9
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
,5

16
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,5
16

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

68
%

C
O

LL
EC

TO
RS

 T
O

TA
L

11
5,

92
1

   
   

 
12

0,
33

8
   

   
   

12
7,

10
9

   
   

  
12

7,
08

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

4,
43

8
   

   
   

   
   

13
4,

43
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

78
%

(1
) E

xp
en

de
d 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

En
cu

m
br

an
ce

s,
 R

es
er

ve
 T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 a
nd

 A
TM

 A
rti

cl
e 

fo
r S

up
pl

em
en

ts
.

(2
) S

al
ar

ie
s 

of
 E

le
ct

ed
 O

ff
ic

ia
ls

:
(2

a)
 S

el
ec

tm
en

(2
b)

  A
ss

es
so

rs
Ch

ai
rm

an
$0

1s
t

$0
2n

d 
M

em
be

r
$0

2n
d

$0
3r

d 
M

em
be

r
$0

3r
d

$0

FI
NA

NC
E 

DI
RE

C
TO

R 
/ A

C
C

O
UN

TI
NG

13
5

   
   

   
   

S
A

CC
O

UN
TA

NT
 - 

SA
LA

RI
ES

19
3,

15
0

   
   

 
16

4,
28

6
   

   
   

18
8,

70
2

   
   

  
18

4,
00

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

3,
17

9
   

   
   

   
   

20
3,

17
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

.4
2%

13
5

   
   

   
   

E
A

CC
O

UN
TA

NT
 - 

EX
PE

NS
ES

26
,5

36
   

   
   

12
6,

11
3

   
   

   
88

,0
66

   
   

   
 

82
,7

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
82

,7
10

   
   

   
   

   
  

82
,7

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

%
13

5
   

   
   

   
E

A
CC

O
UN

TA
NT

 - 
A

NN
UA

L 
A

UD
IT

41
,1

61
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

%

FI
NA

NC
E 

DI
RE

C
TO

R 
/ A

C
C

O
UN

TI
NG

 T
O

TA
L

26
0,

84
7

   
   

 
29

0,
39

9
   

   
   

27
6,

76
8

   
   

  
26

6,
71

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

5,
88

9
   

   
   

   
   

28
5,

88
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

19
%

(2
d 

) C
ol

le
ct

or
$5

1,
88

9

FY
 2

01
7

FY
20

18
BU

DG
ET

FY
 2

01
6

FY
20

19
EX

PE
ND

ED
NU

M
BE

R
EX

PE
ND

ED
Bu

dg
et

ed

(2
c 

) T
re

as
ur

er
$5

1,
88

9

EX
PE

ND
ED

 
 

 
 

 



 

8 
 

T
O

W
N

 O
F
 S

H
E
R

B
O

R
N

 F
IS

C
A

L
 2

0
2
0
 O

M
N

IB
U

S
 B

U
D

G
E
T

F
Y

2
0
 A

D
V

 R
E
C

 V
S

.
F
Y

 2
0
2
0

F
Y

 2
0
2
0

F
Y

1
9
 B

U
D

G
E
T

D
E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

D
E
P

T
 R

E
Q

A
D

V
 R

E
C

%
 C

H
A

N
G

E

A
D

V
IS

O
R

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E
E

1
3
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

-S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
4
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
9
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
.0

3
%

1
3
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

-E
X

P
E
N

S
E
S

3
,1

0
7

  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,8

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,8

1
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,3

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,3

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,3

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

A
D

V
IS

O
R

Y
 T

O
T

A
L

3
,5

0
7

  
  
  
  
  
 

5
,2

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,8

1
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,8

0
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,8

1
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,8

1
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.2

6
%

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N

1
7
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
C

O
N

S
E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
-S

A
L
A

R
IE

S
4
3
,8

3
5

  
  
  
  
 

4
5
,3

0
9

  
  
  
  
  
 

4
5
,1

5
1

  
  
  
  
  

(3
)

4
9
,5

6
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
,9

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
,9

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
.7

8
%

1
7
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
C

O
N

S
E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
-E

X
P
E
N

S
E
S

4
,1

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,9

2
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,1

3
9

  
  
  
  
  

9
,1

4
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,1

4
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
,1

4
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
4
7
,9

4
5

  
  
  
  
 

5
0
,2

3
8

  
  
  
  
  
 

5
5
,2

9
0

  
  
  
  
  

5
8
,7

0
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
0
,0

8
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0
,0

8
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
.3

5
%

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

1
7
5

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
-S

A
L
A

R
IE

S
4
4
,2

4
2

  
  
  
  
 

4
5
,4

6
3

  
  
  
  
  
 

4
4
,5

8
6

  
  
  
  
  

4
7
,1

8
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
8
,4

8
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
8
,4

8
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
.7

6
%

1
7
5

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
-E

X
P
E
N

S
E
S

1
,5

2
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

9
5
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
,5

6
3

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,2

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,5

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,5

7
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-5
1
.6

9
%

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 B

O
A

R
D

 T
O

T
A

L
4
5
,7

6
2

  
  
  
  
 

4
6
,4

1
6

  
  
  
  
  
 

5
3
,1

4
9

  
  
  
  
  

5
0
,4

3
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
,0

5
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
,0

5
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-0
.7

5
%

T
O

W
N

 C
L

E
R

K

1
6
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
T
O

W
N

 C
L
E
R

K
-S

A
L
A

R
IE

S
8
3
,2

9
6

  
  
  
  
 

8
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
4
,0

3
0

  
  
  
  

(2
e
)

1
1
7
,6

2
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
7
,6

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
7
,6

6
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
.5

3
%

1
6
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
T
O

W
N

 C
L
E
R

K
-E

X
P
E
N

S
E
S

4
,4

1
9

  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,6

0
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
,6

6
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,7

8
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,1

4
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
,1

4
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
.5

2
%

T
O

W
N

 C
L

E
R

K
 T

O
T

A
L

8
7
,7

1
5

  
  
  
  
 

8
8
,6

0
8

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
9
,6

9
2

  
  
  
  

1
2
2
,4

1
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3
2
,8

0
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
3
2
,8

0
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
.4

9
%

E
L

E
C

T
IO

N
 &

 R
E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
1
6
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
E
L
E
C

T
IO

N
S

-S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
2
7
,1

8
6

  
  
  
  
 

3
2
,4

0
1

  
  
  
  
  
 

7
,1

1
4

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,4

3
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,8

0
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
,8

0
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-4
9
.5

8
%

1
6
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
E
L
E
C

T
IO

N
S

-E
X

P
E
N

S
E
S

1
0
,3

3
8

  
  
  
  
 

1
9
,4

7
8

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
0
,8

2
2

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,2

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
,7

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
4
,7

7
6

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-2
7
.0

3
%

E
L

E
C

T
IO

N
 &

 R
E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 T

O
T

A
L

3
7
,5

2
4

  
  
  
  
 

5
1
,8

7
9

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
7
,9

3
6

  
  
  
  
  

4
1
,6

8
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
,5

8
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
5
,5

8
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-3
8
.6

2
%

T
O

W
N

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S

1
9
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
T
O

W
N

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
-S

A
L
A

R
IE

S
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
9
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
T
O

W
N

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
-E

X
P
E
N

S
E
S

3
1
3
,8

9
9

  
  
  
 

2
4
6
,0

0
4

  
  
  
  
 

3
0
7
,5

7
1

  
  
  
  

2
6
5
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
8
0
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
8
0
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
.6

0
%

T
O

W
N

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 T

O
T

A
L

3
1
3
,8

9
9

  
  
  
 

2
4
6
,0

0
4

  
  
  
  
 

3
0
7
,5

7
1

  
  
  
  

2
6
5
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
8
0
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
8
0
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
.6

0
%

G
E
N

E
R

A
L

 G
O

V
E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 T

O
T

A
L

1
,5

0
3
,5

2
4

  
  

1
,5

9
4
,9

4
5

  
  
  

1
,6

5
9
,4

4
3

  
  
 

1
,5

0
4
,1

6
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,5

7
2
,4

6
7

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,5

7
2
,4

6
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
.5

4
%

(2
)

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(2
) 

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 o

f 
E
le

c
te

d
 O

ff
ic

ia
ls

 (
c
o
n
tin

u
e
d
):

(2
e

) 
T

o
w

n
 C

le
rk

 
$
5
6
,2

1
3

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 L

IF
E
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

P
O

L
IC

E 2
1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
P
O

L
IC

E
-S

A
L
A

R
IE

S
1
,5

6
3
,6

3
3

  
  

1
,5

9
6
,2

0
9

  
  
  

1
,7

0
3
,4

0
6

  
  
 

1
,6

9
0
,9

5
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,7

3
3
,2

4
5

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,7

3
3
,2

4
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
.5

0
%

2
1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
P
O

L
IC

E
- 

E
X

P
E
N

S
E
S

8
6
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
 

1
4
8
,7

0
7

  
  
  
  
 

1
2
6
,2

3
7

  
  
  
  

9
1
,6

3
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
4
,6

5
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
4
,6

5
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-7
.6

2
%

2
1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
P
O

L
IC

E
-E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
8
5
,8

5
2

  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,7

5
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

0
%

T
O

T
A

L
1
,7

3
5
,9

8
5

  
  

1
,7

4
4
,9

1
6

  
  
  

1
,8

2
9
,6

4
3

  
  
 

1
,7

8
4
,3

4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,8

1
7
,8

9
8

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,8

1
7
,8

9
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
.8

8
%

F
IR

E
 &

 R
E
S

C
U

E
2
2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
F
IR

E
 &

 R
E
S

C
U

E
-S

A
L
A

R
IE

S
3
8
9
,4

9
3

  
  
  
 

1
6
0
,6

0
7

  
  
  
  
 

2
3
4
,7

3
2

  
  
  
  

2
7
4
,9

5
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
0
8
,3

1
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
0
8
,3

1
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
.1

3
%

2
2
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
F
IR

E
 &

 R
E
S

C
U

E
 -

E
X

P
E
N

S
E
S

9
7
,7

5
0

  
  
  
  
 

7
6
,5

3
7

  
  
  
  
  
 

8
8
,2

8
4

  
  
  
  
  

7
8
,2

0
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
4
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
4
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
3
.6

2
%

T
O

T
A

L
4
8
7
,2

4
3

  
  
  
 

2
3
7
,1

4
4

  
  
  
  
 

3
2
3
,0

1
6

  
  
  
  

3
5
3
,1

5
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
1
2
,8

1
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
1
2
,8

1
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
.8

9
%

A
M

B
U

L
A

N
C

E
2
3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
A

M
B

U
L
A

N
C

E
-S

A
L
A

R
IE

S
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

2
3
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
A

M
B

U
L
A

N
C

E
- 

E
X

P
E
N

S
E

T
O

T
A

L
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

IN
S

P
E
C

T
O

R
S

2
4
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
B

L
D

G
 IN

S
P
E
C

T
O

R
S

-S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
7
2
,7

5
5

  
  
  
  
 

7
4
,0

6
4

  
  
  
  
  
 

7
6
,0

8
1

  
  
  
  
  

8
8
,5

5
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
0
,7

2
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
0
,7

2
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
.4

4
%

2
4
1

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
B

L
D

G
 IN

S
P
E
C

T
O

R
S

-E
X

P
E
N

S
E
S

2
,9

0
2

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,2

1
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,6

0
2

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
T

O
T

A
L

7
5
,6

5
7

  
  
  
  
 

7
7
,2

7
9

  
  
  
  
  
 

7
8
,6

8
3

  
  
  
  
  

9
2
,9

5
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
5
,1

2
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

9
5
,1

2
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
.3

3
%

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 L

IF
E
 &

 P
R

O
P

 T
O

T
A

L
2
,2

9
8
,8

8
5

  
  

2
,0

5
9
,3

3
9

  
  
  

2
,2

3
1
,3

4
2

  
  
 

2
,3

1
0
,4

5
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,4

0
5
,8

3
4

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,4

0
5
,8

3
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
.1

3
%

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
Y

 2
0
1
6

F
Y

 2
0
1
7

F
Y

2
0
1
8

F
Y

2
0
1
9

N
U

M
B

E
R

E
X

P
E
N

D
E
D

E
X

P
E
N

D
E
D

E
X

P
E
N

D
E
D

B
u

d
g

e
te

d

 
 

 



 

9 
 

TO
W

N 
O

F 
SH

ER
BO

RN
 F

IS
C

A
L 

20
20

 O
M

NI
BU

S 
BU

DG
ET

FY
20

 A
DV

 R
EC

 V
S.

FY
 2

02
0

FY
 2

02
0

FY
19

 B
UD

G
ET

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

DE
PT

 R
EQ

A
DV

 R
EC

%
 C

HA
NG

E

SC
HO

O
LS 31

7
   

   
   

   
E

M
IN

UT
EM

A
N 

RE
G

IO
NA

L 
HI

G
H 

SC
HO

O
L

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

30
1

E
DO

V
ER

-S
HE

RB
O

RN
 R

EG
IO

NA
L 

SC
HO

O
L 

DI
ST

RI
C

T
A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

1,
07

6,
73

5
   

 
93

9,
60

0
   

   
   

1,
35

2,
67

4
   

  
90

0,
61

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

39
2,

61
1

   
   

   
   

1,
39

2,
61

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

.6
3%

In
st

ru
ct

io
na

l L
ea

de
rs

hi
p

84
6,

19
9

   
   

 
1,

04
3,

54
5

   
   

88
8,

16
4

   
   

  
1,

10
8,

45
6

   
   

   
   

 
92

7,
57

5
   

   
   

   
   

92
7,

57
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

6.
32

%
Cl

as
sr

oo
m

 a
nd

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t T

ea
ch

er
9,

86
1,

83
1

   
 

10
,4

55
,5

61
   

 
10

,4
97

,8
87

   
11

,2
46

,3
60

   
   

   
  

11
,1

86
,9

04
   

   
   

 
11

,1
86

,9
04

   
   

   
   

  
-0

.5
3%

O
th

er
 T

ea
ch

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

69
9,

54
6

   
   

 
65

3,
27

5
   

   
   

52
8,

35
1

   
   

  
66

3,
53

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

3,
53

7
   

   
   

   
   

65
3,

53
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-1

.5
1%

Pu
pi

l S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

17
6,

18
4

   
 

79
6,

19
3

   
   

   
1,

01
9,

26
0

   
  

82
1,

50
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
06

9,
53

4
   

   
   

   
1,

06
9,

53
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
.1

9%
G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

Ps
yc

ho
lo

gi
ca

l
82

6,
06

1
   

   
 

1,
03

4,
30

1
   

   
1,

05
2,

02
8

   
  

1,
12

2,
92

7
   

   
   

   
 

1,
30

4,
45

8
   

   
   

   
1,

30
4,

45
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
.1

7%
In

st
ru

ct
io

na
l m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
22

4,
09

8
   

   
 

44
3,

05
8

   
   

   
46

8,
23

9
   

   
  

48
2,

31
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
5,

78
0

   
   

   
   

   
51

5,
78

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
94

%
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

13
0,

47
3

   
   

 
14

4,
75

5
   

   
   

13
7,

27
5

   
   

  
15

2,
57

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

2,
43

5
   

   
   

   
   

15
2,

43
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-0

.0
9%

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
47

5,
70

8
   

   
 

80
9,

72
9

   
   

   
78

0,
75

4
   

   
  

81
0,

85
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

81
7,

48
4

   
   

   
   

   
81

7,
48

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
82

%
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

1,
86

0,
97

0
   

 
1,

98
6,

41
4

   
   

1,
98

7,
70

7
   

  
1,

99
7,

34
0

   
   

   
   

 
2,

01
9,

80
9

   
   

   
   

2,
01

9,
80

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

12
%

Em
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 F
ix

ed
 C

ha
rg

es
3,

33
5,

15
2

   
 

3,
62

6,
99

4
   

   
4,

11
1,

01
2

   
  

(4
)

4,
30

4,
74

0
   

   
   

   
 

4,
28

6,
32

7
   

   
   

   
4,

28
6,

32
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

-0
.4

3%
Ex

em
pt

 D
eb

t
1,

38
6,

29
0

   
 

1,
27

8,
44

0
   

   
1,

03
6,

70
0

   
  

1,
00

3,
60

0
   

   
   

   
 

96
5,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
96

5,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-3
.7

7%

D/
S 

RE
G

IO
NA

L 
EX

PE
ND

IT
UR

ES
21

,8
99

,2
47

  
23

,2
11

,8
65

   
 

23
,8

60
,0

51
   

24
,6

14
,8

16
   

   
   

  
25

,2
92

,2
54

   
   

   
 

25
,2

92
,2

54
   

   
   

   
  

2.
75

%
Le

ss
 E

xe
m

pt
 D

eb
t

(1
,3

86
,2

90
)

   
(1

,2
78

,4
40

)
   

  
(1

,0
36

,7
00

)
   

(1
,0

03
,6

00
)

   
   

   
  

(9
65

,8
00

)
   

   
   

   
 

(9
65

,8
00

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

.7
7%

Le
ss

 R
eg

io
na

l R
ec

ei
pt

s 
(In

c 
E&

D 
tra

ns
fe

r)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,6
66

,4
81

)
   

  
(2

,7
41

,2
45

)
   

(3
,0

67
,6

33
)

   
   

   
  

(3
,2

15
,4

63
)

   
   

   
 

(3
,2

15
,4

63
)

   
   

   
   

   
4.

82
%

D/
S 

RE
G

IO
NA

L 
NE

T 
O

PE
RA

TI
O

NS
20

,5
12

,9
57

  
19

,2
66

,9
44

   
 

20
,0

82
,1

06
   

20
,5

43
,5

83
   

   
   

  
21

,1
10

,9
91

   
   

   
 

21
,1

10
,9

91
   

   
   

   
  

2.
76

%

Sh
er

bo
rn

's
 S

ha
re

 o
f O

pe
ra

tio
ns

46
.6

3%
45

.1
8%

44
.2

4%
44

.2
4%

44
.1

4%
43

.3
7%

43
.3

7%
-1

.7
5%

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 A

ss
es

se
d 

to
 S

he
rb

or
n

8,
66

9,
78

3
   

 
8,

65
6,

41
5

   
   

9,
06

8,
80

4
   

   
   

   
 

9,
15

5,
82

2
   

   
   

   
9,

15
5,

82
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
96

%
Ex

em
pt

 D
eb

t A
ss

es
se

d 
to

 S
he

rb
or

n
63

1,
28

2
   

   
 

56
4,

17
6

   
   

   
43

.3
3%

43
5,

46
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

41
3,

26
6

   
   

   
   

   
41

3,
26

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-5
.1

0%

30
1

   
   

   
   

E
D/

S 
RE

G
IO

NA
L 

 A
SS

ES
SM

EN
T

8,
90

4,
71

0
   

 
9,

22
0,

59
1

   
   

9,
24

5,
75

3
   

  
9,

50
4,

26
6

   
   

   
   

 
9,

56
9,

08
8

   
   

   
   

9,
56

9,
08

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

68
%

30
2

   
   

   
   

E
TR

I-C
O

UN
TY

 V
O

C
A

TI
O

NA
L

1,
30

3
   

   
   

  
1,

30
0

   
   

   
   

 
1,

29
1

   
   

   
   

1,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
,2

24
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

,2
24

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
23

78
.7

7%

(4
)

In
su

ra
nc

e
FY

17
FY

18
FY

19
FY

20
FY

20
%

De
ta

il
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Re
qu

es
t

Bu
dg

et
In

c(
De

c)

Li
ab

ilit
y

60
,3

15
   

   
   

   
   

61
,1

56
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

61
,1

56
   

   
   

  
72

,4
46

   
   

72
,4

46
   

   
   

 
18

.4
6%

W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

p
89

,3
21

   
   

   
   

   
10

0,
02

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0,

02
6

   
   

   
11

0,
95

9
   

 
11

0,
95

9
   

   
  

10
.9

3%
He

al
th

 In
su

ra
nc

e
2,

96
0,

95
8

   
   

   
 

3,
27

1,
58

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

27
1,

58
4

   
   

3,
12

0,
00

0
 

3,
12

0,
00

0
   

  
-4

.6
3%

Un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

Re
tir

em
en

t
51

1,
40

0
   

   
   

   
 

63
6,

44
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
63

6,
44

9
   

   
   

71
6,

47
2

   
 

71
6,

47
2

   
   

  
12

.5
7%

Re
gi

on
al

 T
ot

al
3,

62
6,

99
4

   
   

   
 

4,
06

9,
21

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

06
9,

21
5

   
   

4,
01

9,
87

7
 

4,
01

9,
87

7
   

  
-1

.2
1%

To
w

n 
Sh

ar
e 

To
ta

l
To

w
n 

Sh
ar

e 
of

 H
ea

lth
 In

su
ra

nc
e

1,
77

4,
55

1
   

  

BU
DG

ET
FY

 2
01

6
FY

 2
01

7
FY

20
18

FY
20

19
NU

M
BE

R
EX

PE
ND

ED
EX

PE
ND

ED
EX

PE
ND

ED
Bu

dg
et

ed

 
 

 



 

10
 

 

TO
W

N 
OF

 S
HE

RB
OR

N 
FIS

CA
L 

20
20

 O
M

NI
BU

S 
BU

DG
ET

FY
20

 A
DV

 R
EC

 V
S.

FY
 20

20
FY

 20
20

FY
19

 B
UD

GE
T

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

DE
PT

 R
EQ

AD
V 

RE
C

% 
CH

AN
GE

SH
ER

BO
RN

 S
CH

OO
L

E
Sc

ho
ol 

Co
mm

itte
e &

 N
eg

oti
ati

on
s

21
,53

9
    

    
 

7,8
50

    
    

    
 

16
,74

3
    

    
  

14
,80

0
    

    
    

    
  

14
,80

0
    

    
    

    
 

14
,80

0
    

    
    

    
    

 
0.0

0%
Ce

ntr
al 

Of
fic

e
35

5,4
61

    
   

42
9,7

09
    

    
 

26
8,1

37
    

    
26

4,7
40

    
    

    
    

26
4,1

04
    

    
    

   
26

4,1
04

    
    

    
    

   
-0

.24
%

Pr
inc

ipa
l's

 O
ffi

ce
30

5,3
47

    
   

30
4,6

88
    

    
 

33
8,4

87
    

    
33

4,0
65

    
    

    
    

33
9,1

02
    

    
    

   
33

9,1
02

    
    

    
    

   
1.5

1%
Re

gu
lar

 Ed
uc

ati
on

1,9
52

,01
9

    
2,4

06
,33

5
    

  
2,7

90
,06

8
    

 
2,9

37
,91

5
    

    
    

 
2,9

71
,40

5
    

    
    

2,9
71

,40
5

    
    

    
    

1.1
4%

Sp
ec

ial
ist

s/T
ec

hn
olo

gy
37

4,4
30

    
   

35
8,8

79
    

    
 

15
5,1

18
    

    
15

2,5
10

    
    

    
    

17
2,0

72
    

    
    

   
17

2,0
72

    
    

    
    

   
12

.83
%

Lib
ra

ry
/ A

ud
io 

Vi
su

al
11

1,9
80

    
   

11
3,2

91
    

    
 

11
4,9

56
    

    
11

8,6
01

    
    

    
    

12
1,3

57
    

    
    

   
12

1,3
57

    
    

    
    

   
2.3

2%
Gu

ida
nc

e
10

3,5
78

    
   

10
5,2

41
    

    
 

10
6,8

84
    

    
11

0,5
51

    
    

    
    

11
3,3

07
    

    
    

   
11

3,3
07

    
    

    
    

   
2.4

9%
Ch

ap
ter

 76
6 S

pe
cia

l E
du

c.
1,1

79
,56

9
    

1,2
20

,05
9

    
  

1,2
07

,70
0

    
 

1,2
21

,05
4

    
    

    
 

1,3
23

,42
4

    
    

    
1,3

23
,42

4
    

    
    

    
8.3

8%
Me

dic
al 

Se
rv

ice
69

,78
2

    
    

 
13

9,2
02

    
    

 
16

7,1
15

    
    

17
1,3

63
    

    
    

    
18

8,1
26

    
    

    
   

18
8,1

26
    

    
    

    
   

9.7
8%

Tr
an

sp
or

tat
ion

17
0,1

16
    

   
18

0,5
77

    
    

 
18

5,1
24

    
    

18
8,1

06
    

    
    

    
19

0,9
44

    
    

    
   

19
0,9

44
    

    
    

    
   

1.5
1%

Pla
nt 

& 
Fa

cil
itie

s
42

0,8
11

    
   

50
3,2

37
    

    
 

46
2,7

00
    

    
48

8,4
67

    
    

    
    

48
5,8

15
    

    
    

   
48

5,8
15

    
    

    
    

   
-0

.54
%

Pi
ne

 H
ill 

Sc
ho

ol
 T

ot
al

5,0
64

,63
0

    
5,7

69
,06

8
    

  
5,8

13
,03

2
    

 
6,0

02
,17

2
    

    
    

 
6,1

84
,45

6
    

    
    

6,1
84

,45
6

    
    

    
    

3.0
4%

Re
gio

na
l O

OD
 S

PE
D

68
5,4

74
    

   
73

1,9
91

    
    

 
1,0

86
,35

4
    

 
1,0

51
,17

5
    

    
    

 
1,0

64
,36

3
    

    
    

1,0
64

,36
3

    
    

    
    

1.2
5%

30
3

    
    

    
E

SH
ER

BO
RN

 S
CH

OO
LS

 T
OT

AL
5,7

50
,10

4
    

6,5
01

,05
9

    
  

6,8
99

,38
6

    
 

7,0
53

,34
7

    
    

    
 

7,2
48

,81
9

    
    

    
7,2

48
,81

9
    

    
    

    
2.7

7%

31
6

    
    

    
E

NO
RF

OL
K 

AG
RI

CU
LT

UR
AL

8,5
55

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
    

 
-

    
    

    
   

34
,00

0
    

    
    

    
  

34
,00

0
    

    
    

    
 

34
,00

0
    

    
    

    
    

 
0.0

0%

SC
HO

OL
 T

OT
AL

14
,66

4,6
72

  
15

,72
2,9

50
    

16
,14

6,4
30

   
16

,59
2,9

13
    

    
   

16
,88

4,1
31

    
    

  
16

,88
4,1

31
    

    
    

  
1.7

6%

BU
DG

ET
FY

 20
16

FY
 20

17
FY

20
18

FY
20

19
NU

M
BE

R
EX

PE
ND

ED
EX

PE
ND

ED
EX

PE
ND

ED
Bu

dg
et

ed

 
 

 



 

11
 

 

TO
W

N 
OF

 S
HE

RB
OR

N 
FIS

CA
L 

20
20

 O
M

NI
BU

S 
BU

DG
ET

FY
20

 A
DV

 R
EC

 V
S.

FY
 20

20
FY

 20
20

FY
19

 B
UD

GE
T

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

DE
PT

 R
EQ

AD
V 

RE
C

% 
CH

AN
GE

PU
BL

IC
 W

OR
KS

CO
M

M
UN

IT
Y 

M
AI

NT
EN

AN
CE

 &
 D

EV
EL

OP
M

EN
T

40
1

   
   

   
   

S
CM

&D
-S

AL
AR

IES
57

6,
43

5
   

   
 

59
2,

50
8

   
   

   
66

5,
20

9
   

   
  

57
8,

45
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

62
4,

54
2

   
   

   
   

   
62

4,
54

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
97

%
40

1
   

   
   

   
E

CM
&D

-E
XP

EN
SE

S
48

9,
78

2
   

   
 

55
1,

75
9

   
   

   
68

9,
57

0
   

   
  

38
7,

85
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
8,

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
43

8,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
.0

1%

CM
&D

 T
OT

AL
1,0

66
,21

7
    

1,1
44

,26
7

    
  

1,3
54

,77
9

    
 

96
6,3

02
    

    
    

    
1,0

62
,84

2
    

    
    

1,0
62

,84
2

    
    

    
    

9.
99

%

SN
OW

 &
 IC

E (
Pr

ev
io

us
ly 

sh
ow

n 
in

 C
M

&D
)

43
0

   
   

   
   

S
SN

OW
 &

 IC
E 

- S
AL

AR
IES

30
,1

35
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

,7
68

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
,7

68
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2.
10

%
43

0
   

   
   

   
E

SN
OW

 &
 IC

E 
- E

XP
EN

SE
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

52
,7

90
   

   
   

   
   

   
53

,1
50

   
   

   
   

   
  

53
,1

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
68

%

SN
OW

 &
 IC

E T
OT

AL
-

    
    

    
    

   
-

    
    

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

    
   

82
,92

5
    

    
    

    
  

83
,91

8
    

    
    

    
 

83
,91

8
    

    
    

    
    

 
1.

20
%

ST
RE

ET
 L

IG
HT

IN
G 

(P
re

vio
us

ly 
sh

ow
n 

in
 C

M
&D

)
42

4
   

   
   

   
E

ST
RE

ET
 L

IG
HI

TN
G 

-E
XP

EN
SE

S
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
.0

0%

ST
RE

ET
 L

IG
HT

IN
G 

TO
TA

L
-

    
    

    
   

-
    

    
    

    
 

-
    

    
    

   
20

,00
0

    
    

    
    

  
22

,00
0

    
    

    
    

 
22

,00
0

    
    

    
    

    
 

10
.0

0%

SO
LI

D 
W

AS
TE

43
3

   
   

   
   

E
SO

LID
 W

AS
TE

-E
XP

EN
SE

S
23

4,
39

1
   

   
 

24
3,

95
6

   
   

   
26

4,
99

1
   

   
  

(5
)

28
2,

54
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
8,

87
7

   
   

   
   

   
28

8,
87

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
24

%

SO
LI

D 
W

AS
TE

 T
OT

AL
23

4,3
91

    
   

24
3,9

56
    

    
 

26
4,9

91
    

    
28

2,5
44

    
    

    
    

28
8,8

77
    

    
    

   
28

8,8
77

    
    

    
    

   
2.

24
%

RE
CY

CL
IN

G
43

3
   

   
   

   
E

RE
CY

CL
IN

G 
EX

PE
NS

ES
95

6
   

   
   

   
  

48
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
74

6
   

   
   

   
3,

23
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

23
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

23
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%

RE
CY

CL
IN

G 
TO

TA
L

95
6

    
    

    
  

48
5

    
    

    
    

2,7
46

    
    

    
3,2

30
    

    
    

    
    

3,2
30

    
    

    
    

   
3,2

30
    

    
    

    
    

   
0.

00
%

CE
M

ET
ER

IES
49

1
   

   
   

   
S

CE
ME

TE
RI

ES
-S

AL
AR

IES
49

1
   

   
   

   
E

CE
ME

TE
RI

ES
-E

XP
EN

SE
S

59
,0

58
   

   
   

59
,1

10
   

   
   

  
63

,0
00

   
   

   
 

63
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
64

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

64
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
59

%

CE
M

ET
ER

Y 
TO

TA
L

59
,05

8
    

    
 

59
,11

0
    

    
   

63
,00

0
    

    
  

63
,00

0
    

    
    

    
  

64
,00

0
    

    
    

    
 

64
,00

0
    

    
    

    
    

 
1.

59
%

PU
BL

IC
 W

OR
KS

 T
OT

AL
1,3

60
,62

2
    

1,4
47

,81
8

    
  

1,6
85

,51
6

    
 

1,4
18

,00
1

    
    

    
 

1,5
24

,86
7

    
    

    
1,5

24
,86

7
    

    
    

    
7.

54
%

(5
)

Of
fs

et
 b

y 
$2

0,
00

0 
 to

 b
e 

tra
ns

fe
rre

d 
fro

m 
Tr

an
sf

er
 S

ta
tio

n 
Fe

es
 R

es
er

ve
 fo

r A
pp

ro
pr

iat
ion

 A
cc

ou
nt

BU
DG

ET
FY

 20
16

FY
 20

17
FY

20
18

FY
20

19
NU

M
BE

R
EX

PE
ND

ED
EX

PE
ND

ED
EX

PE
ND

ED
Bu

dg
et

ed

 
 

 



 

12
 

 

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

S
H

ER
B

O
R

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 2
02

0 
O

M
N

IB
U

S
 B

U
D

G
ET

FY
20

 A
D

V
 R

EC
 V

S
.

FY
 2

02
0

FY
 2

02
0

FY
19

 B
U

D
G

ET
D

ES
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
D

EP
T

 R
EQ

A
D

V
 R

EC
%

 C
H

A
N

G
E

H
EA

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 H
U

M
A

N
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

   
H

EA
L

T
H

51
2

   
   

   
   

S
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

H
EA

LT
H

-S
A

LA
R

IE
S

69
,1

73
   

   
   

10
5,

24
0

   
   

   
10

4,
18

4
   

   
  

11
4,

69
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
5,

62
6

   
   

   
   

   
12

5,
62

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9.
53

%
51

2
   

   
   

   
E

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F 
H

EA
LT

H
-E

X
PE

N
S

ES
65

,6
59

   
   

   
26

,8
13

   
   

   
  

18
,3

79
   

   
   

 
15

,2
84

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,5

26
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

,5
26

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

58
%

H
EA

L
T

H
 T

O
T

A
L

13
4,

83
2

   
   

 
13

2,
05

3
   

   
   

12
2,

56
3

   
   

  
12

9,
98

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

1,
15

2
   

   
   

   
   

14
1,

15
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

59
%

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 O
N

 A
G

IN
G

54
1

   
   

   
   

S
C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

N
 A

G
IN

G
-S

A
LA

R
IE

S
11

0,
09

7
   

   
 

11
3,

53
9

   
   

   
11

6,
59

7
   

   
  

11
6,

81
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
3,

49
1

   
   

   
   

   
12

3,
49

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
72

%
54

1
   

   
   

   
E

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 O
N

 A
G

IN
G

-E
X

PE
N

S
ES

25
,8

20
   

   
   

26
,0

20
   

   
   

  
24

,9
53

   
   

   
 

29
,6

70
   

   
   

   
   

   
29

,5
20

   
   

   
   

   
  

29
,5

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-0
.5

1%

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 O
N

 A
G

IN
G

 T
O

T
A

L
13

5,
91

7
   

   
 

13
9,

55
9

   
   

   
14

1,
55

0
   

   
  

14
6,

48
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
3,

01
1

   
   

   
   

   
15

3,
01

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
46

%

V
ET

ER
A

N
S

54
3

   
   

   
   

S
V

ET
ER

A
N

S
-S

A
LA

R
IE

S
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

3
   

   
   

   
E

V
ET

ER
A

N
S

-E
X

PE
N

S
ES

1,
88

9
   

   
   

  
2,

58
7

   
   

   
   

 
11

,3
33

   
   

   
 

6,
49

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
49

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
49

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

V
ET

ER
A

N
S

 T
O

T
A

L
1,

88
9

   
   

   
  

2,
58

7
   

   
   

   
 

11
,3

33
   

   
   

 
6,

49
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6,

49
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

49
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%

H
EA

L
T

H
 &

 H
U

M
A

N
 S

ER
V

IC
ES

 T
O

T
A

L
27

2,
63

8
   

   
 

27
4,

19
9

   
   

   
27

5,
44

6
   

   
  

28
2,

95
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
0,

65
3

   
   

   
   

   
30

0,
65

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
25

%

C
U

L
T

U
R

E 
&

 R
EC

R
EA

T
IO

N
  L

IB
R

A
R

Y
61

0
   

   
   

   
S

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

-S
A

LA
R

IE
S

27
3,

19
9

   
   

 
28

2,
37

5
   

   
   

29
1,

21
2

   
   

  
35

4,
69

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

2,
50

4
   

   
   

   
   

34
2,

50
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-3

.4
4%

61
0

   
   

   
   

E
LI

B
R

A
R

Y
-E

X
PE

N
S

ES
13

7,
60

0
   

   
 

12
4,

18
0

   
   

   
13

4,
97

7
   

   
  

(6
)

16
0,

17
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
1,

40
4

   
   

   
   

   
16

1,
40

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
77

%

T
O

T
A

L
41

0,
79

9
   

   
 

40
6,

55
5

   
   

   
42

6,
18

9
   

   
  

51
4,

86
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
3,

90
8

   
   

   
   

   
50

3,
90

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
.1

3%

R
EC

R
EA

T
IO

N
65

0
   

   
   

   
S

R
EC

R
EA

TI
O

N
-S

A
LA

R
IE

S
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
65

0
   

   
   

   
E

R
EC

R
EA

TI
O

N
-E

X
PE

N
S

ES
15

,0
00

   
   

   
9,

90
0

   
   

   
   

 
15

,3
50

   
   

   
 

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

%

T
O

T
A

L
15

,0
00

   
   

   
9,

99
0

   
   

   
   

 
15

,3
50

   
   

   
 

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

%

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

 C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

69
1

   
   

   
   

E
H

IS
TO

R
IC

A
L 

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

63
   

   
   

   
   

 
47

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
83

9
   

   
   

   
   

1,
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

.1
8%

T
O

T
A

L
63

   
   

   
   

   
 

47
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

83
9

   
   

   
   

   
1,

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.1

8%

FA
R

M
 P

O
N

D
C

U
L

T
U

R
E 

&
 R

EC
R

EA
T

IO
N

 T
O

T
A

L
42

5,
86

2
   

   
 

41
7,

01
7

   
   

   
44

2,
37

8
   

   
  

53
0,

96
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

52
0,

20
8

   
   

   
   

   
52

0,
20

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
.0

3%

(6
)

O
ff

se
t b

y 
tr

an
sf

er
s 

to
 L

ib
ra

ry
 E

xp
en

se
s 

as
 f

ol
lo

w
s:

Fr
om

 D
ow

se
 

Fr
om

 S
al

to
ns

ta
ll

Fr
om

 S
ta

te
 A

id
 to

M
em

or
ia

l F
un

d
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Fu
nd

Li
br

ar
ie

s
FY

 1
6

$4
,2

40
$2

0,
68

0
$4

,4
45

FY
 1

7
$4

,2
40

$2
0,

99
0

$4
,4

45
FY

 1
8

$4
,2

40
$4

1,
85

6
$4

,4
45

FY
 1

9
$4

,2
46

$4
2,

69
3

$4
,4

45
FY

 2
0

$4
,0

71
$5

6,
94

6
$4

,4
45

B
U

D
G

ET
FY

 2
01

6
FY

 2
01

7
FY

20
18

FY
20

19
N

U
M

B
ER

EX
P

EN
D

ED
EX

P
EN

D
ED

EX
P

EN
D

ED
B

u
d

g
e

te
d

 
 

 



 

13
 

 

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

S
H

ER
B

O
R

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 2
02

0 
O

M
N

IB
U

S
 B

U
D

G
ET

FY
20

 A
D

V
 R

EC
 V

S
.

FY
 2

02
0

FY
 2

02
0

FY
19

 B
U

D
G

ET
D

ES
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
D

EP
T

 R
EQ

A
D

V
 R

EC
%

 C
H

A
N

G
E

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E 

A
N

D
 E

M
P

L
O

Y
EE

 B
EN

EF
IT

S
9
1
9

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
G

E
N

E
R

A
L
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
17

2,
33

8
   

   
 

22
6,

03
6

   
   

   
24

6,
70

5
   

   
  

24
5,

98
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
8,

28
2

   
   

   
   

   
25

8,
28

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
.0

0
%

9
1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
E
M

P
L
O

Y
E
E
 B

E
N

E
F
IT

S
 IN

C
L
 O

P
E
B

 &
 R

E
T

2,
30

4,
92

7
   

 
2,

58
1,

70
7

   
   

2,
72

6,
61

5
   

  
(7

),
 (

8
)

2,
81

1,
44

8
   

   
   

   
 

2,
89

5,
16

0
   

   
   

   
2,

89
5,

16
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
.9

8
%

D
EB

T
 S

ER
V

IC
E

7
1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
D

E
B

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 (

T
O

T
A

L
)

1,
66

6,
65

7
   

 
1,

47
0,

69
8

   
   

1,
36

3,
75

7
   

  
(9

,9
a
,9

b
,9

c)
1,

83
8,

17
8

   
   

   
   

 
1,

35
5,

88
1

   
   

   
   

1,
35

5,
88

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

6
.2

4
%

 
 

R
ES

ER
V

E 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

9
9
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
R

E
S

E
R

V
E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
0
)

30
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
30

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

24
,6

70
,1

25
  

25
,7

94
,7

09
   

 
26

,7
77

,6
32

   
27

,8
35

,0
72

   
   

   
  

28
,0

17
,4

83
   

   
   

 
28

,0
17

,4
83

   
   

   
   

  
0
.6

6
%

(7
)

E
m

p
lo

ye
e
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 in
cl

u
d
e
 O

P
E
B

 A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
tio

n
 t
ra

n
sf

e
r 

to
 O

P
E
B

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

 T
R

U
S

T
 F

U
N

D
 $

1
0
0
,0

0
0

(8
)

E
m

p
lo

ye
e
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

:

A
llo

ca
tio

n
 o

f 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

:

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

llo
ca

tio
n
s 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
re

 b
a
se

d
 

F
Y

1
8

o
n
 h

is
to

ri
ca

l d
a
ta

; 
a
ct

u
a
ls

 m
a
y 

d
if
fe

r
E
xp

e
n
d
e
d

F
Y

2
0
A

d
v 

R
e
c

%
 o

f 
T
o
ta

l E
m

p
l

G
e
n
e
ra

l G
o
v'

t
4
9
2
,1

7
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
7
%

4
6
3
,5

2
5

  
  
  
 

L
ib

ra
ry

1
4
4
,7

5
8

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
%

1
3
6
,3

3
1

  
  
  
 

C
M

&
D

2
0
2
,6

6
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
%

1
9
0
,8

6
3

  
  
  
 

P
o
lic

e
/F

ir
e

4
3
4
,2

7
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
5
%

4
0
8
,9

9
2

  
  
  
 

S
ch

o
o
l  

(1
)

1
,0

1
3
,3

0
6

  
  
  
  
  

3
5
%

9
5
4
,3

1
5

  
  
  
 

R
e
tir

e
e
s

6
0
7
,9

8
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
1
%

5
7
2
,5

8
9

  
  
  
 

T
o
ta

l
2
,8

9
5
,1

6
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
%

2
,7

2
6
,6

1
5

  
  

(1
) 

D
o
e
s 

n
o
t 
in

cl
u
d
e
 t
e
a
ch

e
rs

' r
e
tir

e
m

e
n
t 
a
s 

it 
is

 p
a
id

 b
y 

th
e
 S

ta
te

(9
)

 

P
ri
n
ci

p
a
l

1
,0

6
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

B
o
n
d
 In

te
re

st
2
7
6
,5

8
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

O
th

e
r 

In
te

re
st

 /
 

P
a
yd

o
w

n
s

1
4
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,3

5
5
,8

8
1

  
  
  
  
  

D
e
b
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

ff
se

t 
b
y 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
ra

n
sf

e
rs

:
(9

a
)

T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 E

ld
e
r 

H
o
u
si

n
g
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 R
e
vo

lv
in

g
  
$
3
9
,3

9
0

(9
b
)

T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

fr
o
m

 F
u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
ce

 R
e
se

rv
e
 D

e
b
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 -

 M
S

B
A

 R
e
im

b
u
rs

e
m

e
n
t 
A

m
o
rt

iz
a
tio

n
 $

3
2
,4

1
2

(9
c)

T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

fr
o
m

 F
u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
ce

 R
e
se

rv
e
 A

m
o
rt

iz
e
d
 P

re
m

iu
m

 -
 $

4
,2

5
8

(1
0
)

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 R

e
se

rv
e
 A

cc
o
u
n
t 
to

 v
a
ri
o
u
s 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

a
re

 in
cl

u
d
e
d
 in

 d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l e
xp

e
n
d
itu

re
s.

F
Y

 2
0
1
6

$
1
0
0
,0

0
0

F
Y

 2
0
1
7
 

$
2
9
1
,7

2
5

F
Y

 2
0
1
8
 

$
1
7
,7

2
6

F
Y

 2
0
1
9
 t
o
 d

a
te

$
1
2
0
,1

5
4

B
U

D
G

ET
FY

 2
01

6
FY

 2
01

7
FY

20
18

FY
20

19
N

U
M

B
ER

EX
P

EN
D

ED
EX

P
EN

D
ED

EX
P

EN
D

ED
B

u
d

g
e

te
d

 
 

 



14 
 

ARTICLE 9. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, or transfer from available funds, or borrow pursuant to any applicable 
statute, a sum or sums of money, and if so, what sum or sums, for the purpose of capital expenditures of the Town of 
Sherborn; and to determine if any amount borrowed under this article shall be contingent upon the passage of a ballot 
question exempting the amounts required to pay for the bonds from the provisions of Proposition 2 ½; or take any action 
relative thereto.  (Select Board for Various Departments)  
 

NO. LEAD DEPT. ITEM AMOUNT 

  a. Fire Department Breathing Support Equipment 
(SCBA/Oxygen)  $    73,000 

  b. CM&D Air Compressor & 2 Jack Hammers  $    22,300 

  c. CM&D Material Processing Equipment  $    96,000 

  d. CM&D Tractor   $    75,100 
  e. CM&D 2 Pick-up Trucks w/ highway equipment  $  111,295 

  f. Facilities Town Buildings  $ 300,000 
  g. School Committee (SSC) Renovations to Pine Hill School  $   65,000 
  Total  $ 742,695 

 
Line a:  BREATHING SUPPORT EQUIPMENT (SCBA/OXYGEN) - $73,000 
 
Advisory Committee: The Fire Department requires two fill stations for oxygen tanks, one for the self-contained 
breathing apparatus (SCBA) tanks and the other for smaller oxygen bottles used both by Emergency Medical Services 
(EMS) and the Police Department. The current fill stations are over 20 years old and do not meet current standards. With a 
state mandate requiring OSHA compliance as of February 2019, replacement of the fill stations is a necessity. The new fill 
stations will improve breathing air quality for the Town’s emergency responders, improve personnel safety, and meet current 
OSHA and NFPA standards. 
 
We recommend favorable action and that the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, be 
authorized to borrow up to $73,000 pursuant to General laws Chapter 44, Section (7)9 or any other 
applicable statute; provided however, that this appropriation shall not take effect until the Town votes to 
exempt from the limitation on total taxes imposed by the General Laws Chapter 59 , Section 
21C(k)(Proposition 2 ½) the amounts required to pay the principal and interest on the bonds and notes 
authorized by this vote. (8-0 
 
Line b:  CM&D: AIR COMPRESSOR & 2 JACK HAMMERS - $22,300 
 
Advisory Committee: The existing equipment was manufactured in the 1970's and breaks down frequently, causing 
delays to road repairs and other maintenance. 
 
We recommend favorable action and that the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, be 
authorized to borrow up to $22,300 pursuant to General Laws Chapter 44, Section (7)9 or any other 
applicable statute; provided however, that this appropriation shall not take effect until the Town votes to 
exempt from the limitation on total taxes imposed by the General Laws Chapter 59, Section 21C(k) 
(Proposition 2 ½) the amounts required to pay the principal and interest on the bonds and notes 
authorized by this vote.  (8-0)   
 
Line c.  CM&D:  MATERIAL PROCESSING EQUIPMENT - $96,000 
 
Advisory Committee: The material processing equipment consists of an asphalt ‘hot box’ and a wood chipper. Current 
road patching and repair is less effective with poor repairs and wasted materials because the Town does not own an asphalt 
hot box. When road repairs are undertaken, asphalt must be brought from the plant to town in a cold truck, and any material 
not used must be disposed of. A hot box would allow for the use of all material purchased and speed up repairs. The current 



 

15 
 

wood chipper is from 1998, has 784 hours of use, is small, and does not have a winch. This has resulted in injuries and is 
the number one source of Workmen's Compensation claims. The useful life is 10-15 years and ours will be 20 years old. 
Finally, the wood chipper is increasingly needed to assist with the removal of down limbs from dead trees throughout town. 
 
We recommend favorable action and that the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, be 
authorized to borrow up to $96,000 pursuant to General Laws Chapter 44, Section (7)9 or any other 
applicable statute; provided however, that this appropriation shall not take effect until the Town votes to 
exempt from the limitation on total taxes imposed by the General Laws Chapter 59, Section 21C(k) 
(Proposition 2 ½) the amounts required to pay the principal and interest on the bonds and notes 
authorized by this vote.  (8-0) 
 
Line d.  CM&D EQUIPMENT – TRACTOR 
 
Advisory Committee:  The current tractor is from 1994, and it is undersized and underpowered for its intended use. Also, 
it cannot be used in the winter because it does not have a cab. It is currently used to mow ball fields. The new tractor would 
also be used to remove snow and cut brush in the winter, and to tow the blower in the fall.   
 
We recommend favorable action and that the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, be 
authorized to borrow up to $75,100 pursuant to General Laws Chapter 44, Section (7)9 or any other 
applicable statute; provided however, that this appropriation shall not take effect until the Town votes to 
exempt from the limitation on total taxes imposed by the General Laws Chapter 59, Section 21C(k) 
(Proposition 2 ½) the amounts required to pay the principal and interest on the bonds and notes 
authorized by this vote.  (8-0) 
 
Line e. CM&D EQUIPMENT – 2 PICK-UP TRUCKS WITH HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT 
  
Advisory Committee:  The two current pick-up trucks were manufactured in 2007 and 2001, with 113,891 and 118,681 
miles respectively. The trucks have exceeded their useful life, are becoming a maintenance burden, and pose a safety concern 
with rotted beds. The highway equipment includes a Water Tank/Brine Sprayer and a Tow-Behind Blower.  The water tank 
will support street sweeping since the Town has no public water supply for refilling the sweeper. Currently a small sprayer 
tank on a trailer is used. In the winter, pretreatment of roads with the brine sprayer will reduce the amount of salt needed 
later and would be environmentally preferable. The Tow-Behind Blower will be used to remove leaves from open roadsides. 
We currently don’t have a large blower, so the leaves that the wind doesn’t blow off the edges of the road in the fall end up 
in the catch basins, which adds to the volume of debris that we must pay to dispose of. 
 
We recommend favorable action and that the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, be 
authorized to borrow up to $111,295 pursuant to General Laws Chapter 44, Section (7)9 or any other 
applicable statute; provided however, that this appropriation shall not take effect until the Town votes to 
exempt from the limitation on total taxes imposed by the General Laws Chapter 59, Section 21C(k) 
(Proposition 2 ½) the amounts required to pay the principal and interest on the bonds and notes 
authorized by this vote.  (8-0) 
 
Line f. FACILITIES – TOWN BUILDINGS 
 
Advisory Committee: The total Town Buildings capital budget encompasses five major components: 

i. Town Building and Campus Projects - $35,000 - Based on the Town Buildings On-Site Insight report from 
August 2016, we are in the third year of funding an estimated backlog of 1.2 M of life-cycle replacement projects. 
In addition, the Library expansion project has added expenses for the public water supply system and accelerated 
the need for the campus paving, lighting, and site work. 
ii. Fire Station Siding and Exterior Repairs - $70,000 - Complete replacing failed siding and trim, and finish 
LED upgrade to exterior lighting. 
iii. Campus Site Work in Conjunction with Library Project - $65,000 – Project components include: site work 
to improve a safety and access issue at the Police Station rear entrance; and paving of all areas of campus not 
included in Library contract. 



 

16 
 

iv. Police Station Exterior Upgrades - $55,000 – Project work and preventive measures to the exterior of the 
Police Station include the installation of gutters, improvements to exterior flashing, and repairs to the brick façade 
that has been damaged due to the lack of these exterior features. 
v. Replacement of Town Hall Handicap Ramp and Entryway - $75,000 – The handicap ramp entrance to Town 
Hall has ADA compliance issues and deterioration beyond repair. There are also winter maintenance and safety 
concerns with ice from the roof above. As a result, this project will upgrade and replace the ramp and entranceway, 
including addressing grading issues in conjunction with parking lot work from the Library construction project. 

 
We recommend favorable action and that the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, be 
authorized to borrow up to $300,000 pursuant to General Laws Chapter 44, Section (7)9 or any other 
applicable statute; provided however, that this appropriation shall not take effect until the Town votes to 
exempt from the limitation on total taxes imposed by the General Laws Chapter 59, Section 21C(k) 
(Proposition 2 ½) the amounts required to pay the principal and interest on the bonds and notes 
authorized by this vote.  (8-0) 
 
Line g. SHERBORN SCHOOL COMMITTEE – RENOVATIONS TO PINE HILL SCHOOL 
 
Advisory Committee: The Sherborn School Committee Building sub-committee has worked with the OnSite-InSite 
Consultant report and identified two projects that require replacement in fiscal year 2020; the Kindergarten classroom and 
common area floors built in 1999 and the Library and adjoining classroom hallway floors, approximately 15 years old.  The 
Committee along with OnSite-InSite has created a criteria list in order to prioritize repairs and manage costs.  Both of the 
repairs identified use the wording, “replace to maintain service levels” as the criteria for replacement and are necessary to 
maintain this 70+ year old building. 
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0) and that the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, be 
authorized to borrow up to $65,000 pursuant to General laws Chapter 44, Section (7)9 or any other 
applicable statute; provided however, that this appropriation shall not take effect until the Town votes to 
exempt from the limitation on total taxes imposed by the General Laws Chapter 59 , Section 
21C(k)(Proposition 2 ½) the amounts required to pay the principal and interest on the bonds and notes 
authorized by this vote. 
 
ARTICLE 10.  TRANSFER FROM STABILIZATION – TREE CLEAN-UP 
To see if the Town will vote to transfer from the General Stabilization Fund, a sum of money, and if so, what sum, to take 
down, clean-up and/or remove dead or damaged trees; or take any other action relative thereto. 
(Select Board for Advisory Committee) 

 
Advisory Committee:  Over the past two years, the combination of drought and gypsy moth defoliation has decimated 
the tree population in Sherborn. The Tree Warden has marked and inventoried over 700 dead roadside trees in town. While 
Eversource has and will continue to remove those trees which threaten power lines, many hundreds more do not directly 
threaten power lines. Removing trees before they fall is obviously prudent, but also represents a more efficient use of funds 
as emergency removal of a tree which has fallen in the road typically costs two to three times as much as a planned removal. 
The recommendation is for transfer of $150,000, which is estimated to address only 10-15% of the dead roadside trees but 
is a reasonable scope of work over the course of the next fiscal year. Note that this amount supplements $50,000 in the 
CM&D operating budget for routine tree work. 
 
The General Stabilization Fund is roughly thought of as the town’s “rainy day fund.” Each year, Town Meeting typically 
votes to transfer some amount of money into the fund for unspecified future use. The purpose of the General Stabilization 
Fund is primarily as a source of funding for unforeseen and unexpected events or circumstances which need to be addressed 
with relative immediacy. The situation with the trees is a prime example of what the General Stabilization Fund is set up 
for. The fund currently has a balance of $713,000. 
 
We recommend favorable action and that $150,000 be transferred from the General Stabilization Fund to 
CM&D for the purpose of removal of dead roadside trees. (8-0) 
 



 

17 
 

ARTICLE 11. TREE CLEAN-UP 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, or transfer from available funds, a sum of money, and if so, what sum, 
to take down, clean-up and/or remove dead or damaged trees; or take any other action relative thereto. (Select Board for 
Advisory Committee) 
 
Advisory Committee: This Article is presented as a back-up plan should Article 10 fail since Article 10 requires a 2/3 
Vote at Town Meeting and this would require a simple majority. The justification for the dead tree removal is unchanged 
from the Article 10, but the source of funding would be a transfer from Free Cash rather than the General Stabilization Fund.  
 
If Article 10 passes, we recommend no action. 
 
If Article 10 fails, we recommend favorable action and that $150,000 be transferred from Free Cash to 
CM&D for the purpose of removal of dead roadside trees. (8-0) 

 
ARTICLE 12. USE OF FREE CASH  
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate from Free Cash a sum of money, and if so, what sum, to meet the appropriations 
for the ensuing fiscal year; and authorize the Assessors to use said sum in fixing the tax rate; or take any other action relative 
thereto. (Select Board for the Advisory Committee) 
 
Advisory Committee:  This article authorizes additional uses of Free Cash not otherwise specified in this warrant. The 
use specified here is an appropriation for next fiscal year.  
 
We recommend no action (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 13. ELECTRONIC VOTING 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available funds, a sum of money, and if so, what sum, 
for the purpose of purchasing, leasing, or lease/purchasing electronic voting equipment, such amount to supplement the 
FY2020 Elections and Registration Budget; or take any other action relative thereto. 
(Select Board for the Town Clerk and Town Moderator) 
 
Advisory Committee:  The electronic voting equipment is a modern widely used method which can maintain, preserves 
and enhance the foundation of our democratic process in Sherborn’s Town Meetings.  Electronic voting tools add efficiency, 
accuracy and integrity to the votes cast at Annual Town Meeting and Special Town Meetings.  The participants will have 
privacy and anonymity of the vote.   This system does not rely on the audible nature of the historic vocal system of Yeas 
and Nays as determined by the Moderator, hand count or paper ballot. The recommended means of financing the electronic 
voting is leasing the equipment due to the rapid change in technology and for cost effectiveness.  Efficiency, accuracy and 
privacy of electronic voting are the major reasons for support of this article.  The initial use in the 2019 Annual Town 
Meeting is at no charge to the Town.   
 
We recommend favorable action for the use of electronic voting.  (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 14. RECREATION REVOLVING FUNDTYPE 
To see if the Town will vote to: 
 

1. Rescind acceptance of M.G.L. Chapter 44, Section 53D, which established a Recreation and Park Services revolving 
fund;  

2. Establish, in accordance with M.G.L. Chapter 44, Section 53E ½, a new Parks and Recreation Revolving Fund by 
amending Chapter 28 of the General By-laws, Revolving Fund, by inserting the following new row (text to be 
inserted shown in bold) in the chart set forth in Section 1;  
 

Program or Purpose Authorized Representative 
or Board to Expend 

Department Receipts 

Parks and 
Recreation  

Recreation Commission Fees and receipts in connection 
with providing recreational 
programs and activities.  



 

18 
 

 
3. Transfer all funds in the existing revolving fund to the newly created fund; and,  

 
4. Establish a Fiscal Year 2020 spending limit for such revolving fund at $200,000;  

 
or take any other action relative thereto.  (Select Board for the Recreation Commission) 

 
Advisory Committee:  Currently, the Recreation Commission deposits receipts from operations into a Recreation and 
Park Services revolving fund established under General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53D. The Recreation Commission is self-
supporting, and its receipts are kept separate from all other monies of the Town’s treasurer. This section requires that the 
unreserved fund balance shall not exceed ten thousand dollars at the close of each fiscal year and any such amount in excess 
of ten thousand dollars shall be paid into the city or town treasury as provided in section fifty-three. This restriction prevents 
the Recreation Commission from conducting long-term planning or building up its reserves to address necessary 
maintenance projects. By rescinding the acceptance of General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53D and instead adopting General 
Laws Chapter 44, Section 53E ½, the $10,000 fund balance limit will be removed, and the Recreation Commission will be 
able to plan for and perform much needed long-term maintenance projects to preserve and enhance the Town’s recreational 
assets. In addition, Article 14 establishes a Fiscal Year spending limit of $200,000.  

 
We recommend favorable action (8-0). 

 
ARTICLE 15. AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
To see if the Town will vote to accept the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 44, Section 55C, establishing an Affordable Housing 
Trust Fund and creating a Board of Trustees; or take any other action relative thereto. 
(Select Board for Housing Partnership Committee) 

 
Advisory Committee:  Affordable housing has been a prominent and ongoing topic of discussion in Sherborn for the 
past several years, and the Town has taken several steps towards addressing the need for more affordable housing. First was 
the re-establishment of the Sherborn Housing Partnership in 2017, followed by the drafting and adoption of a Housing 
Production Plan in 2018. Establishment of an Affordable Housing Trust is the next logical step. Successful implementation 
of the Housing Production Plan will no doubt involve both private development projects as well as town-initiated projects. 
Any funds which are given to the Town for the purpose of developing Affordable Housing would need a vehicle to accept 
those funds. Currently, no such vehicle exists, and the Affordable Housing Trust would remedy that. The trust would be 
overseen by a Board of Trustees with minimum 5 members, and one member must be a sitting Select Board member. The 
Board of Trustees would have to comply with Open Meeting Laws, and the Trust would undergo annual audit. This Article 
simply establishes the Affordable Housing Trust and Board of Trustees, with no initial transfer of funds into the Trust itself. 

 
We recommend favorable action. (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 16. DEPARTMENT TITLE CHANGE:  COMMUNITY MAINTENANCE & DEVELOPMENT 
(CM&D) TO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (DPW) 
To see if the Town will vote to change the name of Community Maintenance & Development (CM&D) to the Department 
of Public Works (DPW), and further, to replace all references in the Town Bylaws to "Community Maintenance & 
Development" with "Department of Public Works" and all references in the Town Bylaws to "CM&D" with "DPW", 
including but not limited to, the following: 
 

Chapter 3, Section 6.2 (c); 
Chapter 11, Section 3; 
Chapter 11, Section 4; 
Chapter 16, Section 2 (three places); 
Chapter 21, Section 6(B)(1); 
Chapter 21, Section 6(B)(2); 
Personnel Administration Plan, Appendix A;   

 
or take any other action relative thereto.  (Select Board)  
 
Advisory Committee:  The Community Maintenance & Development Department came into being in the late 1980’s 
with the merging of several smaller work groups. CM&D is continually having to explain its name when applying for grants, 
submitting State required forms, and in other external communications because people outside of Sherborn assume with the 



 

19 
 

name ‘Community Maintenance and Development’ . . . that it is an organization engaged in community development. The 
Department of Public Works title is standard for the vast majority of towns and cities in the State. 
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 17. AMEND GENERAL BY-LAWS RE: RULES & PROCEDURES AT TOWN MEETING 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Chapter 2 of the General By-laws by inserting a new Section 8: 
 
Section 8.  The Town Clerk is authorized to assign appropriate numbers or letters to by-law sections, subsections, paragraphs 
and subparagraphs where none are approved by Town Meeting; if such numbering or lettering is approved by Town Meeting, 
to make non-substantive editorial revisions to the same to ensure consistent and appropriate sequencing and numbering; 
and, to make non-substantive editorial revisions to references regarding such numbering or lettering as contained within the 
by-laws to ensure accuracy and conformity.   
 
All such editorial revisions shall be identified with a footnote that describes the revision and the reason therefor; 
 
or take any action relative thereto.  (Select Board for the Town Clerk) 

 
Advisory Committee:  In the vast majority of cases, amendments to town by-laws are numbered and lettered clearly and 
consistently.  However, occasionally, it is obvious that that a numbering or lettering anomaly or error has occurred.  This 
article would allow the Town Clerk to correct any obvious anomalies or errors in such numbering or lettering. This is a best 
practice within Town governance and the implementation and adoption of Town By-Laws.   
 
We recommend favorable action.  (8-0) 
 
 ARTICLE 18. AMEND GENERAL BY-LAWS RE: BOW HUNTING 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Chapter 8, Section 1 of the General By-laws to include bow hunting by inserting the 
text set forth in bold italics, as follows: 
 

Chapter 8.   Hunting By-law (amended 2012) 
 

Section 1.  No person shall fire or discharge any firearms or explosives of any kind nor shall use bow and arrow 
where the arrow is equipped with a metal or other dangerous tip within the limits of any highway, park, or public 
property, or on any private property, except with the written consent of the owner or legal occupant thereof, which 
consent shall be dated not more than one year prior; provided, however, that this By-law shall not apply to the lawful 
defense of life or property, nor to any discharge of firearms in accordance with law. 

 
Section 2.  Any person violating any of the provisions of this By-Law shall be fined not more than fifty dollars 
($50.00) for each offense; 

  
or take any other action relative thereto.  (Select Board for the Police Department) 

 
Advisory Committee:  Article 18 is a minor technical change to include bow hunting in the Town’s existing Hunting By-
law which requires hunters to obtain written consent of property owners prior to firing or discharging firearms or explosives. 
This is a common-sense revision to the existing By-law that promotes public safety without unduly burdening hunters in 
our community.  
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0). 
 
ARTICLE 19. AMEND GENERAL BY-LAWS RE: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MANAGER 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Chapter 3, Section 6.2 of the General By-laws, Power and Duties of the Town 
Administrator, to add “information technology manager” to the Town Administrator’s existing responsibilities, and, for such 
purposes, to insert the following new subsection (h) and re-letter the remaining subsection accordingly: 
 

The Town Administrator, or the Town Administrator’s designee, shall serve as the Information Technology Manager 
for all Town departments, except the Schools and Library, with responsibility and authority to ensure information 



 

20 
 

technology connectivity between Town departments, promote information technology efficiency, and improve 
overall workflow;  

 
or take any action relative thereto.  (Select Board for the Governance Task Force II Committee) 
 
Advisory Committee: This is the first of four articles put forth by the Governance Task Force that was appointed by 
Town Moderator last year to study our Town governance structure and make recommendations for ways in which it might 
be improved.  This article would consolidate authority for the Town’s information technology management and procurement 
(other than at the schools and library) under the Town Administrator or his/her delegate.   
 
The Governance Task force noted multiple comments from Town department heads and other officials regarding difficulties 
or inefficiencies in obtaining reports or information from other departments.  In addition, the Town’s reliance on paper 
submission and records for various Town departments has resulted in multiple inefficient paper filing systems.  Where 
automation is in place, decentralized decision making has resulted in departments making independent decisions about 
which systems to implement, resulting in lost opportunities for centralized planning and related synergies and efficiencies. 
It is expected that implementation of this Article will position the Town to improve strategic IT planning and reduce costs 
by, for example, facilitating information exchange across departments, harmonizing, where possible, IT systems used by 
Town departments (and consequently reducing duplicative data entry), and  positioning the Town to develop a common 
database and single, unified portal for conducting Town business, which was overwhelmingly favored by respondents to the 
recent Governance Task Force survey.  Adoption of this article is also consistent with the recommendations for technology 
“best practices” made by the MA Department of Revenue back in 2011. 
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 20. AMEND GENERAL BY-LAWS RE: HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Chapter 3, Section 6.2 of the General By-laws: Power and Duties of the Town 
Administrator, to authorize the Town Administrator, acting as the Town’s Human Resources Director, to delegate to a 
qualified human resources professional, any or all of the functions specified in said Section 6.2(e), and for such purposes, 
to insert the bold italics, underlined text, as follows: 
  

The Town Administrator, or the Town Administrator’s designee, shall be the Town’s Human Resource Director and 
shall have the following authority regarding the management of Town employees, except for School employees and 
employees of the Board of Library Trustees….; 

 
or take any action relative thereto.  (Select Board for the Governance Task Force II Committee) 
 
Advisory Committee:  This is the second of four articles put forth by the Governance Task Force.  This article would 
enable the Town Administrator, acting as Human Resources Director, to delegate personnel-related functions to a qualified 
human resources professional when necessary or appropriate. 
 
While most human resources-related situations can be handled by the Town Administrator, who serves as the Town’s Human 
Resources Director, some situations may require or benefit from the expertise of a human resources specialist.  This article 
clarifies that when he or she deems it appropriate or necessary, the Town Administrator may delegate personnel-related 
functions (described in Chapter 3, Section 6.2 of the General By-laws) to a qualified human resources professional.   
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0).  We note that at the public hearing held on March 16th, 2019, it was 
noted that the language, as drafted in the current version of Article 20, requires some technical 
correction to achieve the desired effect, and it is Advisory’s understanding that corrected language will 
be presented for approval at Annual Town Meeting.   
 
ARTICLE 21. DESIGNATE TREASURER AS AN APPOINTED OFFICE 
To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 41, Section 1B, to make the elected office of Treasurer an appointed 
office, such office to be appointed by the Select Board for a term not to exceed three years; provided, however, that such 
change shall not take effect unless approved by the voters at the 2020 Annual Town Election, and further, that any incumbent 



 

21 
 

holding office at the time of acceptance will serve out the remainder of the elected term; or take any other action relative 
thereto.  (Select Board for the Governance Task Force II Committee) 
 
Advisory Committee:  This is the third of four articles put forth by the Governance Task Force.  This article would 
establish the position of Town Treasurer as an appointed, rather than elected position.   
 
The role of Treasurer is complex and requires a high degree of knowledge and skill.  Its responsibilities are extensively 
governed by laws and regulations with which the incumbent must be familiar.   We believe the best way to ensure that the 
role will be filled by a qualified candidate is through a thoroughly vetted hiring and appointment process.  If the role remains 
as an elected position, only Sherborn residents are eligible to run for the position.  This eliminates from consideration many 
qualified candidates who do not happen to live in Sherborn, as well as candidates who live in Sherborn but do not wish to 
run for elective office.    It also leaves the Town open to the risk that no fully qualified individual will choose to run for the 
position.   
 
Converting to an appointed Treasurer would allow closer monitoring of job performance.  Currently, an elected financial 
official can be removed if he or she (i) demonstrates a pattern of errors, omissions, negligence or dishonesty; or (ii) may 
have committed an act so egregious that the act may put the financial well-being of the town at great risk.  If an elected 
Treasurer’s performance is poor but does not rise to the level of failure described above, he or she can only be removed by 
the voters, at the ballot box, at the end of his or her three-year term – if voters are even aware of the individual’s poor 
performance.  With an appointed Treasurer, any performance issues may be addressed more promptly than the next election.   
 
Having an appointed Treasurer would also avoid the undesirable situation in which an Assistant Treasurer is trained at the 
Town’s expense, but (if he or she is not a Town resident) is ineligible to step into the Treasurer role when it becomes vacant.  
If the Treasurer is an elected official, an Assistant Treasurer who desires upward mobility but does not live in Sherborn 
would have no choice but to leave for a position in another town, taking with him or her the training and institutional 
knowledge that was acquired at the Town’s expense. 
 
Historically, those who have objected to an appointed Treasurer have cited the benefits of having the Treasurer be 
independent from other Town officials.  However, we note that the vast majority of working relationships in our society are 
created and maintained via hiring and vetting processes designed to select the most qualified candidate for the job.  Most 
employees – including those entrusted with financial responsibilities – are not elected to their roles.  We do not believe there 
are any unique circumstances with respect to the Town Treasurer position that would dictate a need to elect, rather than 
appoint, that individual.  On the contrary, we believe that an appointed Treasurer under the direction of the Town 
Administrator would allow for more effective establishment and coordination of goals and objectives for the office based 
on overall Town needs and priorities. 
 
Finally, we note that the MA Department of Revenue recommends an appointed Treasurer as a “best practice.”  In addition, 
of the ten similarly situated small towns in Middlesex County, seven have an appointed Treasurer (or combined 
Treasurer/Collector). 
 
We note that implementation of this Article would have no effect on the Town’s budget. 
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 22. ESTABLISH QUARTERLY TAX PAYMENT SYSTEM 
To see if the Town will vote to accept the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 59, Section 57C, for the purpose of establishing a 
quarterly tax payment system for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020, and continuing thereafter; or take any action 
relative thereto.  (Select Board for the Governance Task Force II Committee) 

 
Advisory Committee: This is the fourth of four articles put forth by the Governance Task Force.  This article would 
convert the current twice-yearly real estate tax collections to a quarterly system.   
 
Quarterly billing will allow the Town to experience smoother cash flow, particularly at the beginning of the fiscal year, 
when a disproportionate number of town expenses come due.   The Town will enjoy receipt of approximately one-quarter 



 

22 
 

of its revenues three months earlier in the fall, and another quarter of its revenues three months earlier in the winter.  As a 
result, 1) the Town will receive six additional months’ worth of investment income (approximately $100,000, assuming a 
2-3% short term interest rate) and 2) there will be a substantial reduction in the likelihood that the Town will need to engage 
in costly short-term borrowing to cover expenses prior to receipt of tax revenues.    
 
Of course, if the Town receives tax revenues earlier, then citizens will obviously be paying their taxes earlier.  A taxpayer 
might question why it is in his or her best interest to forego short-term investment income in favor of the Town.   In response 
to that potential concern, we note the following:  More than half of Town residents who responded to the recent Governance 
Task Force survey indicated that their taxes are paid from a mortgage escrow.  Since funds in escrow typically do not pay 
interest to the homeowner, implementation of quarterly billing has no negative effect to taxpayers who pay via escrow.  It 
simply ensures that the Town, not the escrow company, will receive the benefit of the investment income on the escrowed 
funds.  For those taxpayers who do not pay via escrow, we believe that the reduction in the tax rate resulting from the Town’s 
increased investment income and reduction in possible short-term borrowing costs would likely offset any short-term 
investment income an individual taxpayer would forego as a result of earlier tax payments.   
 
Quarterly billing will not necessarily increase costs to the Town.  The Town could continue to do just two tax bill mailings 
per year and include two payment coupons in each mailing.   
 
Quarterly billing also will allow for better coordination with other Town departments, particularly the Assessors.  Since, 
under a quarterly tax billing system, the first two tax payments (due on August 1 and November 1), are based on preliminary, 
estimated property assessments, property assessments will not need to be finalized by the date of the first tax bill, as is 
currently the case.  The Assessors will be afforded additional time to complete their work and ensure its accuracy.  
 
The Governance Task Force recognizes that some residents, especially those who tend to have seasonal income, may need 
time to plan for a new quarterly billing system. Therefore, implementation of the new billing system, if approved, would be 
deferred for a year until FY 2021 to allow both the affected Town Departments and Sherborn citizens to make suitable 
preparations. 
 
It should be noted that if the Town were to implement quarterly billing, nothing would prevent the Town from reverting to 
a semiannual system if unanticipated problems make the quarterly system unworkable. 
 
Experts who have studied the issue, including the MA Department of Revenue and the UMass Boston Collins Center, 
uniformly have recommended adoption of quarterly billing.  In addition, quarterly tax billing is a best practice of similarly-
situated Massachusetts towns.  Of the ten smallest towns in Middlesex County, all but Sherborn utilize quarterly billing, 
and 85% of the 351 cities and towns of the Commonwealth utilize quarterly billing. 
 
We recommend favorable action (7-1) 

 
ARTICLE 23. AMEND GENERAL BY-LAWS RE: ILLICIT DISCHARGES 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Chapter 25 of the General By-laws, Comprehensive Stormwater Management, by 
inserting a provision addressing illicit discharges to the stormwater management system, with text to be inserted shown in 
bold underline and text to be deleted shown in strikethrough type, as follows: 

 
CHAPTER 25. Comprehensive Stormwater Management By-law (Added 2011) 

 
Section 1: Authority 

 
This By-law is adopted under authority granted by the Home Rule Amendment of the Massachusetts Constitution, the Home 
Rule statutes and pursuant to the regulations of the federal Clean Water Act found at 40 CFR 122.34. 
Section 2: Purpose 

 
The purpose of this By-law is to regulate discharges to the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) to protect the 
Town of Sherborn’s water bodies and groundwater and to safeguard the public health, safety, welfare and the environment. 
Increased and contaminated stormwater runoff associated with construction sites, developed land uses and the 
accompanying increase in impervious surface are major causes of impairment of water quality and flow in lakes, ponds, 
streams, rivers, wetlands and groundwater. This purpose is accomplished through the following: 



 

23 
 

2.1 Institute water resource protection measures identified in the Supplemental Final Comprehensive Water Resource 
Management Plan / Environmental Impact Report - Commonwealth of Massachusetts EOEA File Number 8844 (CWRMP); 
 
2.2 Protect groundwater and surface water from degradation;  
 
2.3 Promote groundwater recharge;  
 
2.4 Require practices to control the flow of stormwater from new and redeveloped sites into the Town storm drainage 
system in order to prevent flooding and erosion;  
 
2.5  Require practices that eliminate soil erosion and sedimentation and control the volume and rate of stormwater runoff 
resulting from land disturbance activities;  
 
2.6  Prevent pollutants from entering the Town’s Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) and minimize 
discharge of pollutants from the MS4;  
 
2.7  Ensure that soil erosion and sedimentation control measures and stormwater runoff control practices are 
incorporated into the site planning and design process and are implemented and maintained;  
 
2.8 Ensure adequate long-term operation and maintenance of structural stormwater best management practices so that they 
work as designed;  

 
2.9 Comply with state and federal statutes and regulations relating to stormwater discharges; and, 
 
2.10  Establish the Town’s legal authority to ensure compliance with the provisions of this By-law through inspection, 
monitoring, and enforcement. 
  
Nothing in this By-law is intended to replace the requirements of the Town of Sherborn Zoning By-law, General By-laws, 
or any other By-law that may be adopted by the Town of Sherborn.  Any activity subject to the provisions of the above-cited 
By-laws must comply with the specifications of each. 
 
Section 3: Definitions 
 
Except as listed below, words, all terms, abbreviations and acronyms that appear in this bylaw and are also defined 
in Appendix A of the Final 2016 Massachusetts Small MS4 General Permit (“Appendix A”) signed April 4, 2016 with 
an effective date of July 1, 2017, (MS4 General Permit) or as most recently amended, shall be construed to have the 
meaning presented in Appendix A. 
 
Illicit Connection -- A surface or subsurface drain or conveyance, which allows an illicit discharge into the municipal 
storm drain system, including without limitation sewage, process wastewater, or wash water and any connections 
from indoor drains, sinks, or toilets, regardless of whether said connection was previously allowed or approved before 
the effective date of this Bylaw. 
 
Any other Ddefinitions that apply in the interpretation and implementation of this By-law shall be included as part of any 
Stormwater Regulations promulgated as permitted under Section 5.2 of this By-law. 
 
Section 4: Applicability 
 
4.1 Illicit Discharges - The following activities are prohibited:  
 
Illicit Discharges – No person shall dump, discharge, cause or allow to be discharged any pollutant, unauthorized 
stormwater or non-stormwater discharge into the municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4) and/or Town right-
of-way. 

 



 

24 
 

a. Illicit Connections – No person shall construct, use, allow, maintain or continue any illicit connection to 
the municipal separate storm sewer system, regardless of whether the connection was permissible under 
applicable law, regulation or custom at the time of connection. 

 
b. Obstruction of MS4 – No person shall obstruct or interfere with the normal flow of storm water into or 

out of the MS4 without prior written approval from the Director of Community Maintenance and 
Development (CM & D). 

 
c. Yard Wastes – No person shall dump or dispose of yard waste (leaves, grass clippings, etc.) into the MS4, 

or into catch basins, retention/detention basins or any other component of a stormwater management 
system which discharges to the MS4. 

 
4.2 Permitted Non-Stormwater Discharges  

 
A limited category of non-stormwater discharges are only allowed with a permit from the Director of CM&D. Such 
permits may be granted only following an examination of potential alternatives and a finding by the Director that 
there is no viable alternative. These categories are: 

 
a. Uncontaminated pumped ground water 
b. Foundation drains 
c. Water from crawl space pumps 
d. Footing drains 
 

4.3. Prohibited Non-Stormwater Discharges 
 

The following non-stormwater discharges are strictly prohibited: 
 

a. De-chlorinated swimming pool discharges 
b. Discharging water from any source into the street 

 
4.4 Land Disturbance 

 
No person shall undertake construction activity that requires (a) Planning Board review (including new subdivisions, special 
permits for multi-family development, and site plan review for new commercial/industrial development or redevelopment), 
(b) a Building Permit (such as new single family residential development or redevelopment), or (c) utility line work, AND 
if the activity will disturb or alter one acre or more of land, either initially or as part of a common plan for development that 
will disturb or alter one acre or more of land, without obtaining a Stormwater Management Permit (SMP) from the Planning 
Board. 

 
Any activity that is subject to Site Plan Review or the Subdivision Control Law or requires a Special Permit from the 
Planning Board per the Sherborn Zoning By-law shall be eligible for an SMP to be reviewed and granted as a component 
of such other permitting process. 

 
4.25  Exemptions 
 
The following activities shall be exempt from the requirement for an SMP: 
 
4.25.1 Normal maintenance and improvement of land in agricultural use as defined by M.G.L. Chapter 128, Section 1A. 
 
4.25.2 Maintenance of existing landscaping, gardens or lawn areas. 
 
4.25.3 Creating impervious area consisting of a previously existing unpaved driveway for a single family dwelling, or 
expansion of an existing paved driveway for a single family dwelling. 
 
4.25.4 The construction of fencing that will not alter existing terrain or drainage patterns. 
 
4.25.5 Construction or maintenance and repair of utility service lines (gas, water, electric, telephone, fire alarms, etc.) other 
than drainage lines or systems, which will not alter terrain, ground cover, or drainage patterns. 
 



 

25 
 

4.25.6 Emergency repairs to any stormwater management facility. 
 
4.25.7 Any work or projects for which all necessary approvals and permits, including building permits, have been issued 
before the effective date of this By-law. 
 
4.25.8 Construction of items normally appurtenant to residential uses, such as decks; patios; walkways; fruit, vegetable, 
or flower gardens; driveways; sheds; swimming pools; and tennis or basketball courts. 
 
4.25.9 Repair or replacement of septic systems. 
 
4.25.10 Any construction activity or project wholly within the jurisdiction of the Conservation Commission provided that 
an Order of Conditions has been issued by the Conservation Commission. 
 
Section 5: Administration 

 
5.1 The Planning Board shall administer and implement this By-law, other than Sections 4.1-4.3 and 6.2, relative to 
illicit discharges, which sections shall be administered by Community Maintenance and Development (CM&D). 

 
5.2 Rules And Regulations - The Planning Board and CM&D may adopt, and periodically amend, Rules and Regulations 
relating to the terms, performance standards, conditions, definitions, enforcement, fees (including application, inspection, 
and/or consultant fees), procedures and administration of this Comprehensive Stormwater Management By-law by majority 
vote of the Planning Board, after conducting a public hearing to receive comments on any proposed Rules and Regulations or 
revisions thereto. Such hearing dates shall be advertised in a newspaper of general local circulation, at least seven days prior 
to the hearing date. After public notice and public hearing, the Planning Board may promulgate Rules and Regulations to 
effectuate the purposes of this By-law. Failure by the Planning Board to promulgate such Rules and Regulations or a legal 
declaration of their invalidity by a court shall not act to suspend or invalidate the effect of this By-law. 

 
5.3  Stormwater Management Handbook - The Planning Board will utilize the policy, criteria and information 
including specifications and standards of the latest edition of the Massachusetts Stormwater Management Standards and 
Handbook for execution of the provisions of this By-law. This Handbook includes a list of acceptable stormwater treatment 
practices, including the specific design criteria for each stormwater practice. The standards and handbook may be updated 
and expanded periodically, based on improvements in engineering, science, monitoring, and local maintenance experience. 
 
5.4 Actions - The Planning Board may take any of the following actions as a result of an application for a Stormwater 
Management Permit as more specifically defined as part of Stormwater Regulations promulgated as a result of this By-law: 
Approval, Approval with Conditions, or Disapproval. 

 
5.5 Appeals Of Actions - A decision of the Planning Board shall be final. A decision by the Planning Board made under 
this Section 24 shall be reviewable in the Superior Court in an action in the nature of certiorari filed within 60 days thereof, 
in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws chapter 249 Section 4. 

 
5.6  Permits And Procedures - Permit Procedures and Requirements shall be defined and included as part of any Rules 
and Regulations promulgated as permitted under Section 5.2 of this By-law. 

 
5.7  Water Resources Mitigation Fund - The Planning Board may allow the applicant to contribute to the Town of 
Sherborn Water Resources Mitigation Fund where it has been demonstrated that there are not sufficient conditions for onsite 
stormwater best management practices in order to meet the Performance Standards as described in the Regulations 
promulgated under this By-law. Funds may be used to design and construct stormwater projects that will improve the quality 
and quantity of surface waters in Sherborn by treating and recharging storm water from existing impervious surfaces that is 
now discharged to said waters with inadequate treatment or recharge.  The amount of the contribution to the fund shall be 
determined by the Planning Board. 

 
Section 6:  Enforcement. 

 
6.1  Land Disturbance 
 
6.1.1  The Building Inspector and the Police shall be the enforcement agents. When the Planning Board or its enforcing 
agent determines that an activity is not being carried out in accordance with the requirements of this Chapter, Stormwater 



 

26 
 

Regulations or an SMP, the agent shall issue a written notice of violation to the owner of the property. Persons receiving a 
notice of violation may be required to: 
 
6.1.2 Halt all construction activities until there is compliance. A “stop work order” will be in effect until the Planning 
Board or its agent confirms that the activity is in compliance and the violation has been satisfactorily addressed. 
 
6.1.3 Maintain, install or perform additional erosion and sedimentation control  measures; 
 
6.1.4 Monitor, analyze and report to the Planning Board regarding progress in  addressing activities cited in a notice of 
violation; 
 
6.1.5 Remediate erosion and sedimentation resulting directly or indirectly from the activity. 
 
6.1.6 Failure to comply with a notice of violation in the time specified therein constitutes a violation of this By-law and 
may result in penalties in accordance with the enforcement measures authorized in this Chapter. 
 
6.2 Illicit Discharges 
 
6.2.1  The CM&D Director or his designee shall be the enforcement agent for illicit discharges 
 
6.2.2 Penalty. Any person who violates any provision of this Chapter, Regulations, or SMP’s or violation notices issued 
thereunder, may be punished by a fine of not more than $250.00. Each day or part thereof that such violation occurs or 
continues shall constitute a separate offense, and each provision of the Chapter, Regulations or SMP violated, shall constitute 
a separate offense. 
 
6.2.3 Non-Criminal Disposition. As an alternative to the penalty in Section 6.2, the enforcing authority may elect to utilize 
the non-criminal disposition procedure set forth in Chapter 16, Section 2 of the General Bylaws of the Town of Sherborn. 
Each day or part thereof that such violation occurs or continues shall constitute a separate offense, and each provision of this 
Chapter, Regulation or permit violated shall constitute a separate offense. The penalty for non-criminal disposition shall be 
$200.00 per violation. 
 
Section 7 Severability 
 
If any provision, paragraph, sentence, or clause of this By-law shall be held invalid for any reason, all other provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect; 
 
or take any other action relative thereto.  (Select Board for CM&D) 
 
Advisory Committee: This article amends Chapter 25 of the Town’s General By-laws, Comprehensive Stormwater 
Management, by inserting provisions addressing illicit discharges to the stormwater management system. It brings the 
Town’s By-laws up-to-date with State regulations on stormwater that were finalized in 2016. 
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 24. AMEND ZONING BY-LAWS RE: ACCESSORY APARTMENT 
To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 3.2 (2) of the Zoning By-law as follows, with insertions shown in bold 
underline and deletions are shown in strikethrough type, as follows: 
 
2) Apartment - This use is permissive in all districts. 
a)  Single family detached dwelling, together with accessory buildings, containing in the dwelling or in an existing 
accessory building as of April 24, 2018 one additional housekeeping unit provided: 
 
 1(a). Such unit shall be occupied by not more than three persons; and  
 
 1(b).  The owner(s) of the premises shall live in either such unit or the primary dwelling unit; 
 
 2. The special permit granting authority shall be satisfied that, upon the termination or expiration of the special 

permit, the facilities of such unit can readily be removed or, alternatively, reintegrated with the dwelling to produce 
an allowed use of the property under Section 3; 



 

27 
 

 
 3. The gross floor area of such unit shall not exceed 1200 square feet; 
 
 4. Any special permit granted shall specify that the external character of the premises shall be that of a single 

family residence; 
 
 5. The installation of such unit and any use thereof shall be permitted only upon the issuance of a special permit 

by the special permit granting authority in compliance with the procedures set forth in Section 6; 
 
 6. The applicant for a special permit for such unit shall file with the special permit granting authority such plans, 

specifications and other instruments concerning the proposed unit and the subsequent use thereof as the special 
permit granting authority may reasonably require by general rule or by request to the applicant; 

 
 7. No special permit for a unit shall be issued for a period of more than two four years but may be renewable 

for like periods thereafter in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 6; such special permit shall 
automatically terminate upon the sale, transfer, or other change in ownership of the property of which such 
unit forms a part. 

 
8. Such unit may not be rented to any single party or licensed for occupancy for periods terms of less than 30 
days, whether through Airbnb or similar service or directly by or on behalf of the owner.  The intent of this 
article is to increase the diversity of housing stock in the Town that is available for people who want to reside 
in Sherborn; 

 
or take any other action relative thereto.  (Select Board for the Planning Board) 
 
Advisory Committee: This article proposes changes to the existing accessory apartment Zoning by-law.  The new 
changes remove the date restriction of April 24, 2018 and existing accessory building from the current by-law and allow for 
the unit to be occupied by more than three persons.  The article will continue to allow the Owner of the premises to build 
one additional unit, to rent to persons who are not related to the Owner by blood, marriage or adoption.  The gross square 
footage of the dwelling is limited to 1,200 square feet and the length of the special permit has been increased from 2 years 
to 4 years.  These changes will allow Sherborn seniors the opportunity to age in place and stay in Sherborn as well as allow 
all property Owners the opportunity to generate revenue to offset their tax liability. 
 
We recommend favorable action contingent upon the removal of the terminology that requires the permit 
to be terminated upon the property transfer of ownership (7-1) 
 
ARTICLE 25. AUTHORIZATION TO ACQUIRE CSX PROPERTY:  RAIL TRAIL 
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to acquire the CSX property from the vicinity of Whitney Street 
north to the Framingham town line (Assessors Map 1, Parcel 32)  and convert it to a rail trail, contingent on using 
Environmental Bond Bill funds and potential donations and grants; or take any other action relative thereto. (Select Board 
for the Planning Board) 
 
Advisory Committee: The Advisory Committee recognizes the benefit of this article to the town in potentially connecting 
to the regional rail trail circuit.  The conversion of this unused outdoor space into recreational and connecting trailways will 
add value to the town and benefit residents seeking outdoor activities.  The opportunity to acquire CSX property to continue 
the upper Charles River rail trail will be funded by a previously approved Environmental Bond Bill. The subject property 
was only recently offered by CSX to Sherborn. This section will augment a regional rail trail that will eventually be a 22 
mile trail that routes through Sherborn and neighboring towns. Framingham is also working to convert CSX property within 
their town.  This combined connection upon Framingham’s completion will also connect to the Bay Circuit Trail within the 
Town of Sherborn and add connectivity to public transportation, specifically the commuter rail, without need for a motorized 
vehicle for the first time in the history of Sherborn barring the horse and buggy of bygone eras. The funding of this article 
is through an existing Environmental Bond Bill submitted and authorized by the Commonwealth and not yet allocated.  No 
additional tax dollars will be needed to cover the cost of this purchase.   
 
We recommend favorable action to authorize the Select Board to acquire the CSX property.  (8-0) 
 



 

28 
 

ARTICLE 26. CITIZEN PETITION RE: NEW POSITION OF SUSTAINABILITY COORDINATOR 
To see if the Town will vote, pursuant to Chapter 3, Sec. 11 of its General Bylaws, to direct the Select Board to create the 
Regular Part-Time position of Sustainability Coordinator and appoint a Sustainability Coordinator; and, further, to raise and 
appropriate or transfer from available funds appropriate compensation for this position.  The Select Board shall fix the 
Sustainability Coordinator’s compensation in a manner consistent with the Personnel Bylaw and related plan and within the 
amount annually appropriated for that purpose. 
 
The Select Board shall appoint a Sustainability Coordinator solely on the basis of his/her executive and administrative 
qualifications.  He/She shall be a professionally qualified person of proven ability, especially fitted by education, training 
and previous experience to perform the duties of the office.  He/She shall not have served in an elective office in the Town’s 
government for at least twelve months prior to appointment. 
 
Powers and Duties of the Sustainability Coordinator 

(a) He/She shall report to the Town Administrator and coordinate with the Town Planner and Director of Community 
Maintenance and Development on day-to-day operations 

(b) He/She shall prepare, develop and submit Green communities Competitive Grant applications and shall 
aggressively seek out, prepare, develop and submit application for any other applicable grants and any other funding 
for energy conservation measures 

(c) He/She shall research, develop and implement proposals for municipal and residential energy cost savings initiatives 
(d) He/She shall assist the Community Maintenance and Development Department and the Town Planner in any 

implementation of energy conservation measures or upgrades on all projects 
(e) He/She shall develop and implement outreach and communication strategies to engage Town staff, businesses and 

residents related to climate, energy and sustainability 
(f) He/She shall develop and implement mechanisms to measure and track progress in achieving sustainability goals 
(g) He/She shall perform all other related duties as required 

Removal or Suspension of the Sustainability Coordinator 
The Select Board may terminate, remove or suspend the Sustainability Coordinator in accordance with the Town’s Personnel 
By-law. 
 
(Citizen Petition: D. DeMauro and ten others) 
 
Advisory Committee: Town officials do not have the time or expertise to research and apply for all the energy 
conservation grants and incentives available to the Town. By approving Article 26, the Town will allow the Select Board to 
appoint a Sustainability Coordinator to pursue a wide range of funding for the Town, reduce energy costs, and track the 
Town’s energy usage. The Sustainability Coordinator will also partner with Town officials to achieve energy reduction goals, 
run public forms, and host educational events. Furthermore, the Sustainability Coordinator will assist businesses and 
residents in their efforts to reduce energy usage and costs.  
 
We recommend favorable action (8-0). 
 
ARTICLE 27. CITIZEN PETITION RE: TRANSPARENCY IN EXCLUDING DEBT FROM PROP 2 ½ 
LIMITS AND BUNDLING OF CAPITAL PROJECTS 
A1.  Amend the General By-laws by adding new Chapter XX as follows: 

 
Chapter 31:  FINANCIAL TRANSPARENCY WHEN INCREASING THE TOWN’S INDEBTEDNESS 

 
Section 1.   Purpose 

 
The purpose of this by-law is to establish financial disclosure requirements in the Advisory Town Meeting report and the 
provision of a financial disclosure statement at each polling place when a debt exclusion vote is held, pursuant to General 
Laws, Chapter 59, Section 21C(k) (Proposition 2 ½).  This by-law limits the tax exclusion to a defined maximum dollar 
value disclosed in the warrant article seeking approval for the capital item. 

 
Section 2.  Bundling of Capital purchases into a single warrant article vote 
 



 

29 
 

All town capital purchases of at least $50,000, or requests to renovate or expand a specific town structure or building costing 
at least $50,000, shall require a discrete vote by the local appropriating authority.  If a bundle of capital purchases for a 
specific town department exceeds $50,000, the items should be segregated into two or more warrant votes, and the method 
of allocation be disclosed in the warrant article.  Investment in communications and/or information technology capital 
purchases shall not be bundled with other capital votes for either equipment or building renovation or building expansion 
purposes.  Communication and/or information technology purchases that are integrated and will support multiple 
departments may be bundled into a single vote.  Investment in energy generation equipment, including long-term leasing 
obligations on a net-usage charge basis, shall not be bundled with other capital articles.   
 
If total payment by the town for the capital purchase or building project will be reduced by any other sources of funds, either 
obtained through a grant from another governmental agency, foundation, or other independent entity, the maximum 
obligation the town is subject to should be clearly disclosed. 
 
This by-law shall also apply to capital purchases by a regional governmental unit subject to approval by the local 
appropriating authority. 
 
Section 3.  Disclosure of Financial Impact of Excluding Debt from Chapter 59, Section 21C (Prop 2½) Limits 
 
The Treasurer shall provide financial estimates of the taxation impact for any proposed capital expenditure that invokes 
General Laws, Chapter 59, Section 21C(k) (Proposition 2½).  This disclosure would include: (A) the maximum annual 
expenditure in debt service to pay principal and interest on all forms of indebtedness, using the prevailing long-term 
municipal bond rate as of March 1 in the year approval is sought; (B) the increase to the town’s property tax mil rate using 
the maximum annual debt service expenditure, divided by the most recent assessed value of all properties in town subject 
to taxation; (C) the increase in the annual tax bill for the Average Single Family Home Value in the town of Sherborn using 
the most recently published value by the Massachusetts  
 
Department of Revenue, Division of Local Services, derived using the change in the town’s property tax mil rate as disclosed 
in (B). 
 
This disclosure shall also apply to the town of Sherborn’s apportioned share of principal and interest on any debt obligations 
issued by a regional governmental unit. Advisory shall include this disclosure with the warrant article that seeks 
authorization for the capital item. 
 
Section 4.  Maximum amount of exclusion from taxation to service principal and interest on any debt obligation issued 
 
The amount of taxation excluded from General Laws, Chapter 59 Section 21C (Proposition 2 ½) shall not exceed the amount 
disclosed in the town meeting report prepared by the Advisory Committee.  If the maximum amount of taxation is dependent 
upon funds received from third-parties, this shall be disclosed and the maximum amount shall be included in all disclosure 
statements defined in this section of the town’s by-laws. 
 
Section 5.  When multiple warrant articles are proposed subject to General Laws, Chapter 59 Section 21C (Proposition 2 
½) 
 
The Advisory committee shall include a summary financial schedule in their town meeting report that itemizes the 
disclosures in Section 2.  The financial schedule shall include a total value calculated for the items defined in Section 2, as 
if all capital warrant articles were approved.   
 
Section 6.  Provision for financial disclosure at each town polling place 
 
The presiding election officer at each polling place shall post the financial disclosures for each warrant article approved at 
town meeting subject to General Laws, Chapter 59 Section 21C (Proposition 2 ½) and the summary schedule if required in 
Section 5.  A copy of this financial disclosure shall be made available to each registered voter when they are provided an 
official ballot.   
 
(Citizen Petition: Michael C. Lee and sixteen others) 
 



 

30 
 

Advisory Committee: The Advisory Committee fully supports clear disclosure of the financial impacts of capital projects 
and purchases.  However, this article adds onerous or unworkable conditions to an already rigorous approval process for 
capital items.  As a point of reference, information about the capital requests in this year’s Warrant is provided in the Report 
of the Town Capital Budget Committee appended to this document, and information about the potential impact of these 
requests on the Tax Rate and the bill for an average home is presented at the top of this Report. 
 
We recommend no action (8-0) 
 
ARTICLE 28. CITIZEN PETITION RE: TRANSPARENCY IN THE INCURSION OF ADDITIONAL 
UNFUNDED LIABILITIES 
This article would amend Chapter 31, if previously voted for approval at the same town meeting.  If the previous article 
fails, this warrant article would establish Chapter 31 By-Law. 
 
A1.  Amend the General by-laws to modify (add a new) Chapter 31 as follows: 
 
Add to Section 1.  “The town shall also not increase its net pension liability without provision to amortize the increased 
liability.  The town’s appropriating authority may seek voter approval to suspend this amortization provision subject to the 
provisions of this by-law.” 
 
“Section 7 (or 2).  The town shall not permanently increase its net pension liability for town employees higher than 
$10,736,551.  If the town reports an increase in the net pension liability for town employees, using the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the amount in excess of $10,736,551 should be equally 
amortized in the second through fifth fiscal years following the date of the financial statement.  The amortization payments 
should be made to the Middlesex County Retirement System, or to any successor agent designated to administer the town’s 
public employee retirement system.  
 
Section 8 (or 3).  If the net pension liability declines in a subsequent reporting period, the Advisory Committee may replace 
the existing amortization schedule with a revised schedule.  The revised equal amortization payments would be due in the 
second through fifth fiscal years following the date of the financial statement.  If the net pension liability is lower than 
$10,736,551, no amortization payments would be required. 
 
Section 9 (or 4).  If the net pension liability increases above the value used to calculate the existing amortization schedule, 
the new net liability value shall be used to calculate the equal amortization payments.  This revised set of payments are due 
in the second through fifth fiscal years following the date of the financial disclosure, payable to the Middlesex County 
Retirement System or its successors. 
 
Section 10 (or 5).  The local appropriating authority of the town may seek voter approval to suspend an amortization 
payment for the following fiscal year.  To suspend a payment, a warrant article would be placed on the town warrant that 
includes the approval of the town’s annual budget, subject to approval by a majority of the Select Board.  The local 
appropriating authority, by two-thirds vote, may seek voter approval at a regular or special election to suspend of the 
amortization schedule for the next fiscal year, provided the question submitted shall be as follows: 
 
‘Shall the town of Sherborn suspend amortization of the net pension liability in excess of our maximum liability of 
$10,736,551 set by town by-law, for the following fiscal year?’ 
 
Section 11 (or 6).  If a warrant article seeking suspension is proposed for town meeting, Advisory committee shall be 
required to include in their report the following financial disclosures:  (A) the current net pension liability, the town’s net 
pension liability as of January 1, 2006; and the change in the town’s net pension liability since January 1, 2006; (B) the most 
recent annual increase or decrease, in total pension liability, total pension assets, net pension liability, and pension funding 
ratio; (C) a comparison of the town’s pension funding ratio to other demographically similar Massachusetts suburban 
communities that independently manage a public employee retirement system; (D) a ten year trend in the town’s net OPEB 
liability and current funding ratio; (E) a schedule summarizing the most recent financial report detailing the town’s total 
long-term liabilities, including the calculation of the total long-term liability; (F) a calculation of the total long-term liability 
on a per-Sherborn household basis, as defined in the most recent United States Census. 
 



 

31 
 

Section 12 (or 7).  Provision for financial disclosure at each town polling place.   
 
The presiding election officer at each polling place shall post the financial disclosures for the warrant article approved at 
town meeting seeking to suspend an amortization payment.  A copy of this financial disclosure shall be made available to 
each registered voter when they are provided an official ballot.” 
 
(Citizen Petition: Michael C. Lee and seventeen others) 
 
Advisory Committee: This article proposes an amendment to the General By-laws that will prevent the town from 
incurring a permanent increase to the pension liability for town employees higher than the current level of $10,736,551.  
Although the intent behind the article is noble, it is not fiscally responsible because it sets a ceiling for the employee pension 
debt.  The town funds its employee pension costs annually in accordance with state regulations and the annual actuarial 
valuation results, which cost $1,031,000 in FY 2019.  This ceiling would require Advisory to move annual operating budget 
dollars away from town departments in order to cover any increase in the pension liability each year.  This would put an 
undue strain on department budget makers who are already being asked to make budget cuts to their FY 20 budgets.   
 
We recommend no action (8-0) 
 
  



 

32 
 

Capital Budget Committee Report, April 2019 
Joe Shanahan (Chair), Kecia Lifton, Jeff Waldron 
 
Introduction and context - The duties of the Capital Budget Committee are articulated in Chapter 6 of the Sherborn’s 
General By-laws.  The Committee, appointed by the Town Moderator, “…shall consider all matters relating to proposed 
expenditures of money for capital improvements and may make recommendations to the Town and all Town Boards, 
Officers and Committees with reference to such expenditures.”  The By-laws go on to define a capital improvement as “…a 
physical betterment or item of equipment having a useful life, of at least five years, and a cost of ten thousand dollars 
($10,000.00) or more.”  
 
Our charge is to evaluate each request that meets this criteria for its individual merit, regardless of its source of funding.  
The Committee considers capital items, as defined in the By-laws, regardless of whether they are to be funded with exempt 
debt, non-exempt debt, operating funds, or free cash. In addition, the Committee does not rank individual requests against 
each other, against other noncapital funding requests, or in the context of Town priorities in any given year. We provide the 
Sherborn Advisory Committee with an evaluation on the individual merit of each request based on the criteria below.  
 
Each request must meet at least one of the following criteria: 

x Corrects a threat to health and safety 
x Improves the asset to avoid costly repair 
x Replaces an asset to maintain service levels 
x Enables an asset to meet a legal requirement 
x Improves productivity, efficiency or service levels significantly 
x Addresses an overburdened situation 

 
It is important to note that, in any given year, the Town can choose to defer needed capital expenditures.  However, the 
needs that those expenditures address do not then disappear, and in some cases, a delay can result in additional operating 
costs and higher capital costs in the future.   
 
The Capital Budget Committee takes a long-term view of the Town’s needs to maintain and enhance infrastructure and to 
smooth capital expenditures over time. We encourage all capital requesters to develop 5- and 10-year capital plans in a 
consistent and measurable framework.  Also, because Pine Hill, the Regional Schools, and Town Buildings have obtained 
capital needs assessment reports from an outside consultant, these capital needs are well documented and foreseeable.  The 
Committee encourages these entities to update their reports approximately every five years. 
 
Process - As part of our process, we ask capital project sponsors to justify their request with a thorough explanation within 
the context of the criteria above and to provide detailed background materials, photos, and engineering plans as available. 
We require three quotes for anything costing between $10,000 and $50,000 or, for items costing more than $50,000, there 
needs to be an official bid process. The only exceptions are if the capital purchase will be procured through the state contract 
system or another approved bulk purchasing process. Whenever possible, we like to see qualified third-party evaluations 
and recommendations regarding remaining useful life and expected replacement time.  Finally, all sponsors must meet with 
the Committee to present their case. 
 
As further protection of the taxpayers, all expenditures approved by Town Meeting are supervised by the Town 
Administrator in his/her role as Chief Procurement Officer. 
 
Overview of FY2020 capital requests - The major capital requests in FY2020 include requests from the Pine Hill 
School, Fire Department, CM&D and Town Buildings.  Pine Hill School is requesting a total of $65,000 to replace worn 
and old flooring in the kindergarten classroom, common areas and library, which includes labor to remove and replace 
furniture and books.   
 
The Fire Department is requesting a total of $73,000 for Breathing Support Equipment required by OSHA and currently not 
in compliance.  This is a safety issue for our town Firefighters and was recently identified as such during a self inspection 
for OSHA compliance. 
 
CM&D is requesting a total of $304,695, which includes the replacement of three (3) fleet vehicles, material processing and 
other equipment necessary for road repair, clearance and treatment, as well as fallen tree or limb removal.  The largest item 



 

33 
 

is the replacement of a 25 year old tractor ($75,100) that has limited use and requires replacing.  The two other fleet vehicles 
are pickup trucks which have over 100,000 miles and are experiencing maintenance concerns such as rot in the bed of the 
truck.  Additionally, CM&D is requesting a tow behind blower and water tank/brine sprayer for road clearance and treatment.  
The total for the trucks and associated equipment is $111,295.  Finally CM&D is requesting an air compressor and 
jackhammers ($22,300), equipment over 40 years old requiring replacement for road repairs.   
 
Town Buildings is requesting a total of $300,000 for multiple projects at the Police Department, Fire Department, Town 
Hall front entryway, site work, paving and lighting.  Both the Police Department ($55,000) and Fire Department ($70,000) 
require exterior repairs for rotting or damaged areas, which will only become progressively worse and more costly if ignored.  
The front entryway ramp and stairs of the Town Hall ($75,000) were identified in the On-Site Insight report commissioned 
by the town in 2016 and require replacement to be brought up to building code and due to water damage.  Additionally, 
there are site work requirements ($35,000) for the Town Hall campus to include paving and lighting.  Finally, Town 
Buildings is requesting capital funds for Campus Site Work ($65,000), to include additional paving needed upon completion 
of the Town Library project, site work to improve a safety and access issue at the Police Station rear entrance; the installation 
of drainage pipes for gutters on the Police Station. 
 
If alternative sources of funding, such as grants, matching funds from the state, unused and previously authorized capital 
funds, are available, they are discussed below in the description of the specific capital item.  Before funding from alternative 
sources, the FY2019 capital requests total $742,695. The requests, net of funding from alternative sources, could be funded 
by any combination of exempt debt, non-exempt debt, operating funds, or free cash as determined by the Advisory 
Committee and the Board of Selectmen.   
 
Capital Items in Article 9 
 
a. Fire Department  
Breathing Support Equipment 
This equipment consists of and SCBA Air Compressor and Containment Fill Station, and an Oxygen Containment Fill 
Station. This equipment is used to fill and store the oxygen tanks used by the department. The current equipment is well 
beyond its useful life of 20 years and does not comply with current safety standards. There is no containment in case one of 
the tanks were to explode, which poses a serious danger to personnel. The project will be procured through government 
procurement service HGAC Buy.  
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $73,000. 
 
b.  Community Maintenance and Development   
Air Compressor & Jackhammers: The existing equipment was manufactured in the 1970's and breaks down frequently, 
causing delays to road repairs and other maintenance. The systems need to be replaced in order to complete the work required 
of this department.  For this a specific quote has been solicited.   
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $22,300. 
 
c. Community Maintenance and Development   
Material Processing: Asphalt Hot Box & Wood Chipper (Fleet Assessment Tool vehicle ID # 19): Current road 
patching and repair is less effective with poor repairs and wasted materials without the asphalt hot box.  When road repairs 
are undertaken, asphalt must be brought from the plant to town in a cold truck, and any material not used must be disposed 
of. A hot box would allow for the use of all material purchased and speed up repairs.  This is also the practice of surrounding 
towns.  The current wood chipper is from 1998, has 784 hours of use, is small and does not have a winch. This has resulted 
in injuries and is the number one source of Workmen's Comp claims. The useful life is 10-15 years.  The wood chipper is 
increasingly needed to assist with the removal of down limbs from dead trees throughout town as a result of the winter 
moth.  Specific quotes have been solicited for both the asphalt hot box and wood chipper.   
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $96,000. 
 
d. Community Maintenance and Development   
Large Tractor: The current tractor is from 1994, is undersized and under powered for its intended use. It cannot be used 
in the winter because it does not have a cab. It is currently used to mow all ball fields, and the new tractor would be used to 
remove snow and cut brush in the winter, and to tow the blower in the fall.  
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $75,100. 
 
 



 

34 
 

e. Community Maintenance and Development   
Pick-Up Trucks and Highway Equipment (Fleet Assessment Tool vehicle IDs #s H1, 33):  The two current pick up 
trucks were manufactured in 2007 and 2001, with 113,891 and 118,681 miles respectively.  The trucks have exceeded their 
useful life, are becoming a maintenance burden and safety concern.  The vehicles are needed for CM&D work and need to 
be replaced.  Highway Equipment includes a Water Tank/Brine Sprayer and a Tow-Behind Blower.  The town has no public 
water for street sweeping; currently a small sprayer on a trailer is used.  Pretreatment with a brine sprayer would reduce the 
amount of salt needed later and would be environmentally preferable.  A Water Tank/Brine Sprayer would reduce salt usage 
and be more efficient for road treatment purposes.  Tow-Behind Blower - Used to remove leaves before they become 
sweepings that must be disposed of. We currently don’t have a large blower for the fields or the roadsides. Leaves that don’t 
get blown off the edges of the road in the fall end up in the catch basins or they get swept in the spring. This adds to the 
volume of debris that we pay to dispose of.   Specific quotes have been solicited for the vehicles and highway equipment. 
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $111,295. 
 
f. Town Buildings and Properties 
f1. Town Building and Campus Projects:  Based on the Town Buildings On-Site Insight report from August 2016, we 
are in the third year of funding an estimated backlog of 1.2 M of life-cycle replacement projects. In addition, the Library 
expansion project has added expenses for the public water supply system and accelerated the need for the campus paving, 
lighting, and site work. 
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $35,000. 
 
f2. Fire Station Siding and Exterior Repairs:  Complete replacing failed siding and trim, and finish LED upgrade to 
exterior lighting. 
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $70,000. 
 
f3. Campus Site Work in Conjunction with Library Project:  Project components include: site work to improve a 
safety and access issue at the Police Station rear entrance; the installation of drainage pipes for gutters on the Police Station 
(omitted from original building scope); and paving of all areas of campus not included in Library contract. 
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $65,000. 
 
f4. Police Station Exterior Upgrades:  Project work and preventive measures to the exterior of the Police Station 
include the installation of gutters, improvements to exterior flashing, and repairs to the brick façade that has been damaged 
due to the lack of these exterior features. 
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $55,000. 
 
f5. Replacement of Town Hall Handicap Ramp and Entryway:  The handicap ramp entrance to Town Hall has 
ADA compliance issues and deterioration beyond repair without upgrade. There are also winter maintenance and safety 
concerns with ice from the roof above. As a result, this project will upgrade and replace the ramp and entranceway, including 
addressing grading issues in conjunction with parking lot work from the Library construction project. 
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $75,000. 
 
g.  Pine Hill School   
g1. Kindergarten Classroom and Common Area Floors 
The current flooring is original to the Kindergarten wing that was built in 1998, and has deteriorated to the point that 
replacement is needed. The total estimated cost of replacement is $35,000.  For this a specific quote has been solicited.   
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $35,000. 
 
g2. Library and Adjoining Classroom Hallway Floors 
The current flooring is worn and past its useful life. The total estimated cost of replacement is $30,000.  This includes funds 
to temporarily remove the books and shelving and reinstall when the project is complete.  For this a specific quote has been 
solicited.   
We recommend favorable action for a total cost up to $30,000. 
 
 
  



 

35 
 

 

 



 

36
 

   R
ep

or
t o

f t
he

 S
he

rb
or

n 
A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

 
20

19
 A

N
N

U
A

L 
TO

W
N

 M
E

ET
IN

G
  

 
Sh

er
bo

rn
, M

A
 0

17
70

  
 

                
R

E
SI

D
E

N
T

 
 

 
SH

E
R

B
O

R
N

, M
A

 0
17

70
 

     P
le

as
e 

br
in

g 
th

is
 re

po
rt 

w
ith

 y
ou

 to
 

Th
e 

20
19

A
nn

ua
l T

ow
n 

M
ee

tin
g 

Tu
es

da
y, 

A
pr

il 
23

, 2
01

9,
 7

PM
 

Li
nd

qu
ist

 C
om

m
on

s 
D

ov
er

 S
he

rb
or

n 
Re

gi
on

al
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 

   

C
ar

rie
r R

ou
te

 P
re

so
rt 

Pr
es

or
te

d 
St

an
da

rd
 

U
.S

. P
os

ta
ge

 
PA

ID
 

Sh
er

bo
rn

, M
A 

01
77

0 
Pe

rm
it 

N
o.

 6
 

 

 



2/28/2020 Town of Medfield Mail - CLIMATE GOALS draft warrant article

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=2073416ef9&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1659361732223600628&simpl=msg-f%3A16593617322… 1/2

Kristine Trierweiler <ktrierweiler@medfield.net>

CLIMATE GOALS draft warrant article
Fred Davis <fdavis@tiac.net> Sun, Feb 23, 2020 at 3:44 PM
To: Fred Davis <fred@freddaviscorp.com>, Paul Fechtelkotter <plfec@us.ibm.com>, Marie Zack Nolan
<mznolan@comcast.net>, Osler Peterson <osler.peterson@verizon.net>, Cynthia Greene <medfielder@msn.com>, JIM NAIL
<jnail78@comcast.net>, David Temple <davidftemple@yahoo.com>, "Stack, William J" <william.stack@eversource.com>,
"Fleischmann, Fritz" <fleischmann@babson.edu>, David Stephenson <D.Stephenson@stephensonstrategies.com>, "John A.
Thompson" <jthompson166@verizon.net>, Jean Mineo <jeanmineo@aol.com>, Alec Stevens <astevens@dmiinc.com>,
Penni Conner <penelope.conner@nstar.com>, Sarah Raposa <sraposa@medfield.net>, Bill Massaro
<wmassaro@comcast.net>, Robert Winograd <rawinograd@gmail.com>, Tricia Pembroke <pdgpembroke@comcast.net>,
Kristine Trierweiler <ktrierweiler@medfield.net>, Lee Alinsky <lee427@comcast.net>, Evelyn Clarke <eclarke@medfield.net>,
Amy Colleran <acolleran@email.medfield.net>, Todd Trehubenko <ttrehubenko@comcast.net>, Gilbert Rodgers
<gil.rodgers@energyzt.com>, Megan Sullivan <mbsul@comcast.net>, Mike Quinlan <mquinlan@compasspminc.com>,
Robert Booker <booker3co@gmail.com>, Julia Gecha <julia.gecha@gmail.com>

Medfield Energy Committee --

I have drafted a CLIMATE GOALS draft warrant article for reviewing in advance of our discussion at this week's MEC
meeting. After looking at a number of towns' efforts; I based ours mostly on Ashland's recent Warrant Article, passed just
a few months ago.

Attached are three files. The .xls spreadsheet contains our proposed wording; the other two files are helpful background
bits about organizing work: 

2020 02 23 Medfield Draft Warrant Article CLIMATE GOALS -- one tab has the proposed Medfield wording,
repeated in plain text below; another tab shows some other towns' wording

Ashland TM commits to Net Zero by 2040  -- an article about the Ashland effort 

Net Zero_ What you Need to Know before Special Town Meeting on November 6 - The Bedford Citizen  --
an article about the Bedford effort 

Thanks everyone.

-- Fred

Plaintext version:

Medfield    2020    draft warrant article: Net Zero Emissions Goal [based on Ashland 2019] (see attached .xls for
notations)
        To see if the Town will adopt the following Resolution to Adopt a Net Zero Emissions Goal: 
        WHEREAS, Massachusetts has adopted a carbon emissions reduction goal (as defined in the 2008 Global Warming
Solutions Act) and the Patrick and Baker Administrations have taken leadership to mitigate and adapt to climate change
by reducing greenhouse gas emissions and building a more resilient Commonwealth that safeguards residents,
municipalities, and businesses (as outlined in the Global Warming Solutions Act and Executive Order 569); and 
        WHEREAS, The Town of Medfield is one of 240 cities and towns across the Commonwealth that have committed to
reducing municipal energy use as part of the Green Communities Program. The Town of Medfield has been taking actions
to reduce its carbon emissions, promote clean energy, and increase resilience including: installing municipal solar arrays,
supporting private and public renewable energy installations, promoting residential and commercial energy efficiency
programs, and converting to LED streetlights, among other efforts; and 
        WHEREAS, More than 30 communities, including Acton, Arlington, Ashland, Belmont, Bedford, Boston, Brookline,
Cambridge, Concord, Framingham, Lexington, Melrose, Medford, Natick, Newton, Wayland, and Wellesley, are in the
process of adopting greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals and comprehensive, cost-effective plans to achieve these
goals; and 
        WHEREAS, Massachusetts communities are already feeling the impacts of a changing climate, with rising
temperatures, increased flooding and more intense and frequent storms, increased health risks such as tick-borne
diseases and heat-related health conditions. In addition, the state’s centralized energy system and transit infrastructure is



2/28/2020 Town of Medfield Mail - CLIMATE GOALS draft warrant article

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=2073416ef9&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1659361732223600628&simpl=msg-f%3A16593617322… 2/2

becoming more vulnerable to climate-related risks like storms and extreme temperatures; and 
        WHEREAS, A Net Zero community is one for which, on an annual basis, all greenhouse gas emissions resulting
from operations are reduced or offset. Net Zero communities adopt multi-pronged strategies including energy efficiency,
renewable energy, zero waste, and nature-based solutions to CO2 removal, such as the protection and restoration of
forests, wetlands and other ecosystems; and 
        WHEREAS, The transition to a Net Zero community brings many potential benefits, including improved health,
reduced pollution, the creation of clean energy and energy efficiency jobs, and the ability to retain more of our energy
dollars in the local economy. 
        NOW THEREFORE be it resolved that: 
        1. The Town of Medfield supports a Net Zero goal of eliminating or offsetting by 2040 all greenhouse gas emissions
in Medfield: 
        a. Originating from heating and cooling, electricity consumption, transportation, industry, agriculture, gas leaks, and
waste streams b. Including households, businesses, the municipality, institutions and utilities 
        2. The Town of Medfield will develop a Net Zero Action Plan by November 2021 that outlines specific strategies and
sets measurable, attainable and realistic interim targets for achieving the 2040 Net Zero goal, and will provide an annual
progress report to Medfield Town Meeting. 
        3. In developing and implementing the Net Zero Action Plan, the voices and interests of all members of the Medfield
community are considered including the most vulnerable (such as seniors, low-income residents, immigrants, people with
disabilities, and youth) to ensure the benefits and related costs of a transition to a clean energy economy are shared
equitably by the entire community. 
        or pass any vote or take any other action thereon. 

3 attachments

2020 02 23 Medfield Draft Warrant Article CLIMATE GOALS.xls
38K

Ashland 2019 Warrant Article number 12.pdf
85K

Net Zero_ What you Need to Know before Special Town Meeting on November 6 - The Bedford Citizen
copy.pdf
610K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=2073416ef9&view=att&th=17073cb42b1087f4&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=2073416ef9&view=att&th=17073cb42b1087f4&attid=0.2&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ui=2&ik=2073416ef9&view=att&th=17073cb42b1087f4&attid=0.3&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


2.19.2020 DRAFT Medfield Warrant Article   RE: NEW POSITION OF SUSTAINABILITY COORDINATOR  
 

                    9                     
                      . 

 
ARTICLE __. CITIZEN PETITION   REQUEST BOARD OF SELECTMEN TO CREATE SUSTAINABILITY COORDINATOR 
 

                                       
                     

 
                                             

                               
                             

                           
                                 
        

 
                                 

                             
                                     

                                   
 

 
             

  
                                

                   
 

                            
                             

            
 

                            
 

 
                                  

                
 

                          
                  

 
                             

    
 

                     
 

             
 

                               
      

 
                      



                                     
              .                     

                                     
            .                     
                    .       

                            .  
 

        .  
 


	2020-HCC-Designation-Application
	CAM Ground Lease v3 (1)
	CAM Ground Lease Comparison  v3-v2
	ec AGENDA MATERIALS
	2020-HCC-Designation-Application
	Commonwealth Electric Contract - DPW Building LED Lighting Replacement
	Commonwealth Electric Contract - Library - LED Lighting Replacement
	Commonwealth Electric Contract - Medfield Senior Center LED Lighting Replacement
	Commonwealth Electric Contract - Pfaff - Rec Center LED Lighting Replacement
	Commonwealth Electric Contract - Town Hall LED Lighting Repalcement
	Eversource  Contract - Medfield Senior Center Agreement Form
	Eversource Contract - DPW Agreement Form
	Eversource Contract - Medfield Public Library Agreement Form
	Eversource Contract - Pfaff Center Agreement Form
	Eversource Contract - Town Hall Agreement Form
	Ashland 2019 Warrant Article number 12
	Ashland TM commits to Net Zero by 2040 
	Climate group criticizes Sherborn sustainability plan - News - Wicked Local Sherborn - Sherborn, MA
	Concord warrant article
	Exeter Sustainability Office
	Mass Power Forward Campaign Handbook
	Sherborn town report 2019 with articles
	Town of Medfield Mail - CLIMATE GOALS draft warrant article
	20-0219 draft Medfield warrant article_Sustainability Coordinator

